
City of Port Orchard Council Meeting Agenda 
August 10, 2021 

 6:30 p.m. 

The City is prohibited from conducting meetings unless the meeting is NOT 
conducted in-person and instead provides options for the public to attend through 
telephone, internet or other means of remote access, and also provides the ability 
for persons attending the meeting (not in-person) to hear each other at the same 
time. Therefore; 

Remote access only 
Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86300362406 

Zoom Webinar ID: 863 0036 2406 
Zoom Call-In: 1 253 215 8782 

1. CALL TO ORDER
A. Pledge of Allegiance

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. CITIZENS COMMENTS
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for items listed on the Agenda and that are not for a 
Public Hearing. When recognized by the Mayor, please state your name for the official record)  

4. CONSENT AGENDA
(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items listed below, which have been distributed 
to each Councilmember for reading and study. Consent Agenda items are not considered 
separately unless a Councilmember so requests. In the event of such a request, the item is 
returned to Business Items.) 

A. Approval of Vouchers and Electronic Payments
B. Approval of Payroll and Direct Deposits
C. Adoption of a Resolution Approving an Agreement in Lieu of Assessment

with Charles Bair for a Water Connection (Dorsey) Page 4
D. Adoption of a Resolution Approving an Agreement in Lieu of Assessment

with Kitsap Development & Investment for a Water Connection (Dorsey)
Page 12 

E. Approval of the July 27, 2021, City Council Meeting Minutes (Rinearson)
Page 20 

F. Excusal of Councilmember Diener Due to Personal Obligations

5. PRESENTATION
A. Crime Stats for 2020 (M. Brown) Page 26

6. PUBLIC HEARING
A. Continued Hearing on Adoption of a Resolution Approving and Adopting

the 2021-2030 Water Use Efficiency Goals and Performance Measures
(Dorsey) Page 44

 

Mayor: 
Rob Putaansuu 
Administrative Official 

Councilmembers: 
Bek Ashby (Mayor Pro-Tempore) 
Finance Committee 
Economic Development & Tourism Committee 
Transportation Committee, Chair 
KRCC/KRCC PlanPol-alt /KRCC TransPol 
PSRC-alt/PSRC TransPOL-Alt/PRTPO 

 

Shawn Cucciardi  
Finance Committee 
E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair 
Kitsap Economic Development Alliance 

Fred Chang 
Economic Development & Tourism Committee 
Land Use Committee 

Jay Rosapepe  
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Land Use Committee, Chair 
Transportation Committee 
Lodging Tax Advisory Committee, Chair 
KRCC-alt 

John Clauson 
Finance Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Kitsap Public Health District-alt 

Cindy Lucarelli  
Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair 
Kitsap Economic Development Alliance 

Scott Diener 
Land Use Committee 
Transportation Committee 

Department Directors: 
Nicholas Bond, AICP  
Development Director 

Mark Dorsey, P.E. 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

Tim Drury 
Municipal Court Judge 

Noah Crocker, M.B.A.  
Finance Director 

Matt Brown 
Police Chief 

Brandy Rinearson, MMC, CPRO  
City Clerk 

Meeting Location: 
Council Chambers, 3rd Floor 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

Contact us: 
(360) 876-4407 
cityhall@cityofportorchard.us

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86300362406


Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 
The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 

Meeting materials are available on the City’s website at: www.cityofportorchard.us or by contacting the City Clerk’s office at (360) 876-4407. 
The City of Port Orchard does not discriminate on the basis of disability. Contact the City Clerk’s office should you need special accommodations. 

August 10, 2021, Meeting Agenda      Page 2 of 3 

City Council WILL hold a 10-minute executive session, pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) to discuss legal 
risks of a proposed action that the agency has identified where there are potential adverse legal and 
financial consequences to the agency. 

7. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. Adoption of a Resolution Approving and Adopting the 2021-2030 Water Use Efficiency Goals and

Performance Measures (Dorsey) Page 68
B. Adoption of a Resolution Ratifying the Mayor’s Execution of Contract No. 067-21, with Stellar J

Corporation for the Pottery Lift Station Emergency Repair (Dorsey) Page 92
C. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing an Additional One-Time Personal Holiday for Employees Fully

Vaccinated Against the COVID-19 Virus (Lund) Page 113
D. Adoption of a Resolution Agreeing to Extend the Expiration of the Stetson Heights Preliminary Plat by

One Year (Bond) Page 115
E. Adoption of a Resolution Accepting the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee’s Recommendation for

Distribution of the Remaining 2021 Funds (Rinearson) Page 120
F. Approval of a Road Closure for a Special Event-Cruisin’ Sunday (Rinearson) Page 157
G. Approval of the July 20, 2021, City Council Work Study Meeting Minutes (Rinearson) Page 179

8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)
A. Spring Cleanup (Dorsey) Page 184

9. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES

10. REPORT OF MAYOR

11. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS

12. CITIZEN COMMENTS
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for any items not up for Public Hearing. When recognized by the Mayor, please state
your name for the official record)

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110, the City Council may hold an executive session. The topic(s) and the
session duration will be announced prior to the executive session.

14. CITY COUNCIL GOOD OF THE ORDER

15. ADJOURNMENT

COMMITTEE MEETINGS Date & Time Location 

Economic Development and 
Tourism  

August 9, 2021; 9:30am – 2nd Monday of each 
month  

Remote Access 

Utilities August 10, 2021; 5:00pm Remote Access 

Land Use  September 22, 2021; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Festival of Chimes & Lights August 23, 2021; 3:30pm – 3rd Monday of each 
month 

Remote Access 

EXECUTIVE SESSION

http://www.cityofportorchard.us/


     
Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 

The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 
Meeting materials are available on the City’s website at: www.cityofportorchard.us or by contacting the City Clerk’s office at (360) 876-4407. 

The City of Port Orchard does not discriminate on the basis of disability. Contact the City Clerk’s office should you need special accommodations. 
August 10, 2021, Meeting Agenda                                                                    Page 3 of 3 

Finance August 17, 2021; 5:00pm  Remote Access 

Transportation August 24, 2021; 5:00pm; 4th Tuesday of each 
month  

Remote Access 

Sewer Advisory  September 22, 2021; 6:30pm Remote Access 

Lodging Tax October, 2021 Remote Access 

Outside Agency Committees Varies Varies 

 
  

http://www.cityofportorchard.us/


City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

   Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4C Meeting Date: 
 
August 10, 2021 

                    Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving an Prepared by: Mark Dorsey, P.E. 
 Agreement in Lieu of Assessment with  Public Works Director 
 Charles Bair for a Water Connection      Atty Routing No.: 366922.0013 Water 
  Atty Review Date: August 3, 2021 

 
Summary: On May 12, 2021, Mr. Charles Bair requested water service from the City to his property 
located at 731 Bethel for water to a new coffee stand.  Pursuant to the City’s standards, a new water 
connection for the Property should trigger the need for an extension of the water main from the 
existing main at 791 Bethel and north across the Property to intertie with the water main at 690 
Bethel. However, the Public Works Department determined that it is cost prohibitive and infeasible to 
require Mr. Bair to construct the extension of the water main for a single water connection since the 
intertie would mean meeting the 390 pressure zone and the 260 pressure zone, which would require 
the installation of a pressure reducing station.  However, should the real property on Bethel on either 
side of or across Bethel from Mr. Bair’s property need water service in the future, the extension of the 
water main will be necessary and Mr. Bair or his successors or assigns will be required to connect to 
that main at that time.  Accordingly, staff recommends an Agreement in Lieu of Assessment that will 
permit Mr. Bair to build, at his own expense, a temporary private line to connect to the City’s water 
system at 791 Bethel.   
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends adoption of a Resolution, authorizing the Mayor to sign an 
Agreement in Lieu of Assessment from Mr. Charles Bair for future utility infrastructure installation, 
operation and maintenance. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 7.2 – City Managed Utilities. 
 
Motion for Consideration: I move to adopt a Resolution, authorizing the Mayor to execute an 
Agreement in Lieu of Assessment with Mr. Charles Bair for future utility infrastructure installation, 
operation and maintenance.   
 
Alternatives:   None 
 
Fiscal Impact: None  
 
Attachments:   Resolution, Exhibit A to the Resolution – Agreement in Lieu of Assessment. 
   
  

Page 4 of 189



RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH CHARLES AND PATRICIA BAIR 
FOR UTILITY EXTENSION. 

 
 WHEREAS, May 12, 2021, Mr. Charles Bair requested water service from the City of Port 

Orchard to his property located at 731 Bethel for water to a new coffee stand located on Kitsap 
County Tax Parcel Nos. 4031-001-012-0009, 4031-001-010-0001, and 4031-001-009-0103  
  (the “Property”); and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35.92.025, the City is authorized to allow a connection to the 
City’s water system and levy a connection charge for such a connection; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the City’s standards, a water connection for the Property should 
trigger the need for an extension of the water main from the existing main at 791 Bethel and 
north across the Property to intertie with the water main at 690 Bethel, however the Public 
Works Department of the City of Port Orchard has determined that it is cost prohibitive and 
infeasible for Mr. and Mrs. Bair to construct the extension of the water main for a single water 
connection since the intertie would mean meeting the 390 pressure zone and the 260 pressure 
zone, which would require the installation of a pressure reducing station; and 
 
 WHEREAS, staff recommends an Agreement in Lieu of Assessment that will permit Mr. 
and Mrs. Bair to build, at its own expense, a temporary private line to connect to the City’s 
existing water main at 791 Bethel, in exchange for a commitment to connect to connect and 
pay the applicable connection charges when the future main extension is completed and in 
exchange for supporting any future utility local improvement district or water main extension 
and to pay for the share of the costs of future permanent water facilities serving the property; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Agreement in Lieu of Assessment is in the best 
interests of the residents of Port Orchard; now, therefore, 
  
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 

 
THAT:  It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of the Resolution. 

 
THAT:  The Port Orchard City Council approves of and authorizes the Mayor to execute 
the Agreement in Lieu of Assessment attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated 
herein by this reference.  
 
 

Page 5 of 189



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
THAT:  This Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
hereon.   

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 

by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of August 2021. 
 

 
  
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk  
 
 

Page 6 of 189



After Recording Return to
City Clerk
City of port Orchard
216 Prospect Street
Port Orchard, WA 99366

GRANTOR:

GRANTEE:

AGREEMENT

E_.
IN
*

City of F ort Orchard

tEGAt DESCRIPTION: THAT PI)RTION oF

LIEII OFASSESSMENT ,

//*-rr"'" iq. R ,$o,a*

Complete legaldescription attac red as Exhibit,,A,,tft3l-Qgl .C!t?--OOog
TA(PARCEINO.: r/ 3b C,aL, Ot o -Go 6 a

Ys3r-60l-ool-o/o3
This agreement is enteled into between ofPort a Washington municipalcorporation, hereafter referre<. to as "cw" aA hereafter referred toas "Owner". Owner owns cerlain real property which does not front on any of the Crt5/s watermains, but Owner seeks to oblain water service from the Crty by installing a private water linefrom the City's nearest water main to the Owner's property. Owner's real property is Iegallydescribed on the attached .,Exl fbit A" which bythis reference is incorporated herein and made apart hereof. The referenced rer I propertyis hereafter referred to as the "PropertS/'.

I

In consideration of the foregoing recitals, and the promises and covenants of the partieshereinafter set forth, the partie , ugi." as follows:

1' WATER $ERVICE' rhe City hereby agrees to provide water service, not to exceed theusual and customar r requiremuntt for a single Equivalent nesideniial Unit (ERU), tothe Property' No ol her buildings or real pro-pe"ry may connect to or be served by theprivate water line v ithout the city's uppt*ut. owner shall construct, own, operateand maintain the p:ivate water line ai ih" o*rrur's sole cost and expense. The Cityreserves the right t I review and approve the designs and. specifications relating toprivate water line, including the *rnn., in which the private water line will be

Page 7 of 189



connected to the City s main line. The private water line shall connect to the City's

water main at a location approved by the City.

2. INSPECTION OF CONNECTION. The Owner shall notify the City of the Owner's

intent to connect the private water line to the City's main line at least two (z) business

days before connection. The City may inspect the condition and construction of the
private water line before connection, and shall inspect the actual connection, at a time
or times mutually agreed to by the Owner and the City. The Owner shall reimburse the

District for all costs of inspection.

3. PAYMENT FOR WATER SERVICE. The Owner agrees to pay for the water service
supplied by the City according to the rates, schedules, and resolutions duly enacted
and established by the City and to pay a service initiation charge as required by the
City.

4. OWNER SUPPORT FOR CITYS ACTION. In the event a utility local improvement
district (ULID) or pipeline extension for a water line, water main, or a water service is

initiated affecting the Property or any portion thereof, the Owner of the Property
hereby agrees to support any petitions or other action therefor and not to contest the
formation of any said ULID or pipeline extension. The Owner further agrees to pay its
share of the costs for the permanent water facilities serving the Property as may be

assessed or adopted bythe City.

S. DISCONNECTION OF PRIVATE WATER LINE. The Owner understands and

acknowledges that the City, at its option, may require that water service from the
private water line be discontinued and that water service be provided by the
permanent water main serving the Property at the Owner's expense. When permanent
water facilities are constructed and available, whether bythe Cityor others, the Owner
shall disconnect the private water line and connect to the City's permanent water
facilities within forfy-five (+S) days of notice from the Citythat the permanent facilities
are ready for connection. The Owner shall disconnect and remove, or disable, the
private water line in accordance with applicable laws and regulations within ninety
(go) days of the connection of the Property to the permanent water facilities. The

Owner shall be responsible for all costs of disconnecting, removing and disabling the
private water line.

6. AGREEMENT RIINS WITH THE I-AND. All provisions of this agreement, including
the benefits and burdens, run with the Property and are binding upon and enure to
benefit ofthe heirs, assigns, successors, tenants, and personal representatives ofthe
Owner and City.

T. WARRANTf OF TITLE. Owner warrants that it has good and fee simple title to the
Property, and that it has the right to enter into this agreement.

8. COOPERATION/ENFORCEMENT OF PROVISIONS. The parties shall strive to
cooperate with one another in effectuating the terms and spirit of this agreement. This
agreement shall be given a reasonable construction. Either party may enforce this
agreement by appropriate action, including specific performance, and the prevailing

Page 8 of 189



party in any such litigation shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and

costs.

g. RECORDING. The Cityshall recordthis agreementwith the Kitsap CountyAuditor, at

the cost of the Owner.

DATED this dav of 

-,2o--
CITY OF PORT ORCHARD,
WASHINGTON

CA*Qs €, OorR. . o{+r,t{\
Name and Title

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED :

Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Charlotte Archer, City Attorney

Page 9 of 189



Agreement in Lieu of Assessment 

Exhibit A 

Legal Description for Bair Parcels 

Parcel 4031-001-012-0009 

LOT 12, BLOCK 1 TOM CLINE'S ADDITION TO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN 
VOLUME 1 OF PLATS, PAGE 29, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON; 
TOGETHER WITH THAT PORTION OF VACATED CEDAR STREET, WHICH 
ATTACHED BY OPERATION OF LAW UNDER CITY OF PORT ORCHARD ORDINANCE 
913. 

Parcel 4031-001-010-0001 

LOTS 10 & 11, BLOCK 1 TOM CLINE'S ADDITION TO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 1 OF PLATS, PAGE 29, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON; TOGETHER WITH THAT PORTION OF VACATED CEDAR STREET, 
WHICH ATTACHED BY OPERATION OF LAW UNDER CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
ORDINANCE 913. 

Parcel 4031-001-009-0103 

LOT 9, BLOCK 1 TOM CLINE'S ADDITION TO SIDNEY, AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN 
VOLUME 1 OF PLATS, PAGE 29, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON; 
TOGETHER WITH THAT PORTION OF VACATED CEDAR STREET, WHICH 
ATTACHED BY OPERATION OF LAW UNDER CITY OF PORT ORCHARD ORDINANCE 
913. 

 

Page 10 of 189



Page 11 of 189



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

   Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4D Meeting Date: 
 
August 10, 2021 

                    Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving an Prepared by: Mark Dorsey, P.E. 
 Agreement in Lieu of Assessment with  Public Works Director 
 Kitsap Development & Investment for a      Atty Routing No.: 366922.0013 Water 
 Water Connection Atty Review Date: August 3, 2021 

 
Summary: On July 19, 2021, Mr. James Wolfard on behalf of Kitsap Development & Investment, LLC 
requested water service from the City to property located at 2700 Shawn Road for water to serve a 
new single family residence.  Pursuant to the City’s standards, a new water connection for the 
Property should trigger the need for an extension of the water main from the existing main on 
Lumsden Road. However, the Public Works Department determined that it is cost prohibitive and 
infeasible to require Kitsap Development & Investment, LLC to construct the extension of the water 
main for a single water connection.  However, should other real property on Shawn Road property 
need water service in the future, the extension of the water main will be necessary and Kitsap 
Development & Investment, LLC  or its successors or assigns will be required to connect to that main 
at that time.  Accordingly, staff recommends an Agreement in Lieu of Assessment that will permit 
Kitsap Development & Investment, LLC to build, at its own expense, a temporary private line to 
connect to the City’s water system on Lumsden Road.   
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends adoption of a Resolution, authorizing the Mayor to sign an 
Agreement in Lieu of Assessment with Kitsap Development & Investment, LLC for future utility 
infrastructure installation, operation, and maintenance. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 7.2 – City Managed Utilities. 
 
Motion for Consideration:  I move to adopt a Resolution, authorizing the Mayor to execute an 
Agreement in Lieu of Assessment with Kitsap Development & Investment, LLC for future utility 
infrastructure installation, operation and maintenance.   
 
Alternatives:   None 
 
Fiscal Impact: None  
 
Attachments:   Resolution, Exhibit A to the Resolution – Agreement in Lieu of Assessment. 
   
  

Page 12 of 189



 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH KITSAP DEVELOPMENT & 
INVESTMENT, LLC FOR UTILITY EXTENSION. 

 
 WHEREAS, on July 19, 2021, Mr. James Wolfard on behalf of Kitsap Development & 

Investment, LLC requested water service from the City to property located at 2700 Shawn Road 
for water to serve a new single-family residence located on Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 342401-
3-011-2008 (the “Property”); and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35.92.025, the City is authorized to allow a connection to the 
City’s water system and levy a connection charge for such a connection; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the City’s standards, a new water connection for the Property 
should trigger the need for an extension of the water main from the existing main on Lumsden 
Road, however, the Public Works Department determined that it is cost prohibitive and infeasible 
to require Kitsap Development & Investment LLC to construct the extension of the water main 
for a single water connection, however, should other real property on Shawn Road property need 
water service in the future, the extension of the water main will be necessary and Kitsap 
Development & Investment LLC or its successors or assigns will be required to connect to that 
main at that time; and 
 
 WHEREAS, staff recommends an Agreement in Lieu of Assessment that will permit Kitsap 
Development & Investment, LLC to build, at its own expense, a temporary private line to connect 
to the City’s water system on Lumsden Road to connect to the City’s existing water main at 791 
Bethel, in exchange for a commitment to connect to connect and pay the applicable connection 
charges when the future main extension is completed and in exchange for supporting any future 
utility local improvement district or water main extension and to pay for the share of the costs 
of future permanent water facilities serving the property; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Agreement in Lieu of Assessment is in the best 
interests of the residents of Port Orchard; now, therefore, 
  
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
THAT:  It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above are 
hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of the Resolution. 

 
THAT:  The Port Orchard City Council approves of and authorizes the Mayor to execute 
the Agreement in Lieu of Assessment attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated 
herein by this reference.  

Page 13 of 189



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
THAT:  This Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures hereon.   

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 

by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of August 2021. 
 

 
  
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk  
 
 
 

Page 14 of 189



Page 15 of 189



Page 16 of 189



Page 17 of 189



Page 18 of 189



Page 19 of 189



City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Regular Meeting of July 27, 2021 
           
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Putaansuu called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
Roll call was taken by the City Clerk as follows: 
 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Ashby Present via Remote Access 

Councilmember Chang Present via Remote Access 
 Councilmember Clauson Present via Remote Access 

Councilmember Cucciardi Present via Remote Access 
Councilmember Diener Present via Remote Access 
Councilmember Lucarelli Present via Remote Access 
Councilmember Rosapepe Present via Remote Access  

 Mayor Putaansuu  Present via Remote Access 
  
Staff present via remote access: Public Works Director Dorsey, Finance Director Crocker, Community 
Development Director Bond, City Attorney Archer, City Clerk Rinearson, and Deputy City Clerk Floyd. 
 
The meeting is also streaming live on YouTube. 
 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Putaansuu led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Ashby, seconded by Councilmember Diener, to remove Consent 
Agenda Item E and Business Item 7D. 
 
Councilmember Ashby noted since Councilmember Rosapepe is in attendance, we do not need to 
excuse his absence [Consent Agenda Item E]. 
 
Mayor Putaansuu said we are holding a public hearing regarding water use efficiency goals, but due 
to tonight’s Council meeting being changed to Zoom only, we want to make sure proper noticing 
went out.  We will keep the public hearing open and continue to next meeting, and then conduct the 
business item [Business Item 7D]. 
 
The motion carried. 
 

Page 20 of 189



Minutes of July 27, 2021 
 Page 2 of 6  

 
MOTION: By Councilmember Diener, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to approve the agenda. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
3. CITIZENS COMMENTS  
 
There were no citizen comments. 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approval of Voucher Nos. 82365 through 82431 and 82438 through 82481 including bank drafts 

in the amount of $591,471.74 and EFT’s in the amount of $201,964.15 totaling $793,435.62. 
B. Approval of Payroll Check Nos. 82432 through 82437 including bank drafts and EFT’s in the 

amount of $252,036.77 and Direct Deposits in the amount of $192,188.62 totaling $444,225.39. 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Confirming Mayoral Appointments to Kitsap County Services Grant 

Recommendation Committee (Resolution No. 051-21) 
D. Adoption of a Resolution Declaring Certain Equipment as Surplus and Authorizing its Disposition 

(Resolution No. 052-21) 
E. Excusal of Councilmember Rosapepe Due to Personal Obligations 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Clauson, seconded by Councilmember Cucciardi, to approve the 
consent agenda as modified. 
 
The motion carried.  
 
5. PRESENTATION 
 
There were no presentations. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A. Adoption of a Resolution Approving and Adopting the 2021-2030 Water Use Efficiency Goals 

and Performance Measures 
 
Mayor Putaansuu opened the public hearing at 6:37 p.m. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Mayor Putaansuu said as a reminder, this public hearing will remain open until the next Council 
meeting. 
 
7. BUSINESS ITEMS  
 

Page 21 of 189



Minutes of July 27, 2021 
 Page 3 of 6  

 
A. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Port Orchard Municipal Code Chapter 13.04 Regarding 

Water and Sewer CFC Exceptions 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Lucarelli, seconded by Councilmember Clauson, to adopt an Ordinance 
amending Port Orchard Municipal Code chapter 13.04 as presented.   

  
The motion carried. 
(Ordinance 032-21) 

 
B. Adoption of an Ordinance Approving a Contract with the Washington State Department of 

Health for the Continuation of the Well No. 11 Development, Treatment & Booster Pump 
Station Project 

 
MOTION: By Councilmember Clauson, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to adopt Ordinance 
No. 021-21, authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract No. C054-21 with the Washington State 
Department of Health and accepting a DWSRF Pre-Construction Loan in the amount of $510,000. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
C. Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 048-20 with Murraysmith, Inc. for the 2020-

2021 McCormick Woods Well No. 11 Site Improvement Project Final Design & Bid Support 
(Phase 2) 
 

MOTION: By Councilmember Clauson, seconded by Councilmember Diener, to authorize the Mayor 
to execute Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. C048-20 with Murraysmith Inc. for Phase 2 of the 2020-
2021 McCormick Woods Well No. 11 Site Improvement Project Final Design and Bid Support in the 
additional amount of $628,733. 
 
Councilmember Cucciardi clarified the staff report mentions an application for the $5 million 
dollars through the Department of Health is a grant and not a loan.  
 
The motion carried.  
 
D. Adoption of a Resolution Approving and Adopting the 2021-2030 Water Use Efficiency Goals 

and Performance Measures 
 
This item was removed from the agenda, earlier in the meeting. 
 
E. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Execute all Documents Required to Enter 

into an Assignment of Department of Natural Resources Aquatic Lands Lease No. 22-A02336 
 

Page 22 of 189



Minutes of July 27, 2021 
 Page 4 of 6  

 
MOTION: By Councilmember Diener, seconded by Councilmember Clauson, to adopt a Resolution 
authorizing the Mayor to execute an Assignment of DNR Lease No. 22-A02336 and all associated 
documents for the future South Kitsap Community Events Center. 
 
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 053-21) 
 
F. Adoption of a Resolution Adopting the Final Plat of Magnolia Ridge 

 
MOTION: By Councilmember Chang, seconded by Councilmember Diener, to adopt a resolution, as 
presented, granting final plat approval for Magnolia Ridge Final Plat. 
 
The motion carried. 
(Resolution No. 054-21) 
 
G. Adoption of a Resolution Approving Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 066-20 with Rice 

Fergus Miller for Phase 1 of the South Kitsap Community Events Center 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Clauson, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to adopt a 
resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. C066-20 with Rice 
Fergus Miller for the Phase 1 scope of work on the South Kitsap Community Events Center, in the 
amount of $210,943, for a total amended contract amount of $610,943. 
 
In response to Councilmember Ashby, Finance Director agreed this item is not included in the 
budget and will require a budget amendment. 
 
The motion carried 
(Resolution No. 055-21) 
 
H. Approval of the July 13, 2021, City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Clauson, seconded by Councilmember Ashby, to approve the 
minutes as distributed. 
 
The motion moved. Councilmembers Cucciardi and Diener abstained.  
 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken) 
 
A. City’s Spring and Fall Clean-up Program  
 
City Attorney Archer reminded Council this item was discussed in April where Public Works Director 
Dorsey provided the impacts of this program upon City staff. As a reminder, Public Works staff 
follows Waste Management for 2 weeks, and staff is responsible for picking up the items. 

Page 23 of 189



Minutes of July 27, 2021 
 Page 5 of 6  

 
 
During the April discussion, a few options were raised regarding different partnerships to see what 
other opportunities were out there. She explained what some of the other Cities are currently doing 
and noted she reached out to recycling and solid waste companies, but they could not fulfill the 
needs of the program as what was set out by the Council.  
 
The alternative suggestion was if the City could not find someone to partner with, to develop a policy 
manual consistent with the existing program, which would outline the duties of each department. 
 
Additional discussion was held regarding gifting of public funds, contacting various vendors, and the 
community benefit of the program. 
 
Councilmembers voiced no concerns with staff bringing forward a draft policy. 
 
Council Direction: Staff to bring forward a draft policy for Council consideration. 
 
9. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
 
Mayor Putaansuu reported the Economic Development and Tourism Committee is scheduled to 
meet August 9th. The Utilities Committee is scheduled to meet August 10th. The Land Use Committee 
is scheduled to meet August 4th. 
 
Councilmember Lucarelli reported on the July 19th Festival of Chimes and Lights Committee and the 
July 21st Sewer Advisory Committee meetings. 
 
Councilmember Clauson reported on the July 20th Finance Committee meeting. 
 
Mayor Putaansuu briefly spoke about the current parking enforcement situation, Housing Kitsap, and 
Kitsap Transit. 
 
Councilmember Ashby reported on the July 27th Transportation Committee meeting. She also 
reported on Kitsap Regional Coordinating Council and the Puget Sound Regional Council. 
 
Councilmember Rosapepe reported the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee is scheduled to meet July 
29th. 
 
10. REPORT OF MAYOR 
The Mayor reported on the following: 

• McCormick Village Park splash pad; 
• South Kitsap Community Events Center; 
• In accordance with Resolution 007-11 ‘Establishing a Process for Amendment to Personnel 

Policies’, grandchildren are now included in the list of immediate family members for 
bereavement leave. 

Page 24 of 189



Minutes of July 27, 2021 
 Page 6 of 6  

 
 
11. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 
Mayor Putaansuu reported on the Sidney Avenue project. 
 
12. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
Robert McGee thanked Councilmember Cucciardi for addressing his questions regarding 
justifications on cost but voiced his concerns with the response. He also spoke to litigation and 
transparency to the public. 
 
Chuck Huck believes in community, God, and family. Has been involved in politics his whole life and 
believes the Council may be misguided. He reminded Council that people matter. 
 
13. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
There was no executive session. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
There was no Good of the Order. 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:46 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 

 
 
         
Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

Page 25 of 189



2020 Crime in 
Washington

PORT ORCHARD POLICE DEPARTMENT 
CRIME STATISTICS

© https://www.cityofportorchard.us/departments/police-department/

Page 26 of 189



Crime Reporting

• Crime = Punishable by possible incarceration 

• Data collected via officer report writing system

• Adjusted/corrected by Administrative Services

• Compiled and reported by Washington Association of Sheriffs and 
Police Chiefs (WASPC)

• National Incident Based Reporting System (NIBRS)

• Separated into Group A and Group B

Page 27 of 189



Classifications of Crimes – Group A Offenses

Drugs

Page 28 of 189



Group A Offenses

• Crimes against persons

• Crimes against property

• Crimes against society

• Usually “on-view” arrests

Reported Crimes

Group B Offenses Actual Arrests

Page 29 of 189



Statewide Crime Profile – Crime up 7.1%

• Crimes against persons              4.7 %               Every 5.3 minutes

• Crimes against property             13.8 %             Every 1.4 minutes

• Crimes against society                3.6 %               Every 16.4 minutes

Group A offenses were cleared by arrest or exceptional means 22.8 % of the time.

There were 2,047 assaults on law enforcement officers (   6.2 %) and two officers 
killed in the line of duty within Washington State.

There were 302 murders statewide in 2020 – an increase of 46.6 %.

Page 30 of 189



Port Orchard – Crimes Against Persons

Page 31 of 189



Port Orchard – Crimes Against Property

Page 32 of 189



Port Orchard – Crimes Against Society

Page 33 of 189



Port Orchard – Trend - Group A Crimes

1681

1564

1618

1490
1475 1482

1410

1191

1284

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Group A Crimes

Page 34 of 189



State Profile   |   Port Orchard Profile
GROUP A OFFENSES

Persons
26.4%

Property
68.3%

Society
5.3 %

Page 35 of 189



Port Orchard   86.9    Crimes per thousand

State Average 65.3

Kitsap County (All) 61.8

(2019 = 82.8    Crimes per thousand)

(2019 = 60.6)

(2019 = 58.1)

Port Orchard – Total Group A Offenses

Page 36 of 189



Port Orchard – “Crime Rate” Per Thousand

State Average  65.3

PO Population  14,770
37.5 33.3

51.9

99.5
86.9

KITS A P  CO UNTY S O BA INBRID GE IS LA ND  PD POUS LBO PD BREMERTO N PD PO RT O RCHA RD

KITSAP COUNTY CRIME RATE PER THOUSAND

Page 37 of 189



Port Orchard– Case Clearance Rate

State Average  22.8

1284 Group A Cases

309 Cases Cleared

257 Total Arrests (Group A and Group B)

24.1

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

Kitsap County SO Bainbridge Island PD Pouslbo PD Bremerton PD Port Orchard

CASE CLOSURE RATE

Page 38 of 189



Classifications of Crimes – Group B Offenses

Arrests
Page 39 of 189



DUI arrests down –
COVID bar restrictions

Page 40 of 189



Calls for Service

*October 2020 – Patrol Checks & Warrants no longer automatically create CFS.
Page 41 of 189



Takeaways

• Overall crime up 7.4%
• Up throughout state 7.1 %
• Related to the unemployment fraud

• On-view arrests down
• COVID-19
• Mostly Group B offenses

• Property crimes (theft, burglary, vehicle theft) remain most common
• Case clearance rate is above average

• Unknown future impact of the new legislation.

Page 42 of 189



2020 Crime in 
Washington

PORT ORCHARD POLICE DEPARTMENT 
CRIME STATISTICS

Page 43 of 189



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

   Agenda Item No.: Public Hearing 6A Meeting Date: 
 
August 10, 2021 

Subject: Continued Hearing on Adoption of a Prepared by: Mark Dorsey, P.E. 
 Resolution Approving and Adopting the   Public Works Director 
 2021-2030 Water Use Efficiency Goals       Atty Routing No.: 366922.0013 – Water 
 and Performance Measures Atty Review Date: July 7, 2021 

 
Summary: In 2003, the Washington State Legislature passed Engrossed Second Substitute House Bill 
1338, better known as the Municipal Water Law, to address the increasing demand on the state’s water 
resources. The law established that all municipal water suppliers must use water more efficiently in 
exchange for water right certainty and the flexibility to meet future demand. The legislature passed 
requirements in the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 246-290 and directed the department of 
health to adopt an enforceable Water Use Efficiency (WUE) program, which became effective in January 
of 2007. Consistent with this law, the city must set a water use efficiency goal and measure progress 
each year toward meeting the goal. The goal must include a measurable outcome, address water supply 
characteristics, and include an implementation schedule. The city must also evaluate or implement 
efficiency measures to help meet the goal. 
 
By Resolution No. 049-21, the City would set a Water Use Efficiency goal of reducing the per capita water 
use by 0.5% annually over the next ten years. 

 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends holding the Public Hearing.    
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 7 – Utilities. 

 
Alternatives:  Do not hold the Public Hearing. 
  
Attachments: Resolution No. 049-21, Water Use Efficiency Program and Water Resource Analysis. 

 
 

Page 44 of 189



       
RESOLUTION NO. 049-21 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, APPPROVING 
AND ADOPTING 2021 - 2030 WATER USE EFFICIENCY GOALS AND 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES FOR THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD’S DRINKING 
WATER SYSTEMS. 
 
WHEREAS, in 2003 the Washington State legislature passed House Bill 1338, known as 

the Municipal Water Law, to address increasing demands on our state’s water resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Health was directed to oversee and 

enforce a Water Use Efficiency Program (WUE) to help support the goals of ensuring safe and 
reliable drinking water supplies; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted by Resolution 091-09 on September 22, 2009, a 
goal of reducing the Single Family Residential water consumption from 160 gallons per day to 
155 gallons per day by 2014, which is a 0.5% annual reduction; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted by Ordinance 020-15 on November 11, 2015, a 

tiered water rate structure to encourage and stimulate customers to use less water; and 
 
WHEREAS, on July 27, 2021 and continued on August 10, 2021 the City held a duly-

noticed public hearing on this Resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered staff presentations, proposals and public 

comment and finds it is in the best interests of the residents of the City to adopt the City’s 
Water Use Efficiency Goals and Performance Measures set out herein for the City of Port 
Orchard for 2021 to 2030; now, therefore,  
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT:  The City Council approves and adopts the Water Use Efficiency goal of 
reducing the per capita water use by 0.5% annually over the next ten years. 

 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 10th day of August 2021.   
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 45 of 189



1 Water Use Efficiency Program 5/7/21 
 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAM 

 
1. System Information 
Name:    City of Port Orchard     DOH ID #68900 
   McCormick Woods Water System     DOH ID #40529 
Address:   216 Prospect 

Port Orchard, Washington 98366 
Phone:    (360) 876‐4991 
Contact Person: Jacki Brown, Utility Manager 
 
2. Geographic Location 
The City of Port Orchard maintains two separate public water systems, both of which are 
Group A public water systems.  Both systems are located on the Kitsap Peninsula of 
Washington State along the southern shore of Sinclair Inlet of the Puget Sound.  This Water Use 
Efficiency Program covers both the Port Orchard and McCormick Woods water systems.   
 
3. Water Use Efficiency Rule 
The City of Port Orchard developed a Water Use Efficiency Goal for compliance with the Water Use 
Efficiency Rule of the Municipal Water Law.  The City has adopted the following goals after the requisite 
public process and has developed a plan for monitoring progress toward the established goal and 
reevaluation of water use efficiency measures on an annual basis.   

GOAL #1: Reduce Residential Usage by 0.5% per year through 2030 
Over the next ten‐year period, the City of Port Orchard plans to reduce water consumption by 0.5% per 
year.  The following measures will be implemented to assist in attaining this goal: 

 Include water conservation information in the City's annual Consumer Confidence Report 
(annual water system report to consumers). 

 Evaluate the inclusion of inserts as part of the monthly water bills that present 
information regarding the importance of water conservation and actions individuals can 
implement to reduce their water use. 

 Investigate a Water Conservation School Outreach Program that may include school 
presentations, preparation of curriculum material, water conservation education handout 
material, and tours of water system facilities. 

 Provide water conservation materials at public outreach events. 
 Use Conservation Rate concepts in rate setting. 
 Show consumption history on water bills. 

GOAL #2: Continue and Expand Educational Outreach with Customers 
The City is a member of the County‐wide conservation board and the Water Purveyors Association of 
Kitsap County (WaterPAK), the City is active in planning, setting up, and manning the WaterPAK booth at 
the Kitsap County Fair.  Conservation is a principal message at the booth.  WaterPAK’s projects include 
distributing County‐wide indoor conservation kits, summer lawn water calendars, and high efficiency 

Page 46 of 189



2 Water Use Efficiency Program 5/7/21 
 

toilet (HET) rebates; establishing coordination between water purveyors, fire districts, Kitsap County, 
and state agencies; coordinating the development of a groundwater model with USGS; and developing 
the County‐wide Coordinated Water System Plan (CWSP).   

The City also maintains a page on their website (https://www.cityofportorchard.us/) which describes the 
benefits of conservation and links to other resources regarding conservation‐at‐home measures to help 
educate its customers about water use efficiency.   

4.  Water Use Efficiency Tracking 
 

Port Orchard Water Department

gallons percentage
2016 277858531 267667240 10191291 3.67
2017 267138796 257609875 9528921 3.57
2018 305494416 269650890 35843526 11.73 *
2019 312726730 271860151 40866579 13.07 *
2020 291531336 266226432 25304904 8.68

TOTALS 1454749809 1333014588 121735221 8.14 average

annually daily
2016 267631670
2017 237476840 12450 19074.44 52.26
2018 249387340 13440 18555.61 50.84 2.720075607
2019 259506771 14276 18177.83 49.80 2.035884811
2020 241954498 14314 16903.35 46.31 7.011223671

McCormick Woods Water System

gallons percentage
2016 83677846 83609600 68246 0.08
2017 84373263 81500000 2873263 3.41
2018 105212017 101582290 3629727 3.45
2019 107588945 100757850 6831095 6.35
2020 98619902 97346850 1273052 1.29

TOTALS 479471973 464796590 14675383 2.92 average

annually daily
2016 83605600
2017 72667000 4306 16875.75 46.23
2018 85574290 4851 17640.55 48.33 -4.53189519
2019 90850000 5646 16091.04 44.09 8.783789071
2020 90415000 6013 15036.59 41.20 6.5530298

* Anomolies based on under‐reporting of unmetered uses

metered sales meters billed per capita use %

year production authorized uses leakage

metered sales meters billed per capita use %

year production authorized uses leakage

 

Page 47 of 189

https://www.cityofportorchard.us/
https://www.cityofportorchard.us/


City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-1 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Chapter 4 Water Resource Analysis 

4.1 Water Use Efficiency 
The City of Port Orchard developed a Water Use Efficiency Goal for compliance with the Water 
Use Efficiency Rule of the Municipal Water Law.  The City has adopted the following goals after 
the requisite public process and has developed a plan for monitoring progress toward the 
established goal and reevaluation of water use efficiency measures on an annual basis.  
Additional documentation regarding the Water Use Efficiency Program is provided in 
Appendix C. 

GOAL #1: Reduce Residential Usage by 5 gpd/ERU by 2026 

Over the next six-year period the City of Port Orchard plans to reduce residential water 
consumption by 5 gallons per day per home.  This reduction in residential use will save 
approximately 58 million gallons per year over this six-year period.  The following measures will 
be evaluated and/or implemented to assist in attaining this goal: 

▪ Include water conservation information in the City's annual Consumer Confidence
Report (annual water system report to consumers).

▪ Evaluate the inclusion of inserts as part of the monthly water bills that present
information regarding the importance of water conservation and actions individuals can
implement to reduce their water use.

▪ Investigate a Water Conservation School Outreach Program that may include school
presentations, preparation of curriculum material, water conservation education handout
material, and tours of water system facilities.

▪ Prepare a portable display of water conservation devices and selected material for
display at the City's numerous events and festivals.

▪ Upon request by customers, supply dye tablets for in-home leak detection.

GOAL #2: Continue and Expand Educational Outreach with Customers 

The City has an ongoing public education program to provide information regarding water 
issues.  The main elements of the City’s education outreach include displays at local fairs and 
events, school outreach, and distributing flyers that outline the City’s water use efficiency goals 
at the Public Works Department.  In addition, as a member of the County-wide conservation 
board and the Water Purveyors Association of Kitsap County (WaterPAK), the City is active in 
planning, setting up, and manning the WaterPAK booth at the Kitsap County Fair.  Conservation 
is a principal message at the booth.  WaterPAK’s projects include distributing County-wide 
indoor conservation kits, summer lawn water calendars, and high efficiency toilet (HET) rebates; 
establishing coordination between water purveyors, fire districts, Kitsap County, and state 
agencies; coordinating the development of a groundwater model with USGS; and developing 
the County-wide Coordinated Water System Plan (CWSP).   

The City also maintains a page on their website (https://www.cityofportorchard.us/) which 
describes the benefits of conservation and links to other resources regarding conservation-at-
home measures to help educate its customers about water use efficiency.  The City plans to 
continue to use this website as an educational and public outreach mechanism in the future.  
The use of electronic media for education will allow the City to reduce paper use for its public 
outreach initiatives.  The City is looking to build upon the possibilities for information and 
engagement that the website may offer.   

DRAFT

Page 48 of 189

https://www.cityofportorchard.us/


City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-2 BHC Consultants, LLC 

4.2 Water Conservation Program 
Water conservation is an important and viable means of reducing water system demands and in 
the City of Port Orchard’s 2009 Water System Plan, a target goal of a 5 gpd/ERU reduction in 
demand prior to the year 2015 was established.   
 
The premise of the program established in the previous Water System Plan remains 
unchanged, with the City relying heavily on the conservation messages of larger agencies as a 
means of education and awareness and implementing internal measures conducive to 
stewardship of clean water as a finite resource.  Key elements of the conservation program are 
outlined in the following paragraphs. 

4.2.1 Internal Conservation Measures 

Water meters are a key element of an effective conservation program.  Source meters are 
provided and maintained on all permanent sources and recommended for emergency interties.  
Individual customer meters are required on every connection to the Port Orchard Water system. 

▪ Source Meters - The City of Bremerton (Bremerton) currently has master source meters 
in place at all its well supplies and at the metered intertie with the City.  Meters are 
recommended for emergency interties. 

▪ Water Meters ‐ All connections to the water system are metered.  Irrigation meters are 
available for interested customers and required on new irrigation accounts. 

▪ Hydrant Meters ‐ Hydrant meters are currently required for all water drawn from hydrants 
except that associated with emergency use (such as a fire).  Hydrant permits are 
required in addition to the permit fee, and permit holders are charged for water use. 

▪ Consumption History ‐ Consumption history is provided on bi‐monthly billings to promote 
conservation. 

▪ Non‐Revenue Water ‐ The City’s on‐going maintenance and repair schedule provides for 
routine inspection of facilities and results in the prompt repair of leaks and valve failures 
that contribute to non‐revenue water.  In addition, field crews perform routine 
maintenance and operation in a conscientious manner to reduce the amount of water 
used for these activities.  Hydrant meters are for all non‐emergency water use. 

▪ Leak Detection - The City retains the services of leak detection specialists biennially to 
identify leaks in the system.  No major leaks were identified in the last leak detection 
analysis.  All identified leaks were subsequently repaired. 

▪ Pressure Regulation ‐ The City maintains four separate pressure zones to ensure 
adequate fire flows and pressures are maintained in all areas of the system.  By effective 
management of the pressure zones, water consumption can be reduced by controlling 
pressures at a safe level in accordance with State Department of Health guidelines.  
Isolated areas of high pressure are controlled by individual pressure reducing valves. 

4.2.2 Conservation Program Promotion 

Utilizing public information and promotional materials to encourage conservation is key to any 
conservation strategy.  The City’s annual newsletter is recommended as a way to distribute 
conservation tips and raise awareness.  Water bills also provide an avenue for conservation 
program promotion.  Further program promotion through distribution of conservation materials 
produced by others (i.e., WaterPAK, AWWA, DOH, and Kitsap County PUD) is also performed. 

DRAFT

Page 49 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-3 BHC Consultants, LLC 

4.2.3 Rate Setting to Encourage Conservation 

The City has implemented a water rate schedule to encourage conservation that employs a 
block rate structure whereby water use in excess of established thresholds is priced higher.  
The rate structure provides a threshold for evaluating conservation by various customer types 
and helps determine what type of education and conservation programs will be most useful in 
the future.  Annual review of the impact of any adjustments to the water rate schedule on 
conservation and water use is accomplished as part of overall Water Use Efficiency tracking 
and reporting in accordance with State regulations.  Review of irrigation policies and charges is 
highly recommended.  A summary of current water rates is provided in Chapter 9 of this Plan. 

4.2.4 Encouraging Water Saving Devices 

The City has adopted the most current version of the Uniform Building and Plumbing Codes to 
regulate and enforce the provision of low water use fixtures in all new construction.  Future 
consideration of low water use landscaping provisions in the City Code is recommended. 

4.2.5 Water Efficient Toilets and Appliances 

The City relies on the public messages of regional water purveyors and the appliance industry 
to promote water efficient appliances, especially washing machines.  It is estimated that the vast 
majority of toilets within the City are high flow toilets (toilets installed before 1980 are typically 
5 to 7 gallons/flush, toilets installed between 1980 and 1992 are 3.5 gallons/flush, and toilets 
installed after 1992 are 3.5 to 1.6 gallons/flush).  Residents who take advantage of the program 
receive a cash rebate of $100 on the installation of a low flow toilet. 

4.2.6 Water Reuse and Recycling 

The City and West Sound Utility District jointly own a wastewater treatment plant (Plant) that 
was recently upgraded to increase capacity and generally improve the Plant operations.  The 
two agencies may consider working together to pursue opportunities for reuse of treated effluent 
from the Plant in the future.  All potential water reuse opportunities will be considered with 
respect to Ecology and DOH requirements.  Specific review and analysis of irrigation 
opportunities is recommended. 

4.3 Conservation Program Implementation and Monitoring 
Water Use Efficiency and Conservation program monitoring to quantify and document the 
effectiveness of the conservation program is accomplished through an ongoing data collection 
effort.  In accordance with State requirements, the City achieves this by annually reviewing 
water use records and comparing these records to previous years.  Water use data is kept by 
customer classification in order to identify annual and specific trends for summer and winter 
water use.  This data, coupled with information regarding weather and implementation of any 
new conservation programs, provides a mechanism for monitoring overall water conservation 
efforts.  
 
Continued participation with neighboring purveyors and WaterPAK is required to ensure that 
consistent conservation messages are being delivered throughout the South Kitsap County area 
and to develop new ideas for water conservation mechanisms and programs.  City employees 
are encouraged to participate in water conservation data collection, seminars, and workshops 
that are relevant to their particular field. 

DRAFT

Page 50 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-4 BHC Consultants, LLC 

4.4 Water Rights and Source of Supply Analysis 
This section presents the analyses performed to evaluate the City of Port Orchard water 
system’s ability to meet the needs of current and projected customers of the City.  It is important 
to recognize that while the State Department of Health requires that physically independent 
systems be analyzed separately, the City operates the Port Orchard (City) System and the 
McCormick Woods System under one utility department.  
 
A fundamental component of this Plan is the desire for the City System(s) to operate 
autonomously from neighboring utilities under anticipated operating conditions.  To achieve this, 
interconnection of the two systems should be accomplished as soon as possible.  The analyses 
presented herein identifies the system requirements for the existing systems independently but 
considers ultimate combination of the systems into one entity.   
 
As such, future improvements are based on the plan to connect the 260 and 390 (City) Zones 
and the McCormick 580 Zone as development occurs in the 580 Zone and in the area east of 
the existing McCormick Woods System.  This plan for interconnection is supported by the 
Department of Ecology’s consideration of water rights applications.  Ecology has established 
source of supply requirements and issued water rights for the combined systems servicing the 
City’s overall water service area as established by the CWSP. 
 
The analyses put forth herein utilize current data and the projected growth scenarios 
established in Chapter 2.  The primary focus of the analyses is to determine the type and 
magnitude of improvements required to meet the projected needs of the service area(s), and not 
to determine the specific needs or timing of individual development proposals.  For large scale 
and costly facilities such as source of supply, transmission lines and storage tanks, the ultimate 
service area needs have been considered to ensure general facility improvements will be of 
sufficient capacity and location to meet the City’s future needs.  For distribution system facilities, 
the primary goal is to develop a program to meet the fire flow requirements of current and 
anticipated development, and the regular renewal and replacements to protect the investment of 
ratepayers to the system. 
 
Transmission, storage, and pumping facilities required to connect the City System to the 
McCormick System have been evaluated.  The interconnection is planned to occur along SW 
Sedgwick Road to the south and along the SW Old Clifton Road corridor to the southwest.  
Timing will be dependent on development and construction of a new 580 Zone storage facility, 
possibly as early as 2021.   

4.4.1 Combining of City System and McCormick Woods Water System  

The City’s water system consists of two separate water systems, both owned and operated by 
the City of Port Orchard.  The City System, which includes the 260 Pressure Zone and the 
390 Pressure Zone serves most of the City limits, and the McCormick Woods System 
580 Pressure Zone serves the McCormick Woods area in the western portion of the City.  As of 
December 2017, the two systems served approximately 3,132 connections in the City System 
and 814 connections in the McCormick Woods System.  
 
The City is currently developing a long-range program for interconnecting the City’s main water 
system (the 260 and 390 Pressure Zones) with facilities serving the McCormick Woods System 
(the 580 Pressure Zone and a future 660 Pressure Zone).  This will allow for the two existing 
systems to be combined under one water system identification number. 
 

DRAFT

Page 51 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-5 BHC Consultants, LLC 

The McCormick System is in the western portion of the City and eventually will be connected to 
the City System from new transmission mains along SW Sedgwick Road and along SW Old 
Clifton Road.  The City also plans to install PRV connections from the 580 Zone to the 390 Zone 
via the new SW Old Clifton Road transmission main and at the proposed 390 to 580 pump 
station near SW Sedgwick Road. 
 
All of the water rights currently serving the City System and the McCormick Woods Water 
System meet the statutory definition of “municipal water supply purposes.”  Pursuant to the 
Municipal Water Law of 2003, the effect of Department of Health approval of the City’s last 
water system plan in 2009, and the continuing effect of approval of this current Plan, is that: (1) 
these water rights are considered valid and in good standing; (2) they are exempt from statutory 
relinquishment for nonuse; and (3) they can be used throughout the combined Port Orchard 
Water Service Area for municipal water supply purposes.  See Figure 1-4, Water Service Area 
Map.  

4.4.2 Water Rights  

The scope and validity of municipal water rights has become one of the most critical issues for 
planning a water system’s future expansion.  State-issued water rights have become increasing 
difficult to secure as a result of instream flow protection rules and legal precedents that limit the 
availability of surface and groundwater in order to protect senior instream flow water rights.  This 
puts a premium on properly assessing existing water rights.  The City hired water rights attorney 
Thomas M. Pors to research its water rights and prepare the water rights self-assessment for 
this 2020 Water System Plan update.  Mr. Pors’ assessment is reflected in this section, 
including the contents of Table 4-1, and in the self-assessment forms included in Appendix C. 
 
As demonstrated in Section 4.4.3, the City’s water rights are adequate to meet current water 
demands and projected demands through 2022.  With approval of the new water rights and 
water right change applications described in Section 4.4.3, the City’s water rights and new 
Well 12 and Well 13 sources should be adequate to meet projected demands through 2040.  

Primary and Supplemental Water Rights 

The City’s water rights are noted as either primary (additive) or supplemental (non-additive) 
water rights, and where appropriate these interpretations are explained in footnotes to Table 4-1 
and/or in the text below.  Generally, primary water rights are additive to pre-existing rights and 
can be used to the full extent of the authorized quantities, regardless of the use being made 
under other water rights.  The use of supplemental water rights is conditional based on the 
language in the water right decision documents and is often dependent on the use being made 
under prior rights.  In most cases, supplemental water rights can be used as an alternative 
source for previously issued water rights, and do not increase the total authorized annual 
quantity of water allowed to be withdrawn and used by the City.  A water right can be partially 
supplemental and partially primary.  

4.4.2.1 City Water System Water Rights  

The City has five post-Water Code water rights dating back to 1955 allowing the use of wells to 
provide municipal water service within its original service area.  Water rights for earlier sources 
of supply, such as Wells 1, 2, and 3, were either never obtained or were not maintained in good 
standing by the City and are not discussed at length in this assessment.  

DRAFT

Page 52 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-6 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Water Right Claim G1-000911CL was filed by the City for Well 5, in the amount of 51.3 gallons 
per minute (gpm) and 82.8 acre-feet/year (AFY).  Well 5 provides limited artesian flow into the 
stilling basin at City Hall, and the wellhead is located under the City Hall parking lot.  A water 
right claim is the essential filing to preserve a pre-code vested water right under the Water 
Rights Registration Act of 1967.  Unless or until the claim is adjudicated in superior court, 
however, the claim filing is not determinative of the scope and validity of the water right.  Claim 
G1-000911CL for Well 5 was acknowledged by the Department of Ecology in the change 
decision for Well 9 (CG1-25019C).  In that decision, dated March 29, 2004, Ecology tentatively 
determined that, as of 1987, the City possessed water rights totaling 1,651.3 gpm and 
1,852.8 AFY of primary rights, which includes the full quantity of Claim G1-000911CL as a 
primary right.  This claim could be invalid based on the date listed in the claim for first using 
water (1946), which is after the June 6, 1945 effective date of the Ground Water Code, Chapter 
90.44 RCW.  However, the date in the claim could also be a mistake that can be corrected by 
the City through a claim amendment, if and when necessary.  In later water right decisions for 
Permits G1-26119, G1-26447, G1-26454, and G1-26729), Ecology did not mention Claim 
G1-000911CL and appeared to have miss-counted the City’s existing water rights by omitting 
the annual quantity of this claim.  That is not determinative of the City’s water rights quantity, 
because Ecology has no legal authority to adjudicate existing water rights.  
 
Certificate 3334-A (G1-*04166C), with a priority date of November 17, 1955, authorizes Well 6 
and is a primary (additive) water right for 350 gpm and 560 AFY.  Well 6 provides artesian flow 
into a stilling basin and provides one of the City’s primary sources for the 260 Zone that serves 
downtown and the City’s lower elevation residential areas, along with Well 7.  
 
Certificate G1-24586C, with a priority date of December 24, 1984, authorizes Well 7 and is a 
primary (additive) water right for 750 gpm and 1210 AFY.  Well 7 provides artesian flow to the 
clear well at City Hall and is the principal source of supply for the 260 Zone.  
 
Certificate G1-25019C, with a priority date of May 29, 1987, authorizes Wells 8 and 9 for up to 
500 gpm and 560 AFY, but these quantities are supplemental to Certificates 3334-A and 
G1-24586C, and claim G1-000911CL.  Wells 8 and 9 supply the High (390) Zone with installed 
pumps.  Well 9 was added to this water right pursuant to a 2001 change application that was 
approved by the Department of Ecology (Ecology) on March 29, 2004.  The report of 
examination for this change approval included Ecology’s tentative determination that the scope 
and validity of the City’s existing water rights as of 1987 was a total annual quantity of 
1,852.8 AFY, thus including Claim G1-000911CL as a valid primary water right.  
 
Permit G1-26119P, with a priority date of March 22, 1991, authorizes Well 10 for up to 500 gpm 
and 806 AFY, but these quantities are partially supplemental to existing water rights.  See 
Section 4.4.2.3, “Aggregate Cap Condition.”  In 2007, the City applied for additional 
instantaneous and annual quantity for Well 10, to maximize the utility of drilling a large, deep 
aquifer municipal well, and the application was assigned number G1-28476.  The City has not 
completed this well due to updated engineering plans for the water system, and in 2016 it 
applied to Ecology to add Well 13, located adjacent to the intersection of Bethel Road SE and 
SE Sedgwick Road, to both Permit G1-26119P and Application G1-28476.  Proposed Well 13 is 
discussed further below in Section 4.4.3.  The development schedule for Permit G1-26119P 
requires completion of construction by December 31, 2028 and full beneficial use by 
December 31, 2030.  The City expects that these deadlines will be extended consistent with this 
Water System Plan update when the pending applications are processed.  
 

DRAFT

Page 53 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-7 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Permit G1-26729P, with a priority date of September 14, 1992, authorizes Well 4 for its artesian 
flow to the clear well at City Hall, in the amount of 50 gpm and 80 AFY.  This quantity is partially 
supplemental to existing water rights.  See Section 4.4.2.3, “Aggregate Cap Condition.”  The 
development schedule for Permit G1-26119P requires completion of construction by 
December 31, 2028 and full beneficial use by December 31, 2030.  Because Well 4 is already 
constructed and in use by the City, a Proof of Appropriation form can be filed for this water right 
at any time, which starts the process for issuance of a water right certificate.  
 
Other Water Right Claims.  In 1970, the City filed three water right claims for Wells 5, 6 and 7.  
Claim G1-000911CL for Well 5 is described above.  The claims for Wells 6 and 7 were 
unnecessary because these sources were authorized by properly issued permits and the priority 
date for these sources is after the June 6, 1945 effective date of the Ground Water Code.  The 
claim filings are included in Appendix C, but they will not be included in the Water Right 
Self-Assessment unless new information is discovered by the City relating to their separate 
validity as vested water right claims.   
 
“Tremont” Claim G1-100145, was timely filed by the City in 1974 for a well that was used to 
irrigate the Tremont Street Park and Playground.  On May 24, 1976, the Council voted to 
change the name from Tremont Park to William (Bill) Van Zee Memorial Park.  The well is 
currently not in use and believed to be decommissioned.  While the claim was filed on a short 
form typically used for exempt well uses, it nevertheless authorizes continuation of this irrigation 
usage until the claim is adjudicated or the City seeks to change the water right to another usage 
or point of withdrawal.  Municipal wells used to irrigate parks and playgrounds fall within the 
statutory definition of “municipal water supply purposes” at RCW 90.03.015(4).  This means that 
the Tremont claim is not subject to relinquishment for nonuse and could be integrated into the 
drinking water system in the future, especially if the City ceases irrigating the Tremont Street 
Park and Playground or replaces the groundwater supply with reclaimed water.  Because this 
source is not connected to the City drinking water system and no quantity is listed for this water 
right in the claim form, it is listed separately in Table 4-1 without a quantity.   

4.4.2.2 McCormick Water System Water Rights  

The McCormick Woods Water Company (MWWC) was created by the developers of McCormick 
Woods PUD to serve the 1,300-acre residential development and golf course in the southwest 
section of the City.  In 1986, the City acquired the MWWC, including its wells, pumps, storage 
facilities, water mains, water rights, and water right applications, and took over its operation.  
The City’s last two water system comprehensive plans described the process of integrating the 
MWWC into the City Water System.  As a result of the City’s acquisition of the MWWC water 
rights, there is now a common service area and place of use for all the City and MWWC water 
rights.  That service area and place of use may expand or contract with Department of Health 
approved changes to the City’s water service area map.  See RCW 90.03.386(2).  
 
Permit G1-24437P, with a priority date of January 24, 1984, authorizes MC Wells 1, 2, and 3, up 
to 600 gpm and 450 AFY for municipal supply and irrigation of 100 acres, and is a primary 
(additive) water right.  These shallow aquifer wells supply the 580 Zone tank.  The permit 
document provides that 300 AFY of this right was intended to serve 1,200 homes, but this 
notation is not a limitation on the number of homes or other connections the City can serve with 
this water right, by operation of the Municipal Water Law at RCW 90.03.260(5).  In 2014 the City 
filed a Notice of Compliance form with Ecology adding Well 11 (formerly known as MC Well 5) 
to this water right as an additional point of withdrawal, but Well 11 has not yet been completed 
with a pump or connected to the water system.  A Showing of Compliance for Well 11 is 
included in Appendix C.  In 2016 the City filed a change application to add Well 12 to this water 
right in order to consolidate the McCormick Woods area water supply from one or two deep 

DRAFT

Page 54 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-8 BHC Consultants, LLC 

aquifer wells in proximity to upper zone storage facilities.  The change application is discussed 
with other pending applications in Section 4.4.3, below.  
 
On March 3, 2017, Ecology approved an extension of the development schedule for Permit 
G1-24437P to February 15, 2022.  It is expected that a further extension of this development 
schedule will be approved when Ecology approves the City pending change applications.  
 
Permit G1-26454P, with a priority date of January 17, 1992, authorizes Well 11 for an additional 
150 gpm and 242 AFY of withdrawals from the McCormick well field for municipal purposes, 
increasing the total withdrawals from this wellfield to a maximum of 750 gpm and 692 AFY.  This 
additional quantity is partially supplemental to existing water rights.  See Section 4.4.2.3, 
“Aggregate Cap Condition.”  A condition of this permit is to deactivate the shallow MC Wells 1, 
2, and 3 within 1 year of activation of the new well to be completed in the Sea Level Aquifer (or 
deeper).  Well 11 has been drilled, but not completed as a production well or connected to the 
City’s water system.  In 2016 the City filed a change application to add Well 12 to this water 
right – the application is discussed with other pending applications in Section 4.4.3, below.  The 
development schedule for Permit G1-26454P requires completion of construction by 
December 31, 2028 and full beneficial use by December 31, 2030.  It is expected that a further 
extension of this development schedule will be approved when Ecology approves the City’s 
pending change applications. 
 
Permit G1-26447P, with a priority date of January 17, 1992, authorizes Well MC 4B for up to 
400 gpm and 645 AFY for both municipal purposes and irrigation of the McCormick Woods Golf 
Course.  This quantity is partially supplemental to existing water rights.  See Section 4.4.2.3, 
“Aggregate Cap Condition.”  The well is located on golf course property, but the water right was 
assigned to the City in 2015.  In 2016 the City filed a change application to administratively 
divide the water right into its irrigation and municipal parts, and to add Wells 11 and 12 to the 
municipal water right.  This application is discussed with other pending applications in 
Section 4.4.3, below.  The municipal portion of this primary (additive) water right is 420 AFY, 
based on the total irrigation demand for the golf course.  However, because the golf course 
irrigation demand is considered part of the City water supply, the total instantaneous and annual 
quantity is used in Table 4-1 and in the self-assessment forms in Appendix C.   

4.4.2.3 Aggregate Cap Condition in Permits G1-26119P, G1-26447, G1-26454P, 
and G1-26729P 

When Ecology investigates a municipal water right application, it must tentatively determine the 
scope and validity of that municipality’s existing water rights in order to decide how much 
additional water may be needed to serve future water demands.  Ecology’s authority to make 
tentative determinations regarding existing water rights is limited, and does not include the 
authority to diminish or “adjudicate” pre-existing water rights, because only the superior courts 
of Washington State have that authority, Rettkowski v. Ecology, 122 Wn.2d 219, 227, 858 P.2d 
232 (1993).  The four most-recently issued of the City’s water rights include what is commonly 
known as an “aggregate cap” condition, which is a type of tentative determination by Ecology 
regarding the scope of existing water rights along with the water right just granted.  This 
aggregate cap condition is essentially a supplemental water right limitation on the use of the 
water rights thus granted, however, it is legally questionable whether the scope of pre-existing 
water rights can be limited by such a condition.  The identical aggregate cap condition for these 
four permits states:  
 

“The annual quantity of water authorized represents a portion of the total water rights 
owned by the City of Port Orchard.  The total annual quantity withdrawn by the City of Port 
Orchard under G1-26119, G1-26447, G1-26454 and G1-26729 shall not exceed 

DRAFT

Page 55 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-9 BHC Consultants, LLC 

1,308 acre-feet per year.  The total annual quantity withdrawn from all City of Port Orchard 
sources shall not exceed 3,528 acre-feet per year.” 

 
The accompanying text in the investigative report for these water right decisions explains 
Ecology’s basis for this annual quantity limitation, as follows: 
 

“The total quantity of water allocated in the four concurrent water right decisions 
(G1-26119, G1-26447, G1-26454 and G1-26729) was determined by estimating future 
water demand within the City of Port Orchard service area.  According to their estimates 
as part of their on-going revision of their Water System Plan (PACE 2005), the City of Port 
Orchard projects it will supply water to a population of 26,225 by 2030.  The water usage 
rate based on historical data is 115 gallons per day per person.  Using this average rate, 
the City is expected to require 3,378 acre-feet per year.  Additionally, there is the demand 
of 150 acre-feet per year for irrigation of McCormick Woods Golf Course.  Therefore, the 
total annual demand for the City in 2030 is estimated to be 3,528 acre-feet.  The City of 
Port Orchard controls 2,220 acre-feet of existing certified water rights.  The estimated 
future usage of 3,528 acre-feet per year represents an anticipated increase of 1,308 acre-
feet per year.” 

 
Thus, these four permits increased the City’s total primary annual quantity by 1,308 acre-feet 
per year.  
 
In Table 4-3 of the reports of examination for these water rights, Ecology listed the City’s 
existing water rights and applications, including Claim G1-000911CL, but did not include the 
associated 82.8 acre-feet per year in the existing water right total.  The City continues to claim 
the validity of Claim G1-000911CL, but neither the City nor Ecology can determine the validity of 
this claim without a superior court adjudication.  The City recognizes that Ecology’s failure to 
include this 82.8 AFY in the calculation of existing water rights may have resulted in Ecology’s 
approval of an additional 82.8 AFY of primary water rights in its approval of Permits G1-26119, 
G1-26447, G1-26454, and G1-26729 with a combined total annual quantity of 1,308 AFY.  The 
difference between the City’s position and Ecology’s position is a different priority date for a 
small portion of the City’s water rights, and a corresponding decrease in the City’s mitigation 
obligation under Permits G1-26119, G1-26447, G1-26454, and G1-26729.  The City expects to 
resolve this difference with Ecology in its processing of the new applications and change 
applications described in Section 4.4.3, below.  

4.4.2.4 Interties 

Pursuant to Interlocal Agreements between the cities of Port Orchard and Bremerton 
(Appendix F), Port Orchard purchases wholesale water from the City of Bremerton through a 
16-inch transmission main and intertie on Anderson Hill Road.  The intertie allows water to be 
supplied by either system to the other, but in practice the City of Port Orchard has been 
purchasing water from Bremerton to supply growth in the McCormick Woods area for over 
twenty years.  The most recent update to the Interlocal Agreement (dated November 2019), 
provides for the sale of Port Orchard’s existing 580 Zone tank, the 16-inch transmission main, 
and associated assets to Bremerton.  Bremerton has agreed to supply water to Port Orchard 
during the affective dates of the agreement, at a rate of 750 gpm.  Once Port Orchard has 
constructed a new 580 Zone tank, Well 11 and future Well 12 are online, and constructed 
necessary transmission and distribution infrastructure, the Bremerton and Port Orchard systems 
can operate as separate systems.  Port Orchard and Bremerton also agree to consider an 
emergency intertie agreement at the conclusion of the current agreement.  The City intends to 
reduce or eliminate its reliance on the Bremerton intertie with construction of the Well 12 and 
Well 13 projects and approval of the pending applications described in Section 4.4.3.  

DRAFT

Page 56 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-10 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Table 4-1  
Port Orchard Water Rights  

Permit Certificate or 
Claim # 

Source 
Name/Number 

Supplemental 
Limitation 

Water Right Quantity 

Instantaneous 
Flow Rate (Qi)  

Annual Volume 
(Qa) 

Supp/Primary 

G1-*04166C 

(Cert. 3334-A) 
PO 6 No 350 560 

G1-24586C PO 7 No 750 1,210 

G1-25019C PO 8 and 9 Yes1 500 560 

G1-26119P PO 10 Partial2 500 211.5/594.5 

G1-26729P PO 4 Partial2 50 11/59 

G1-24437P McCormick 1, 
2, 3, PO 113 

No 600 450 

G1-26454P PO 113 Partial2 150 63/179 

G1-26447P(A) McCormick 4B Partial2 400 169.5/475.5 

Claim G1-000911CL Well 54 No 51.3 82.8 

TOTAL MUNICIPAL QUANTITY  3,351.3 3,528.0 

Interties 

City of Bremerton 
(12/17/2001 interlocal agreement) 

 unspecified 178 

City of Bremerton 
(12/17/2001 interlocal agreement) 

 750  

Applications 

G1-28162A PO 12  500 560 

G1-28476A PO 13  750 1,210 

Other Water Rights 

Tremont Claim 
#100145 

Tremont Well 
Irrigation of 

Parks 
unknown unknown 

Notes: 
1) The annual quantity (560 AFY) of G1-25019C is supplemental to existing rights from 

Cert. 3334-A, G1-24586C, and G1-000911CL, but provides the City with additional pumping 
capacity. 

2) The aggregate cap limitation on Permits G1-26119, G1-26447, G1-26454, and G1-26729 
grants the City an additional 1,308 acre-feet per year of primary rights for the four water 
rights combined, and limits the total annual quantity withdrawn from all City of Port Orchard 
sources, which “shall not exceed 3,528 acre-feet per year.”  For purposes of Table 4-1 and 
the City’s water right self-assessment, the 1308 AFY of new primary Qa is apportioned 
among the four water rights. 

3)  MC Well 5 was renamed PO Well 11; it was intended to replace MC wells 1, 2 & 3, with a 
combined Qi of 750 gpm and a combined Qa of 672 AFY but is not online at this time. 

4) Because of the stated initial use date after 1945, Ecology regards this claim as “possibly 
invalid” and did not include its Qi or Qa in its calculation of the City’s total water rights in the 
most recent (2006) ROEs.  The City counts this quantity as a valid primary right and 
includes it in the total annual quantity. 

 

DRAFT

Page 57 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-11 BHC Consultants, LLC 

4.4.3 Pending Water Right Change Applications and New Applications 

For many years, the City has experienced declining yields in its older wells.  New wells have 
been drilled to augment the City’s supply, but their location in relation to proposed development 
presents challenges with transmission lines, storage, and substantial pumping lifts.  The City 
has two new well projects designed to add high-yield, deep aquifer wells at higher elevations on 
each side of the City’s dual-lobed service area, which will facilitate a more efficient gravity 
distribution system than relying on wells located at or near sea level.  Other objectives are to 
increase system-wide storage capacity and security with newer wells and pumps, to reduce 
reliance on the Bremerton Interties, and to source groundwater from deeper aquifers to improve 
base flow recharge to area streams.  These well projects rely on a combination of new water 
right applications and change applications to shift pumping from older sources located at the 
bottom of the system or shallow wells to new deep wells located at the top of the system.  
 
Well 12 Project.  Application G1-28162 was filed by the City in 2002 to provide an additional 
source for the expanding McCormick Woods area next to the City’s 450,000-gallon 
580 Pressure Zone storage tank.  The application seeks an additional 1,000 gpm and 
1,080 AFY from the sea-level or deeper aquifer.  The City also filed several change applications 
in 2016 to add Well 12 as an authorized point of withdrawal for the McCormick Woods wellfield 
water rights and Well 11, including Permits G1-24437P (MC Wells 1, 2, 3), G1-26454P 
(Well 11), and G1-26447P (MC Well 4B).  A preliminary permit has been issued by Ecology to 
allow Well 12 to be drilled and pump tested, including conditions for hydrogeologic 
investigations.  Drilling and testing activities are underway.  Approval of these applications 
would enable the City to convert MC Wells 1, 2, and 3 to observation and emergency backup 
wells.  The overall effect of moving to a deeper sub-sea level aquifer in the same body of public 
groundwater is to diminish the magnitude of base flow capture from area streams, while 
possibly expanding the regional extent of a smaller magnitude of impacts.  The City is 
developing a mitigation plan to address any modeled impacts to streamflow from the change to 
a deeper aquifer to be tapped by Well 12.  
 
Well 13 Project.  Application G1-28476 was filed by the City in 2007 to increase the capacity of 
Well 10 for an additional 1,000 gpm and 1,600 AFY.  In 2016, the City amended this application 
to change the proposed well site from Well 10, located at sea level near the shoreline, to 
Well 13 located in the Bethel area within the NE1/4, NE1/4 of Section 11, T23N, R1E, W.M and 
near the City’s existing Sedgwick Reservoir.  The City also filed several change applications to 
add Well 13 as an authorized point of withdrawal for Cert. 3334-A (Well 6), G1-24586C (Well 7), 
and G1-26119P (Well 10).  A preliminary permit has been issued by Ecology to allow Well 13 to 
be drilled and pump tested, including conditions for hydrogeologic investigations.  Drilling and 
testing activities are currently under way.  Approval of these applications would enable the City 
to cap and monitor Wells 6, 7, and 10 as observation and emergency backup wells.  The overall 
effect of moving to a deeper sub-sea level aquifer in the same body of public groundwater is to 
diminish the magnitude of base flow capture from area streams, while possibly expanding the 
regional extent of a smaller magnitude of impacts.  The City is developing a mitigation plan to 
address any modeled impacts to streamflow from the change to a deeper aquifer to be tapped 
by Well 13.  

System Analysis 

Table 4-2 summarizes the existing and anticipated available supply and water rights by 2037.  
Table 4-2 includes Wells 11, 12, and 13, which are not yet online as discussed earlier in this 
chapter.  
 

DRAFT

Page 58 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-12 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Table 4-2  
Instantaneous Sources of Supply by Zone and Year (gpm) 

Source Available by Active Capacity 2017 2023 2029 2039 

260 Zone  1,793             -    - - 

390 Zone  443       1,943  1,943 1,943 

Subtotal City  2,236       1,943  1,943 1,943 

580 Zone  888          750  750 750 

660 Zone  -       1,000  1,000 1,000 

Subtotal McCormick   888       1,750  1,750 1,750 

Total  3,124       3,693  3,693 3,693 

Source Available by Rights 2017 2023 2027 2037 

260 Zone 2,500 - - - 

390 Zone 500 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Subtotal City 3,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 

580 Zone 1,100 750 750 750 

660 Zone - 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Subtotal McCormick  1,100 1,750 1,750 1,750 

Total 4,100 3,750 3,750 3,750 

Notes: 
1) Installed Capacity assumes capacity upgrades or water rights transfers to Wells 11, 

12, and 13 will be accomplished to attain withdrawals up to permitted water rights. 
2) The average capacity of Wells 8 and 9 is included in this table and used for analysis 

as the water right does not allow for the wells to be run simultaneously. 
3) Instantaneous water rights and capacity associated with the Bremerton Interties are 

included in 2017 only. Intertie sources include 850 gpm into the 260 Zone and 350 
gpm into the 580 Zone. By interlocal agreement, the 580 Zone intertie capacity was 
increased to 750 gpm in November 2019. 

 
Table 4-3 presents a source analyses for the water system(s) through the year 2039 and 
focuses on installed capacity.  System reliability is further ensured by not including emergency 
interties in the source analyses.  This approach is based on the desire to operate the system 
independent of neighboring jurisdictions.  The supply surplus/deficit was assessed under the 
three criteria established by DOH discussed earlier in this chapter and summarized below: 

▪ Source capacity capable of supplying MDD (required) 

▪ Source capacity capable replenishing fire flow storage (FSS) during MDD over 72 hours 
(recommended) 

▪ Source capacity capable of supplying MDD with 18 hours of pumping (recommended) 
 
The source capacity shown in Table 4-3 includes the existing source capacity under 2019.  In 
subsequent years, the source capacity listed in Table 4-3 reflects the City’s plans to incorporate 
new sources, obtain additional water rights, transfer existing water rights, and transition the 
existing interties with the City of Bremerton to emergency interties.  Supply sources in 2023 and 
all subsequent years include Well 11 (drilled but not online), Well 12 (under design), and 

DRAFT

Page 59 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-13 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Well 13 (under construction) but do not include supply from McCormick Wells 1 and 3, City 
Wells 6 and 7, or Bremerton.   
 
In 2019 the existing source of supply is sufficient to meet all required and recommended criteria 
in the City System (Table 4-3).  However, only the required criteria is met in the McCormick 
System in 2017.  Once the two systems are connected, the current surplus of instantaneous 
supply in the City System can be shared with the McCormick Woods System.  Construction of a 
390 Zone to 580 Zone Booster Pump Station and a 580 Zone to 390 Zone PRV in association 
with the anticipated Stetson Heights Development will connect the two systems and is 
anticipated to occur within the next 6-years.  Thus, the total supply for both systems is expected 
to be available to either system by 2023.  In order to meet both DOH supply recommendations 
described above, the City may require developers to construct a 580 to 660 Booster Pump 
Station or obtain additional 660 Zone supply; these improvements are not required to meet the 
minimum DOH supply criteria.   
 
  

DRAFT

Page 60 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-14 BHC Consultants, LLC 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 
 
 

DRAFT

Page 61 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-15 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Table 4-3  
Source Analysis (By Capacity) 

Year Zone MDD (MGD) MDD (gpm) FSS (gpm) 
MDD + FSS 

(gpm) 
Existing 
(gpm)1 

75% Existing 
(gpm)4 

Surplus (Deficit) (gpm) 

MDD Supplied in 24 
Hours (Required) 

MDD + Fire Flow 
Replenished Over 72 

Hours (Recommended) 

MDD Replenished with 
18 Hours of 

Pumping/Day 
(Recommended) 

2017 

City-260 0.71 493  42 535  1,793  1,345  1,300  1,258  810  

City-390 0.87 603  42 644  443  443  (160) (202) (202) 

City-Subtotal 1.58 1,096  42 1,137  2,236  1,787  1,140  1,098  650  

McCormick-580 0.89 619  52 671  888  666  269  217  (5) 

McCormick-660 0.00 0  0 0  0  0  0  0  0  

McCormick-Bremerton 5 0.53 368  42 409  0  0  (368) (409) (409) 

McCormick Subtotal 1.42 986  52 1,039  888  666  (98) (151) (373) 

2023 

City-260 0.72 497  42 539  0  0  (497) (539) (539) 

City-390 0.88 608  42 650  1,943  1,568  1,335  1,293  918  

City-Subtotal 1.59 1,105  42 1,147  1,943  1,568  837  796  421  

McCormick-580 1.79 1,245  52 1,297  750  563  (495) (547) (735) 

McCormick-660 0.59 409  83 493  1,000  750  591  507  257  

McCormick Subtotal 2.38 1,654  83 1,738  1,750  1,313  96  12  (425) 

Total 3.97 2,759  83 2,843  3,693  2,769  933  850  (73) 

2029 

City-260 0.74 514  42 555  0  0  (514) (555) (555) 

City-390 0.90 628  42 669  1,943  1,568  1,315  1,273  898  

City-Subtotal 1.64 1,141  42 1,183  1,943  1,568  801  759  384  

McCormick-580 2.02 1,403  52 1,455  750  563  (653) (705) (893) 

McCormick-660 0.94 654  83 737  1,000  750  346  263  13  

McCormick Subtotal 2.96 2,057  83 2,140  1,750  1,313  (307) (390) (828) 

Total 4.61 3,198  83 3,282  3,693  2,769  494  411  (512) 

2039 

City-260 0.81 566  42 608  0  0  (566) (608) (608) 

City-390 1.00 692  42 733  1,943  1,568  1,251  1,209  834  

City-Subtotal 1.81 1,258  42 1,299  1,943  1,568  685  643  268  

McCormick-580 2.11 1,466  52 1,518  750  563  (716) (768) (955) 

McCormick-660 1.10 761  42 803  1,000  750  239  197  (53) 

McCormick Subtotal 3.21 2,227  52 2,279  1,750  1,313  (477) (529) (966) 

Total 5.02 3,484  52 3,537  3,693  2,769  208  156  (767) 

Notes: 
1) Source Analysis is based on active capacities indicated in Tables 6‐1 and 6‐2 and include emergency supplies from Bremerton under the 2017 scenario only.  Sources include supply from Wells 11, 12 and 13 

under all future scenarios.  Wells 11, 12 and 13 have been drilled and are undergoing testing.  Water rights applications for Wells 12 and 13 are pending. 
2) The planned connection of the City system and the McCormick system anticipated within the 10-year planning horizon will allow supply from the 390 Zone to be transferred to the McCormick Woods system and 

vice versa. 
3) The estimates put forth herein are not a guarantee of ERU’s to any development, property owner or specific area of the City. 
4) Well 8/9 was assumed to be capable of operating for 24 hours a day hours of pumping as the wells are redundant and can be alternated. 
5) Demands from Bremerton (McCormick North) on the 580 Zone were included only in the existing scenario.  The two systems are planned to be separated within the next 6-years. 

DRAFT

Page 62 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-16 BHC Consultants, LLC 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 
 
 

DRAFT

Page 63 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-17 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Figure 4-1 presents the projected MDD for both systems and the existing available 
instantaneous supply over the 20-year planning horizon.  As discussed previously, the City 
currently supplies a portion of Bremerton’s water service area through the McCormick Woods 
System.  The MDD for the McCormick Woods System only and for the McCormick Woods 
System and Bremerton combined are shown on Figure 4-1.  However, the Bremerton demands 
are believed to be applicable only during the near term as it is anticipated that Bremerton will 
serve this area directly within the 20-year planning horizon.   
 
As noted on Table 4-3 and Figure 4-1, the McCormick Woods System MDD are approaching 
instantaneous supply capacity.  Source deficiencies in the 580 Zone are due to development 
within McCormick Woods, McCormick West, Stetson Heights, and McCormick East.  While the 
current (November 2019) Bremerton intertie agreement with the McCormick Woods System is 
for 750 gpm in emergency situations, Bremerton is capable of supplying up to 1,800 gpm to the 
580 Zone.  Regardless, the City recognizes implementation of supplemental sources and 
separation of the two systems is a priority.  Maintaining an emergency supply connection 
between the Bremerton 580 Zone source and the Port Orchard 580 Zone is planned. 
 

 
Figure 4-1  McCormick Woods and City Systems MDD and Existing Supply 

 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
9

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
1

2
0
2
2

2
0
2
3

2
0
2
4

2
0
2
5

2
0
2
6

2
0
2
7

2
0
2
8

2
0
2
9

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
1

2
0
3
2

2
0
3
3

2
0
3
4

2
0
3
5

2
0
3
6

2
0
3
7

2
0
3
8

2
0
3
9

2
0
4
0

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

e
m

a
n

d
 (

g
p

m
)

Year

McCormick MDD

City MDD

Existing City
Capacity

Existing
McCormick
CapacityDRAFT

Page 64 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-18 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Figure 4-2 presents the projected MDD and the anticipated new sources of supply for both 
systems.  Bremerton customer demands currently served by Port Orchard are not shown on 
Figure 4-2, as these customers are anticipated to be served directly from Bremerton within the 
6-year planning horizon and before the McCormick Woods and City Systems are connected. 
 

 
Figure 4-2  Port Orchard MDD and Existing and Projected Supply 

 
Wells 8 and 9  are the only existing sources of supply that are anticipated to be maintained over 
the 20-year planning horizon; the average capacity of these two sources is shown at the bottom 
of the graph in gray.  The proposed additional sources are stacked on top of the existing 
sources to be maintained in Figure 4-2.  As identified on Figure 4-2, the existing sources of 
supply are sufficient to support the connected systems until 2022.  If all proposed source 
changes are approved and constructed by the City, a deficiency of supply is projected to occur 
in 2026 and a deficiency of approximately 550 gpm is anticipated at the end of the 20-year 
planning horizon.  If not all pending water rights are approved, the City will face a source of 
supply deficiency before 2026.  Additional supply may be obtained by procuring water rights for 
Wells 8 and 9 which allow for simultaneous pumping and by rehabilitating Well 8 it is capable of 
reaching the existing instantaneous water right of 500 gpm. 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
9

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
1

2
0
2
2

2
0
2
3

2
0
2
4

2
0
2
5

2
0
2
6

2
0
2
7

2
0
2
8

2
0
2
9

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
1

2
0
3
2

2
0
3
3

2
0
3
4

2
0
3
5

2
0
3
6

2
0
3
7

2
0
3
8

2
0
3
9

2
0
4
0

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

e
m

a
n

d
 (

g
p

m
)

Year

Well 12

Well 13

Well 11

Future Supply
- No  New
Sources

COPO MDD

Existing
System
Capacity

DRAFT

Page 65 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-19 BHC Consultants, LLC 

4.5 Water Right Evaluation 
The existing and pending water rights for the City are listed in Table 1-1.  The City’s primary 
water source is groundwater.  Groundwater sources are currently supplemented with supply 
from Bremerton, though plans are in place to terminate use of Bremerton water.  The location of 
each well is identified on Figure 1-2 and the depth provided in the Water Facilities Inventory 
Report Form in Appendix H.  The City has water rights certificates and permits for 13 wells, 7 of 
which are currently in service.  All wells excluding Well 4B are used for domestic water service.  
Well 4B provides irrigation water to the McCormick Land Co.  Total instantaneous authorized 
rights for the 13 wells total 3,513 gpm.  Primary water rights allow withdrawal of 3,610 acre-feet 
per year.  As discussed previously in this chapter, the City has pending water rights applications 
for proposed Wells 12 and 13.  
 
In 2017 the City produced approximately 800 acre-feet of water from the 4 domestic water wells 
currently in use.  This was less than a quarter of the City’s certificated annual water rights of 
3,528 acre-feet per year.  While the City System currently has sufficient instantaneous supply, 
the McCormick Woods System is using nearly all of the available supply.  Existing and 
forecasted water rights are summarized in Table 4-2.  Projected demands for each system and 
for the combined system are presented in Figures 4-1 and 4-2, respectively. 

4.6 Water System Reliability Analysis 
In accordance with DOH’s Water System Reliability Handbook, the three components required 
to summarize system reliability are source reliability, water right adequacy, and facility reliability.   

4.6.1 Source Reliability 

Future sources of supply (Well 11, 12, and 13) will tap into the deep sub-sea level aquifer and 
will resolve multiple public health and safety issues related to aging water system infrastructure 
by allowing the replacement of old wells and siting of new high-capacity, deep aquifer wells at 
the top of the system.  This will both extend the useful life of the City’s wells for more than a 
generation and provide system reliability and cost efficiencies.   

4.6.2 Water Right Adequacy 

Water right adequacy is discussed in Sections 4.4 and 4.5 of this Plan. 

4.6.3 Facility Reliability 

A summary of facility reliability is included in Chapter 3 of the Plan. 

4.6.4 Water Shortage Response Planning 

The City of Port Orchard’s Water Shortage Response is discussed in Section 6.9. 
 
  

DRAFT

Page 66 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-20 BHC Consultants, LLC 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 
 

DRAFT

Page 67 of 189



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

   Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7A Meeting Date: 
 
August 10, 2021 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving and Prepared by: Mark Dorsey, P.E. 
 Adopting the 2021-2030 Water Use  Public Works Director 
 Efficiency Goals and Performance      Atty Routing No.: 366922.0013 – Water 
 Measures Atty Review Date: July 7, 2021 

 
Summary: Earlier this evening, a Public Hearing was held to take testimony on the City’s proposed Water 
Use Efficiency Goals and Measures. 
 
In 2003, the Washington State Legislature passed Engrossed Second Substitute House Bill 1338, better 
known as the Municipal Water Law, to address the increasing demand on the state’s water resources. 
The law established that all municipal water suppliers must use water more efficiently 
in exchange for water right certainty and the flexibility to meet future demand. The legislature passed 
requirements in the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 246-290 and directed the department of 
health to adopt an enforceable Water Use Efficiency (WUE) program, which became effective in January 
of 2007. Consistent with this law, the city must set a water use efficiency goal and measure progress 
each year toward meeting the goal. The goal must include a measurable outcome, address water supply 
characteristics, and include an implementation schedule. The city must also evaluate or implement 
efficiency measures to help meet the goal. 
 
By Resolution No. 049-21, the City sets a Water Use Efficiency goal of reducing the per capita water use 
by 0.5% annually over the next ten years. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the City Council vote to adopt Resolution No. 049-21, thereby 
updating the Water Use Efficiency Goals and Measures.    
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 7 – Utilities. 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt Resolution No. 049-21, thereby updating the Water Use 
Efficiency Goals and Measures.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: None. 
 
Alternatives:  N/A 
 
Attachments: Resolution No. 049-21, Program outline, and Water Resource Analysis. 

 

Page 68 of 189



       
RESOLUTION NO. 049-21 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, APPPROVING 
AND ADOPTING 2021 - 2030 WATER USE EFFICIENCY GOALS AND 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES FOR THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD’S DRINKING 
WATER SYSTEMS. 
 
WHEREAS, in 2003 the Washington State legislature passed House Bill 1338, known as 

the Municipal Water Law, to address increasing demands on our state’s water resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Health was directed to oversee and 

enforce a Water Use Efficiency Program (WUE) to help support the goals of ensuring safe and 
reliable drinking water supplies; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted by Resolution 091-09 on September 22, 2009, a 
goal of reducing the Single Family Residential water consumption from 160 gallons per day to 
155 gallons per day by 2014, which is a 0.5% annual reduction; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted by Ordinance 020-15 on November 11, 2015, a 

tiered water rate structure to encourage and stimulate customers to use less water; and 
 
WHEREAS, on July 27, 2021 and continued on August 10, 2021 the City held a duly-

noticed public hearing on this Resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered staff presentations, proposals and public 

comment and finds it is in the best interests of the residents of the City to adopt the City’s 
Water Use Efficiency Goals and Performance Measures set out herein for the City of Port 
Orchard for 2021 to 2030; now, therefore,  
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT:  The City Council approves and adopts the Water Use Efficiency goal of 
reducing the per capita water use by 0.5% annually over the next ten years. 

 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 10th day of August 2021.   
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 69 of 189



1 Water Use Efficiency Program 5/7/21 
 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAM 

 
1. System Information 
Name:    City of Port Orchard     DOH ID #68900 
   McCormick Woods Water System     DOH ID #40529 
Address:   216 Prospect 

Port Orchard, Washington 98366 
Phone:    (360) 876‐4991 
Contact Person: Jacki Brown, Utility Manager 
 
2. Geographic Location 
The City of Port Orchard maintains two separate public water systems, both of which are 
Group A public water systems.  Both systems are located on the Kitsap Peninsula of 
Washington State along the southern shore of Sinclair Inlet of the Puget Sound.  This Water Use 
Efficiency Program covers both the Port Orchard and McCormick Woods water systems.   
 
3. Water Use Efficiency Rule 
The City of Port Orchard developed a Water Use Efficiency Goal for compliance with the Water Use 
Efficiency Rule of the Municipal Water Law.  The City has adopted the following goals after the requisite 
public process and has developed a plan for monitoring progress toward the established goal and 
reevaluation of water use efficiency measures on an annual basis.   

GOAL #1: Reduce Residential Usage by 0.5% per year through 2030 
Over the next ten‐year period, the City of Port Orchard plans to reduce water consumption by 0.5% per 
year.  The following measures will be implemented to assist in attaining this goal: 

 Include water conservation information in the City's annual Consumer Confidence Report 
(annual water system report to consumers). 

 Evaluate the inclusion of inserts as part of the monthly water bills that present 
information regarding the importance of water conservation and actions individuals can 
implement to reduce their water use. 

 Investigate a Water Conservation School Outreach Program that may include school 
presentations, preparation of curriculum material, water conservation education handout 
material, and tours of water system facilities. 

 Provide water conservation materials at public outreach events. 
 Use Conservation Rate concepts in rate setting. 
 Show consumption history on water bills. 

GOAL #2: Continue and Expand Educational Outreach with Customers 
The City is a member of the County‐wide conservation board and the Water Purveyors Association of 
Kitsap County (WaterPAK), the City is active in planning, setting up, and manning the WaterPAK booth at 
the Kitsap County Fair.  Conservation is a principal message at the booth.  WaterPAK’s projects include 
distributing County‐wide indoor conservation kits, summer lawn water calendars, and high efficiency 

Page 70 of 189



2 Water Use Efficiency Program 5/7/21 
 

toilet (HET) rebates; establishing coordination between water purveyors, fire districts, Kitsap County, 
and state agencies; coordinating the development of a groundwater model with USGS; and developing 
the County‐wide Coordinated Water System Plan (CWSP).   

The City also maintains a page on their website (https://www.cityofportorchard.us/) which describes the 
benefits of conservation and links to other resources regarding conservation‐at‐home measures to help 
educate its customers about water use efficiency.   

4.  Water Use Efficiency Tracking 
 

Port Orchard Water Department

gallons percentage
2016 277858531 267667240 10191291 3.67
2017 267138796 257609875 9528921 3.57
2018 305494416 269650890 35843526 11.73 *
2019 312726730 271860151 40866579 13.07 *
2020 291531336 266226432 25304904 8.68

TOTALS 1454749809 1333014588 121735221 8.14 average

annually daily
2016 267631670
2017 237476840 12450 19074.44 52.26
2018 249387340 13440 18555.61 50.84 2.720075607
2019 259506771 14276 18177.83 49.80 2.035884811
2020 241954498 14314 16903.35 46.31 7.011223671

McCormick Woods Water System

gallons percentage
2016 83677846 83609600 68246 0.08
2017 84373263 81500000 2873263 3.41
2018 105212017 101582290 3629727 3.45
2019 107588945 100757850 6831095 6.35
2020 98619902 97346850 1273052 1.29

TOTALS 479471973 464796590 14675383 2.92 average

annually daily
2016 83605600
2017 72667000 4306 16875.75 46.23
2018 85574290 4851 17640.55 48.33 -4.53189519
2019 90850000 5646 16091.04 44.09 8.783789071
2020 90415000 6013 15036.59 41.20 6.5530298

* Anomolies based on under‐reporting of unmetered uses

metered sales meters billed per capita use %

year production authorized uses leakage

metered sales meters billed per capita use %

year production authorized uses leakage

 

Page 71 of 189

https://www.cityofportorchard.us/
https://www.cityofportorchard.us/


City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-1 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Chapter 4 Water Resource Analysis 

4.1 Water Use Efficiency 
The City of Port Orchard developed a Water Use Efficiency Goal for compliance with the Water 
Use Efficiency Rule of the Municipal Water Law.  The City has adopted the following goals after 
the requisite public process and has developed a plan for monitoring progress toward the 
established goal and reevaluation of water use efficiency measures on an annual basis.  
Additional documentation regarding the Water Use Efficiency Program is provided in 
Appendix C. 

GOAL #1: Reduce Residential Usage by 5 gpd/ERU by 2026 

Over the next six-year period the City of Port Orchard plans to reduce residential water 
consumption by 5 gallons per day per home.  This reduction in residential use will save 
approximately 58 million gallons per year over this six-year period.  The following measures will 
be evaluated and/or implemented to assist in attaining this goal: 

▪ Include water conservation information in the City's annual Consumer Confidence
Report (annual water system report to consumers).

▪ Evaluate the inclusion of inserts as part of the monthly water bills that present
information regarding the importance of water conservation and actions individuals can
implement to reduce their water use.

▪ Investigate a Water Conservation School Outreach Program that may include school
presentations, preparation of curriculum material, water conservation education handout
material, and tours of water system facilities.

▪ Prepare a portable display of water conservation devices and selected material for
display at the City's numerous events and festivals.

▪ Upon request by customers, supply dye tablets for in-home leak detection.

GOAL #2: Continue and Expand Educational Outreach with Customers 

The City has an ongoing public education program to provide information regarding water 
issues.  The main elements of the City’s education outreach include displays at local fairs and 
events, school outreach, and distributing flyers that outline the City’s water use efficiency goals 
at the Public Works Department.  In addition, as a member of the County-wide conservation 
board and the Water Purveyors Association of Kitsap County (WaterPAK), the City is active in 
planning, setting up, and manning the WaterPAK booth at the Kitsap County Fair.  Conservation 
is a principal message at the booth.  WaterPAK’s projects include distributing County-wide 
indoor conservation kits, summer lawn water calendars, and high efficiency toilet (HET) rebates; 
establishing coordination between water purveyors, fire districts, Kitsap County, and state 
agencies; coordinating the development of a groundwater model with USGS; and developing 
the County-wide Coordinated Water System Plan (CWSP).   

The City also maintains a page on their website (https://www.cityofportorchard.us/) which 
describes the benefits of conservation and links to other resources regarding conservation-at-
home measures to help educate its customers about water use efficiency.  The City plans to 
continue to use this website as an educational and public outreach mechanism in the future.  
The use of electronic media for education will allow the City to reduce paper use for its public 
outreach initiatives.  The City is looking to build upon the possibilities for information and 
engagement that the website may offer.   

DRAFT

Page 72 of 189

https://www.cityofportorchard.us/


City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-2 BHC Consultants, LLC 

4.2 Water Conservation Program 
Water conservation is an important and viable means of reducing water system demands and in 
the City of Port Orchard’s 2009 Water System Plan, a target goal of a 5 gpd/ERU reduction in 
demand prior to the year 2015 was established.   
 
The premise of the program established in the previous Water System Plan remains 
unchanged, with the City relying heavily on the conservation messages of larger agencies as a 
means of education and awareness and implementing internal measures conducive to 
stewardship of clean water as a finite resource.  Key elements of the conservation program are 
outlined in the following paragraphs. 

4.2.1 Internal Conservation Measures 

Water meters are a key element of an effective conservation program.  Source meters are 
provided and maintained on all permanent sources and recommended for emergency interties.  
Individual customer meters are required on every connection to the Port Orchard Water system. 

▪ Source Meters - The City of Bremerton (Bremerton) currently has master source meters 
in place at all its well supplies and at the metered intertie with the City.  Meters are 
recommended for emergency interties. 

▪ Water Meters ‐ All connections to the water system are metered.  Irrigation meters are 
available for interested customers and required on new irrigation accounts. 

▪ Hydrant Meters ‐ Hydrant meters are currently required for all water drawn from hydrants 
except that associated with emergency use (such as a fire).  Hydrant permits are 
required in addition to the permit fee, and permit holders are charged for water use. 

▪ Consumption History ‐ Consumption history is provided on bi‐monthly billings to promote 
conservation. 

▪ Non‐Revenue Water ‐ The City’s on‐going maintenance and repair schedule provides for 
routine inspection of facilities and results in the prompt repair of leaks and valve failures 
that contribute to non‐revenue water.  In addition, field crews perform routine 
maintenance and operation in a conscientious manner to reduce the amount of water 
used for these activities.  Hydrant meters are for all non‐emergency water use. 

▪ Leak Detection - The City retains the services of leak detection specialists biennially to 
identify leaks in the system.  No major leaks were identified in the last leak detection 
analysis.  All identified leaks were subsequently repaired. 

▪ Pressure Regulation ‐ The City maintains four separate pressure zones to ensure 
adequate fire flows and pressures are maintained in all areas of the system.  By effective 
management of the pressure zones, water consumption can be reduced by controlling 
pressures at a safe level in accordance with State Department of Health guidelines.  
Isolated areas of high pressure are controlled by individual pressure reducing valves. 

4.2.2 Conservation Program Promotion 

Utilizing public information and promotional materials to encourage conservation is key to any 
conservation strategy.  The City’s annual newsletter is recommended as a way to distribute 
conservation tips and raise awareness.  Water bills also provide an avenue for conservation 
program promotion.  Further program promotion through distribution of conservation materials 
produced by others (i.e., WaterPAK, AWWA, DOH, and Kitsap County PUD) is also performed. 

DRAFT

Page 73 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-3 BHC Consultants, LLC 

4.2.3 Rate Setting to Encourage Conservation 

The City has implemented a water rate schedule to encourage conservation that employs a 
block rate structure whereby water use in excess of established thresholds is priced higher.  
The rate structure provides a threshold for evaluating conservation by various customer types 
and helps determine what type of education and conservation programs will be most useful in 
the future.  Annual review of the impact of any adjustments to the water rate schedule on 
conservation and water use is accomplished as part of overall Water Use Efficiency tracking 
and reporting in accordance with State regulations.  Review of irrigation policies and charges is 
highly recommended.  A summary of current water rates is provided in Chapter 9 of this Plan. 

4.2.4 Encouraging Water Saving Devices 

The City has adopted the most current version of the Uniform Building and Plumbing Codes to 
regulate and enforce the provision of low water use fixtures in all new construction.  Future 
consideration of low water use landscaping provisions in the City Code is recommended. 

4.2.5 Water Efficient Toilets and Appliances 

The City relies on the public messages of regional water purveyors and the appliance industry 
to promote water efficient appliances, especially washing machines.  It is estimated that the vast 
majority of toilets within the City are high flow toilets (toilets installed before 1980 are typically 
5 to 7 gallons/flush, toilets installed between 1980 and 1992 are 3.5 gallons/flush, and toilets 
installed after 1992 are 3.5 to 1.6 gallons/flush).  Residents who take advantage of the program 
receive a cash rebate of $100 on the installation of a low flow toilet. 

4.2.6 Water Reuse and Recycling 

The City and West Sound Utility District jointly own a wastewater treatment plant (Plant) that 
was recently upgraded to increase capacity and generally improve the Plant operations.  The 
two agencies may consider working together to pursue opportunities for reuse of treated effluent 
from the Plant in the future.  All potential water reuse opportunities will be considered with 
respect to Ecology and DOH requirements.  Specific review and analysis of irrigation 
opportunities is recommended. 

4.3 Conservation Program Implementation and Monitoring 
Water Use Efficiency and Conservation program monitoring to quantify and document the 
effectiveness of the conservation program is accomplished through an ongoing data collection 
effort.  In accordance with State requirements, the City achieves this by annually reviewing 
water use records and comparing these records to previous years.  Water use data is kept by 
customer classification in order to identify annual and specific trends for summer and winter 
water use.  This data, coupled with information regarding weather and implementation of any 
new conservation programs, provides a mechanism for monitoring overall water conservation 
efforts.  
 
Continued participation with neighboring purveyors and WaterPAK is required to ensure that 
consistent conservation messages are being delivered throughout the South Kitsap County area 
and to develop new ideas for water conservation mechanisms and programs.  City employees 
are encouraged to participate in water conservation data collection, seminars, and workshops 
that are relevant to their particular field. 

DRAFT

Page 74 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-4 BHC Consultants, LLC 

4.4 Water Rights and Source of Supply Analysis 
This section presents the analyses performed to evaluate the City of Port Orchard water 
system’s ability to meet the needs of current and projected customers of the City.  It is important 
to recognize that while the State Department of Health requires that physically independent 
systems be analyzed separately, the City operates the Port Orchard (City) System and the 
McCormick Woods System under one utility department.  
 
A fundamental component of this Plan is the desire for the City System(s) to operate 
autonomously from neighboring utilities under anticipated operating conditions.  To achieve this, 
interconnection of the two systems should be accomplished as soon as possible.  The analyses 
presented herein identifies the system requirements for the existing systems independently but 
considers ultimate combination of the systems into one entity.   
 
As such, future improvements are based on the plan to connect the 260 and 390 (City) Zones 
and the McCormick 580 Zone as development occurs in the 580 Zone and in the area east of 
the existing McCormick Woods System.  This plan for interconnection is supported by the 
Department of Ecology’s consideration of water rights applications.  Ecology has established 
source of supply requirements and issued water rights for the combined systems servicing the 
City’s overall water service area as established by the CWSP. 
 
The analyses put forth herein utilize current data and the projected growth scenarios 
established in Chapter 2.  The primary focus of the analyses is to determine the type and 
magnitude of improvements required to meet the projected needs of the service area(s), and not 
to determine the specific needs or timing of individual development proposals.  For large scale 
and costly facilities such as source of supply, transmission lines and storage tanks, the ultimate 
service area needs have been considered to ensure general facility improvements will be of 
sufficient capacity and location to meet the City’s future needs.  For distribution system facilities, 
the primary goal is to develop a program to meet the fire flow requirements of current and 
anticipated development, and the regular renewal and replacements to protect the investment of 
ratepayers to the system. 
 
Transmission, storage, and pumping facilities required to connect the City System to the 
McCormick System have been evaluated.  The interconnection is planned to occur along SW 
Sedgwick Road to the south and along the SW Old Clifton Road corridor to the southwest.  
Timing will be dependent on development and construction of a new 580 Zone storage facility, 
possibly as early as 2021.   

4.4.1 Combining of City System and McCormick Woods Water System  

The City’s water system consists of two separate water systems, both owned and operated by 
the City of Port Orchard.  The City System, which includes the 260 Pressure Zone and the 
390 Pressure Zone serves most of the City limits, and the McCormick Woods System 
580 Pressure Zone serves the McCormick Woods area in the western portion of the City.  As of 
December 2017, the two systems served approximately 3,132 connections in the City System 
and 814 connections in the McCormick Woods System.  
 
The City is currently developing a long-range program for interconnecting the City’s main water 
system (the 260 and 390 Pressure Zones) with facilities serving the McCormick Woods System 
(the 580 Pressure Zone and a future 660 Pressure Zone).  This will allow for the two existing 
systems to be combined under one water system identification number. 
 

DRAFT

Page 75 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-5 BHC Consultants, LLC 

The McCormick System is in the western portion of the City and eventually will be connected to 
the City System from new transmission mains along SW Sedgwick Road and along SW Old 
Clifton Road.  The City also plans to install PRV connections from the 580 Zone to the 390 Zone 
via the new SW Old Clifton Road transmission main and at the proposed 390 to 580 pump 
station near SW Sedgwick Road. 
 
All of the water rights currently serving the City System and the McCormick Woods Water 
System meet the statutory definition of “municipal water supply purposes.”  Pursuant to the 
Municipal Water Law of 2003, the effect of Department of Health approval of the City’s last 
water system plan in 2009, and the continuing effect of approval of this current Plan, is that: (1) 
these water rights are considered valid and in good standing; (2) they are exempt from statutory 
relinquishment for nonuse; and (3) they can be used throughout the combined Port Orchard 
Water Service Area for municipal water supply purposes.  See Figure 1-4, Water Service Area 
Map.  

4.4.2 Water Rights  

The scope and validity of municipal water rights has become one of the most critical issues for 
planning a water system’s future expansion.  State-issued water rights have become increasing 
difficult to secure as a result of instream flow protection rules and legal precedents that limit the 
availability of surface and groundwater in order to protect senior instream flow water rights.  This 
puts a premium on properly assessing existing water rights.  The City hired water rights attorney 
Thomas M. Pors to research its water rights and prepare the water rights self-assessment for 
this 2020 Water System Plan update.  Mr. Pors’ assessment is reflected in this section, 
including the contents of Table 4-1, and in the self-assessment forms included in Appendix C. 
 
As demonstrated in Section 4.4.3, the City’s water rights are adequate to meet current water 
demands and projected demands through 2022.  With approval of the new water rights and 
water right change applications described in Section 4.4.3, the City’s water rights and new 
Well 12 and Well 13 sources should be adequate to meet projected demands through 2040.  

Primary and Supplemental Water Rights 

The City’s water rights are noted as either primary (additive) or supplemental (non-additive) 
water rights, and where appropriate these interpretations are explained in footnotes to Table 4-1 
and/or in the text below.  Generally, primary water rights are additive to pre-existing rights and 
can be used to the full extent of the authorized quantities, regardless of the use being made 
under other water rights.  The use of supplemental water rights is conditional based on the 
language in the water right decision documents and is often dependent on the use being made 
under prior rights.  In most cases, supplemental water rights can be used as an alternative 
source for previously issued water rights, and do not increase the total authorized annual 
quantity of water allowed to be withdrawn and used by the City.  A water right can be partially 
supplemental and partially primary.  

4.4.2.1 City Water System Water Rights  

The City has five post-Water Code water rights dating back to 1955 allowing the use of wells to 
provide municipal water service within its original service area.  Water rights for earlier sources 
of supply, such as Wells 1, 2, and 3, were either never obtained or were not maintained in good 
standing by the City and are not discussed at length in this assessment.  

DRAFT

Page 76 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-6 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Water Right Claim G1-000911CL was filed by the City for Well 5, in the amount of 51.3 gallons 
per minute (gpm) and 82.8 acre-feet/year (AFY).  Well 5 provides limited artesian flow into the 
stilling basin at City Hall, and the wellhead is located under the City Hall parking lot.  A water 
right claim is the essential filing to preserve a pre-code vested water right under the Water 
Rights Registration Act of 1967.  Unless or until the claim is adjudicated in superior court, 
however, the claim filing is not determinative of the scope and validity of the water right.  Claim 
G1-000911CL for Well 5 was acknowledged by the Department of Ecology in the change 
decision for Well 9 (CG1-25019C).  In that decision, dated March 29, 2004, Ecology tentatively 
determined that, as of 1987, the City possessed water rights totaling 1,651.3 gpm and 
1,852.8 AFY of primary rights, which includes the full quantity of Claim G1-000911CL as a 
primary right.  This claim could be invalid based on the date listed in the claim for first using 
water (1946), which is after the June 6, 1945 effective date of the Ground Water Code, Chapter 
90.44 RCW.  However, the date in the claim could also be a mistake that can be corrected by 
the City through a claim amendment, if and when necessary.  In later water right decisions for 
Permits G1-26119, G1-26447, G1-26454, and G1-26729), Ecology did not mention Claim 
G1-000911CL and appeared to have miss-counted the City’s existing water rights by omitting 
the annual quantity of this claim.  That is not determinative of the City’s water rights quantity, 
because Ecology has no legal authority to adjudicate existing water rights.  
 
Certificate 3334-A (G1-*04166C), with a priority date of November 17, 1955, authorizes Well 6 
and is a primary (additive) water right for 350 gpm and 560 AFY.  Well 6 provides artesian flow 
into a stilling basin and provides one of the City’s primary sources for the 260 Zone that serves 
downtown and the City’s lower elevation residential areas, along with Well 7.  
 
Certificate G1-24586C, with a priority date of December 24, 1984, authorizes Well 7 and is a 
primary (additive) water right for 750 gpm and 1210 AFY.  Well 7 provides artesian flow to the 
clear well at City Hall and is the principal source of supply for the 260 Zone.  
 
Certificate G1-25019C, with a priority date of May 29, 1987, authorizes Wells 8 and 9 for up to 
500 gpm and 560 AFY, but these quantities are supplemental to Certificates 3334-A and 
G1-24586C, and claim G1-000911CL.  Wells 8 and 9 supply the High (390) Zone with installed 
pumps.  Well 9 was added to this water right pursuant to a 2001 change application that was 
approved by the Department of Ecology (Ecology) on March 29, 2004.  The report of 
examination for this change approval included Ecology’s tentative determination that the scope 
and validity of the City’s existing water rights as of 1987 was a total annual quantity of 
1,852.8 AFY, thus including Claim G1-000911CL as a valid primary water right.  
 
Permit G1-26119P, with a priority date of March 22, 1991, authorizes Well 10 for up to 500 gpm 
and 806 AFY, but these quantities are partially supplemental to existing water rights.  See 
Section 4.4.2.3, “Aggregate Cap Condition.”  In 2007, the City applied for additional 
instantaneous and annual quantity for Well 10, to maximize the utility of drilling a large, deep 
aquifer municipal well, and the application was assigned number G1-28476.  The City has not 
completed this well due to updated engineering plans for the water system, and in 2016 it 
applied to Ecology to add Well 13, located adjacent to the intersection of Bethel Road SE and 
SE Sedgwick Road, to both Permit G1-26119P and Application G1-28476.  Proposed Well 13 is 
discussed further below in Section 4.4.3.  The development schedule for Permit G1-26119P 
requires completion of construction by December 31, 2028 and full beneficial use by 
December 31, 2030.  The City expects that these deadlines will be extended consistent with this 
Water System Plan update when the pending applications are processed.  
 

DRAFT

Page 77 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-7 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Permit G1-26729P, with a priority date of September 14, 1992, authorizes Well 4 for its artesian 
flow to the clear well at City Hall, in the amount of 50 gpm and 80 AFY.  This quantity is partially 
supplemental to existing water rights.  See Section 4.4.2.3, “Aggregate Cap Condition.”  The 
development schedule for Permit G1-26119P requires completion of construction by 
December 31, 2028 and full beneficial use by December 31, 2030.  Because Well 4 is already 
constructed and in use by the City, a Proof of Appropriation form can be filed for this water right 
at any time, which starts the process for issuance of a water right certificate.  
 
Other Water Right Claims.  In 1970, the City filed three water right claims for Wells 5, 6 and 7.  
Claim G1-000911CL for Well 5 is described above.  The claims for Wells 6 and 7 were 
unnecessary because these sources were authorized by properly issued permits and the priority 
date for these sources is after the June 6, 1945 effective date of the Ground Water Code.  The 
claim filings are included in Appendix C, but they will not be included in the Water Right 
Self-Assessment unless new information is discovered by the City relating to their separate 
validity as vested water right claims.   
 
“Tremont” Claim G1-100145, was timely filed by the City in 1974 for a well that was used to 
irrigate the Tremont Street Park and Playground.  On May 24, 1976, the Council voted to 
change the name from Tremont Park to William (Bill) Van Zee Memorial Park.  The well is 
currently not in use and believed to be decommissioned.  While the claim was filed on a short 
form typically used for exempt well uses, it nevertheless authorizes continuation of this irrigation 
usage until the claim is adjudicated or the City seeks to change the water right to another usage 
or point of withdrawal.  Municipal wells used to irrigate parks and playgrounds fall within the 
statutory definition of “municipal water supply purposes” at RCW 90.03.015(4).  This means that 
the Tremont claim is not subject to relinquishment for nonuse and could be integrated into the 
drinking water system in the future, especially if the City ceases irrigating the Tremont Street 
Park and Playground or replaces the groundwater supply with reclaimed water.  Because this 
source is not connected to the City drinking water system and no quantity is listed for this water 
right in the claim form, it is listed separately in Table 4-1 without a quantity.   

4.4.2.2 McCormick Water System Water Rights  

The McCormick Woods Water Company (MWWC) was created by the developers of McCormick 
Woods PUD to serve the 1,300-acre residential development and golf course in the southwest 
section of the City.  In 1986, the City acquired the MWWC, including its wells, pumps, storage 
facilities, water mains, water rights, and water right applications, and took over its operation.  
The City’s last two water system comprehensive plans described the process of integrating the 
MWWC into the City Water System.  As a result of the City’s acquisition of the MWWC water 
rights, there is now a common service area and place of use for all the City and MWWC water 
rights.  That service area and place of use may expand or contract with Department of Health 
approved changes to the City’s water service area map.  See RCW 90.03.386(2).  
 
Permit G1-24437P, with a priority date of January 24, 1984, authorizes MC Wells 1, 2, and 3, up 
to 600 gpm and 450 AFY for municipal supply and irrigation of 100 acres, and is a primary 
(additive) water right.  These shallow aquifer wells supply the 580 Zone tank.  The permit 
document provides that 300 AFY of this right was intended to serve 1,200 homes, but this 
notation is not a limitation on the number of homes or other connections the City can serve with 
this water right, by operation of the Municipal Water Law at RCW 90.03.260(5).  In 2014 the City 
filed a Notice of Compliance form with Ecology adding Well 11 (formerly known as MC Well 5) 
to this water right as an additional point of withdrawal, but Well 11 has not yet been completed 
with a pump or connected to the water system.  A Showing of Compliance for Well 11 is 
included in Appendix C.  In 2016 the City filed a change application to add Well 12 to this water 
right in order to consolidate the McCormick Woods area water supply from one or two deep 

DRAFT

Page 78 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-8 BHC Consultants, LLC 

aquifer wells in proximity to upper zone storage facilities.  The change application is discussed 
with other pending applications in Section 4.4.3, below.  
 
On March 3, 2017, Ecology approved an extension of the development schedule for Permit 
G1-24437P to February 15, 2022.  It is expected that a further extension of this development 
schedule will be approved when Ecology approves the City pending change applications.  
 
Permit G1-26454P, with a priority date of January 17, 1992, authorizes Well 11 for an additional 
150 gpm and 242 AFY of withdrawals from the McCormick well field for municipal purposes, 
increasing the total withdrawals from this wellfield to a maximum of 750 gpm and 692 AFY.  This 
additional quantity is partially supplemental to existing water rights.  See Section 4.4.2.3, 
“Aggregate Cap Condition.”  A condition of this permit is to deactivate the shallow MC Wells 1, 
2, and 3 within 1 year of activation of the new well to be completed in the Sea Level Aquifer (or 
deeper).  Well 11 has been drilled, but not completed as a production well or connected to the 
City’s water system.  In 2016 the City filed a change application to add Well 12 to this water 
right – the application is discussed with other pending applications in Section 4.4.3, below.  The 
development schedule for Permit G1-26454P requires completion of construction by 
December 31, 2028 and full beneficial use by December 31, 2030.  It is expected that a further 
extension of this development schedule will be approved when Ecology approves the City’s 
pending change applications. 
 
Permit G1-26447P, with a priority date of January 17, 1992, authorizes Well MC 4B for up to 
400 gpm and 645 AFY for both municipal purposes and irrigation of the McCormick Woods Golf 
Course.  This quantity is partially supplemental to existing water rights.  See Section 4.4.2.3, 
“Aggregate Cap Condition.”  The well is located on golf course property, but the water right was 
assigned to the City in 2015.  In 2016 the City filed a change application to administratively 
divide the water right into its irrigation and municipal parts, and to add Wells 11 and 12 to the 
municipal water right.  This application is discussed with other pending applications in 
Section 4.4.3, below.  The municipal portion of this primary (additive) water right is 420 AFY, 
based on the total irrigation demand for the golf course.  However, because the golf course 
irrigation demand is considered part of the City water supply, the total instantaneous and annual 
quantity is used in Table 4-1 and in the self-assessment forms in Appendix C.   

4.4.2.3 Aggregate Cap Condition in Permits G1-26119P, G1-26447, G1-26454P, 
and G1-26729P 

When Ecology investigates a municipal water right application, it must tentatively determine the 
scope and validity of that municipality’s existing water rights in order to decide how much 
additional water may be needed to serve future water demands.  Ecology’s authority to make 
tentative determinations regarding existing water rights is limited, and does not include the 
authority to diminish or “adjudicate” pre-existing water rights, because only the superior courts 
of Washington State have that authority, Rettkowski v. Ecology, 122 Wn.2d 219, 227, 858 P.2d 
232 (1993).  The four most-recently issued of the City’s water rights include what is commonly 
known as an “aggregate cap” condition, which is a type of tentative determination by Ecology 
regarding the scope of existing water rights along with the water right just granted.  This 
aggregate cap condition is essentially a supplemental water right limitation on the use of the 
water rights thus granted, however, it is legally questionable whether the scope of pre-existing 
water rights can be limited by such a condition.  The identical aggregate cap condition for these 
four permits states:  
 

“The annual quantity of water authorized represents a portion of the total water rights 
owned by the City of Port Orchard.  The total annual quantity withdrawn by the City of Port 
Orchard under G1-26119, G1-26447, G1-26454 and G1-26729 shall not exceed 

DRAFT

Page 79 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-9 BHC Consultants, LLC 

1,308 acre-feet per year.  The total annual quantity withdrawn from all City of Port Orchard 
sources shall not exceed 3,528 acre-feet per year.” 

 
The accompanying text in the investigative report for these water right decisions explains 
Ecology’s basis for this annual quantity limitation, as follows: 
 

“The total quantity of water allocated in the four concurrent water right decisions 
(G1-26119, G1-26447, G1-26454 and G1-26729) was determined by estimating future 
water demand within the City of Port Orchard service area.  According to their estimates 
as part of their on-going revision of their Water System Plan (PACE 2005), the City of Port 
Orchard projects it will supply water to a population of 26,225 by 2030.  The water usage 
rate based on historical data is 115 gallons per day per person.  Using this average rate, 
the City is expected to require 3,378 acre-feet per year.  Additionally, there is the demand 
of 150 acre-feet per year for irrigation of McCormick Woods Golf Course.  Therefore, the 
total annual demand for the City in 2030 is estimated to be 3,528 acre-feet.  The City of 
Port Orchard controls 2,220 acre-feet of existing certified water rights.  The estimated 
future usage of 3,528 acre-feet per year represents an anticipated increase of 1,308 acre-
feet per year.” 

 
Thus, these four permits increased the City’s total primary annual quantity by 1,308 acre-feet 
per year.  
 
In Table 4-3 of the reports of examination for these water rights, Ecology listed the City’s 
existing water rights and applications, including Claim G1-000911CL, but did not include the 
associated 82.8 acre-feet per year in the existing water right total.  The City continues to claim 
the validity of Claim G1-000911CL, but neither the City nor Ecology can determine the validity of 
this claim without a superior court adjudication.  The City recognizes that Ecology’s failure to 
include this 82.8 AFY in the calculation of existing water rights may have resulted in Ecology’s 
approval of an additional 82.8 AFY of primary water rights in its approval of Permits G1-26119, 
G1-26447, G1-26454, and G1-26729 with a combined total annual quantity of 1,308 AFY.  The 
difference between the City’s position and Ecology’s position is a different priority date for a 
small portion of the City’s water rights, and a corresponding decrease in the City’s mitigation 
obligation under Permits G1-26119, G1-26447, G1-26454, and G1-26729.  The City expects to 
resolve this difference with Ecology in its processing of the new applications and change 
applications described in Section 4.4.3, below.  

4.4.2.4 Interties 

Pursuant to Interlocal Agreements between the cities of Port Orchard and Bremerton 
(Appendix F), Port Orchard purchases wholesale water from the City of Bremerton through a 
16-inch transmission main and intertie on Anderson Hill Road.  The intertie allows water to be 
supplied by either system to the other, but in practice the City of Port Orchard has been 
purchasing water from Bremerton to supply growth in the McCormick Woods area for over 
twenty years.  The most recent update to the Interlocal Agreement (dated November 2019), 
provides for the sale of Port Orchard’s existing 580 Zone tank, the 16-inch transmission main, 
and associated assets to Bremerton.  Bremerton has agreed to supply water to Port Orchard 
during the affective dates of the agreement, at a rate of 750 gpm.  Once Port Orchard has 
constructed a new 580 Zone tank, Well 11 and future Well 12 are online, and constructed 
necessary transmission and distribution infrastructure, the Bremerton and Port Orchard systems 
can operate as separate systems.  Port Orchard and Bremerton also agree to consider an 
emergency intertie agreement at the conclusion of the current agreement.  The City intends to 
reduce or eliminate its reliance on the Bremerton intertie with construction of the Well 12 and 
Well 13 projects and approval of the pending applications described in Section 4.4.3.  

DRAFT

Page 80 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-10 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Table 4-1  
Port Orchard Water Rights  

Permit Certificate or 
Claim # 

Source 
Name/Number 

Supplemental 
Limitation 

Water Right Quantity 

Instantaneous 
Flow Rate (Qi)  

Annual Volume 
(Qa) 

Supp/Primary 

G1-*04166C 

(Cert. 3334-A) 
PO 6 No 350 560 

G1-24586C PO 7 No 750 1,210 

G1-25019C PO 8 and 9 Yes1 500 560 

G1-26119P PO 10 Partial2 500 211.5/594.5 

G1-26729P PO 4 Partial2 50 11/59 

G1-24437P McCormick 1, 
2, 3, PO 113 

No 600 450 

G1-26454P PO 113 Partial2 150 63/179 

G1-26447P(A) McCormick 4B Partial2 400 169.5/475.5 

Claim G1-000911CL Well 54 No 51.3 82.8 

TOTAL MUNICIPAL QUANTITY  3,351.3 3,528.0 

Interties 

City of Bremerton 
(12/17/2001 interlocal agreement) 

 unspecified 178 

City of Bremerton 
(12/17/2001 interlocal agreement) 

 750  

Applications 

G1-28162A PO 12  500 560 

G1-28476A PO 13  750 1,210 

Other Water Rights 

Tremont Claim 
#100145 

Tremont Well 
Irrigation of 

Parks 
unknown unknown 

Notes: 
1) The annual quantity (560 AFY) of G1-25019C is supplemental to existing rights from 

Cert. 3334-A, G1-24586C, and G1-000911CL, but provides the City with additional pumping 
capacity. 

2) The aggregate cap limitation on Permits G1-26119, G1-26447, G1-26454, and G1-26729 
grants the City an additional 1,308 acre-feet per year of primary rights for the four water 
rights combined, and limits the total annual quantity withdrawn from all City of Port Orchard 
sources, which “shall not exceed 3,528 acre-feet per year.”  For purposes of Table 4-1 and 
the City’s water right self-assessment, the 1308 AFY of new primary Qa is apportioned 
among the four water rights. 

3)  MC Well 5 was renamed PO Well 11; it was intended to replace MC wells 1, 2 & 3, with a 
combined Qi of 750 gpm and a combined Qa of 672 AFY but is not online at this time. 

4) Because of the stated initial use date after 1945, Ecology regards this claim as “possibly 
invalid” and did not include its Qi or Qa in its calculation of the City’s total water rights in the 
most recent (2006) ROEs.  The City counts this quantity as a valid primary right and 
includes it in the total annual quantity. 

 

DRAFT

Page 81 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-11 BHC Consultants, LLC 

4.4.3 Pending Water Right Change Applications and New Applications 

For many years, the City has experienced declining yields in its older wells.  New wells have 
been drilled to augment the City’s supply, but their location in relation to proposed development 
presents challenges with transmission lines, storage, and substantial pumping lifts.  The City 
has two new well projects designed to add high-yield, deep aquifer wells at higher elevations on 
each side of the City’s dual-lobed service area, which will facilitate a more efficient gravity 
distribution system than relying on wells located at or near sea level.  Other objectives are to 
increase system-wide storage capacity and security with newer wells and pumps, to reduce 
reliance on the Bremerton Interties, and to source groundwater from deeper aquifers to improve 
base flow recharge to area streams.  These well projects rely on a combination of new water 
right applications and change applications to shift pumping from older sources located at the 
bottom of the system or shallow wells to new deep wells located at the top of the system.  
 
Well 12 Project.  Application G1-28162 was filed by the City in 2002 to provide an additional 
source for the expanding McCormick Woods area next to the City’s 450,000-gallon 
580 Pressure Zone storage tank.  The application seeks an additional 1,000 gpm and 
1,080 AFY from the sea-level or deeper aquifer.  The City also filed several change applications 
in 2016 to add Well 12 as an authorized point of withdrawal for the McCormick Woods wellfield 
water rights and Well 11, including Permits G1-24437P (MC Wells 1, 2, 3), G1-26454P 
(Well 11), and G1-26447P (MC Well 4B).  A preliminary permit has been issued by Ecology to 
allow Well 12 to be drilled and pump tested, including conditions for hydrogeologic 
investigations.  Drilling and testing activities are underway.  Approval of these applications 
would enable the City to convert MC Wells 1, 2, and 3 to observation and emergency backup 
wells.  The overall effect of moving to a deeper sub-sea level aquifer in the same body of public 
groundwater is to diminish the magnitude of base flow capture from area streams, while 
possibly expanding the regional extent of a smaller magnitude of impacts.  The City is 
developing a mitigation plan to address any modeled impacts to streamflow from the change to 
a deeper aquifer to be tapped by Well 12.  
 
Well 13 Project.  Application G1-28476 was filed by the City in 2007 to increase the capacity of 
Well 10 for an additional 1,000 gpm and 1,600 AFY.  In 2016, the City amended this application 
to change the proposed well site from Well 10, located at sea level near the shoreline, to 
Well 13 located in the Bethel area within the NE1/4, NE1/4 of Section 11, T23N, R1E, W.M and 
near the City’s existing Sedgwick Reservoir.  The City also filed several change applications to 
add Well 13 as an authorized point of withdrawal for Cert. 3334-A (Well 6), G1-24586C (Well 7), 
and G1-26119P (Well 10).  A preliminary permit has been issued by Ecology to allow Well 13 to 
be drilled and pump tested, including conditions for hydrogeologic investigations.  Drilling and 
testing activities are currently under way.  Approval of these applications would enable the City 
to cap and monitor Wells 6, 7, and 10 as observation and emergency backup wells.  The overall 
effect of moving to a deeper sub-sea level aquifer in the same body of public groundwater is to 
diminish the magnitude of base flow capture from area streams, while possibly expanding the 
regional extent of a smaller magnitude of impacts.  The City is developing a mitigation plan to 
address any modeled impacts to streamflow from the change to a deeper aquifer to be tapped 
by Well 13.  

System Analysis 

Table 4-2 summarizes the existing and anticipated available supply and water rights by 2037.  
Table 4-2 includes Wells 11, 12, and 13, which are not yet online as discussed earlier in this 
chapter.  
 

DRAFT

Page 82 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-12 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Table 4-2  
Instantaneous Sources of Supply by Zone and Year (gpm) 

Source Available by Active Capacity 2017 2023 2029 2039 

260 Zone  1,793             -    - - 

390 Zone  443       1,943  1,943 1,943 

Subtotal City  2,236       1,943  1,943 1,943 

580 Zone  888          750  750 750 

660 Zone  -       1,000  1,000 1,000 

Subtotal McCormick   888       1,750  1,750 1,750 

Total  3,124       3,693  3,693 3,693 

Source Available by Rights 2017 2023 2027 2037 

260 Zone 2,500 - - - 

390 Zone 500 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Subtotal City 3,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 

580 Zone 1,100 750 750 750 

660 Zone - 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Subtotal McCormick  1,100 1,750 1,750 1,750 

Total 4,100 3,750 3,750 3,750 

Notes: 
1) Installed Capacity assumes capacity upgrades or water rights transfers to Wells 11, 

12, and 13 will be accomplished to attain withdrawals up to permitted water rights. 
2) The average capacity of Wells 8 and 9 is included in this table and used for analysis 

as the water right does not allow for the wells to be run simultaneously. 
3) Instantaneous water rights and capacity associated with the Bremerton Interties are 

included in 2017 only. Intertie sources include 850 gpm into the 260 Zone and 350 
gpm into the 580 Zone. By interlocal agreement, the 580 Zone intertie capacity was 
increased to 750 gpm in November 2019. 

 
Table 4-3 presents a source analyses for the water system(s) through the year 2039 and 
focuses on installed capacity.  System reliability is further ensured by not including emergency 
interties in the source analyses.  This approach is based on the desire to operate the system 
independent of neighboring jurisdictions.  The supply surplus/deficit was assessed under the 
three criteria established by DOH discussed earlier in this chapter and summarized below: 

▪ Source capacity capable of supplying MDD (required) 

▪ Source capacity capable replenishing fire flow storage (FSS) during MDD over 72 hours 
(recommended) 

▪ Source capacity capable of supplying MDD with 18 hours of pumping (recommended) 
 
The source capacity shown in Table 4-3 includes the existing source capacity under 2019.  In 
subsequent years, the source capacity listed in Table 4-3 reflects the City’s plans to incorporate 
new sources, obtain additional water rights, transfer existing water rights, and transition the 
existing interties with the City of Bremerton to emergency interties.  Supply sources in 2023 and 
all subsequent years include Well 11 (drilled but not online), Well 12 (under design), and 

DRAFT

Page 83 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-13 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Well 13 (under construction) but do not include supply from McCormick Wells 1 and 3, City 
Wells 6 and 7, or Bremerton.   
 
In 2019 the existing source of supply is sufficient to meet all required and recommended criteria 
in the City System (Table 4-3).  However, only the required criteria is met in the McCormick 
System in 2017.  Once the two systems are connected, the current surplus of instantaneous 
supply in the City System can be shared with the McCormick Woods System.  Construction of a 
390 Zone to 580 Zone Booster Pump Station and a 580 Zone to 390 Zone PRV in association 
with the anticipated Stetson Heights Development will connect the two systems and is 
anticipated to occur within the next 6-years.  Thus, the total supply for both systems is expected 
to be available to either system by 2023.  In order to meet both DOH supply recommendations 
described above, the City may require developers to construct a 580 to 660 Booster Pump 
Station or obtain additional 660 Zone supply; these improvements are not required to meet the 
minimum DOH supply criteria.   
 
  

DRAFT

Page 84 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-14 BHC Consultants, LLC 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 
 
 

DRAFT

Page 85 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-15 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Table 4-3  
Source Analysis (By Capacity) 

Year Zone MDD (MGD) MDD (gpm) FSS (gpm) 
MDD + FSS 

(gpm) 
Existing 
(gpm)1 

75% Existing 
(gpm)4 

Surplus (Deficit) (gpm) 

MDD Supplied in 24 
Hours (Required) 

MDD + Fire Flow 
Replenished Over 72 

Hours (Recommended) 

MDD Replenished with 
18 Hours of 

Pumping/Day 
(Recommended) 

2017 

City-260 0.71 493  42 535  1,793  1,345  1,300  1,258  810  

City-390 0.87 603  42 644  443  443  (160) (202) (202) 

City-Subtotal 1.58 1,096  42 1,137  2,236  1,787  1,140  1,098  650  

McCormick-580 0.89 619  52 671  888  666  269  217  (5) 

McCormick-660 0.00 0  0 0  0  0  0  0  0  

McCormick-Bremerton 5 0.53 368  42 409  0  0  (368) (409) (409) 

McCormick Subtotal 1.42 986  52 1,039  888  666  (98) (151) (373) 

2023 

City-260 0.72 497  42 539  0  0  (497) (539) (539) 

City-390 0.88 608  42 650  1,943  1,568  1,335  1,293  918  

City-Subtotal 1.59 1,105  42 1,147  1,943  1,568  837  796  421  

McCormick-580 1.79 1,245  52 1,297  750  563  (495) (547) (735) 

McCormick-660 0.59 409  83 493  1,000  750  591  507  257  

McCormick Subtotal 2.38 1,654  83 1,738  1,750  1,313  96  12  (425) 

Total 3.97 2,759  83 2,843  3,693  2,769  933  850  (73) 

2029 

City-260 0.74 514  42 555  0  0  (514) (555) (555) 

City-390 0.90 628  42 669  1,943  1,568  1,315  1,273  898  

City-Subtotal 1.64 1,141  42 1,183  1,943  1,568  801  759  384  

McCormick-580 2.02 1,403  52 1,455  750  563  (653) (705) (893) 

McCormick-660 0.94 654  83 737  1,000  750  346  263  13  

McCormick Subtotal 2.96 2,057  83 2,140  1,750  1,313  (307) (390) (828) 

Total 4.61 3,198  83 3,282  3,693  2,769  494  411  (512) 

2039 

City-260 0.81 566  42 608  0  0  (566) (608) (608) 

City-390 1.00 692  42 733  1,943  1,568  1,251  1,209  834  

City-Subtotal 1.81 1,258  42 1,299  1,943  1,568  685  643  268  

McCormick-580 2.11 1,466  52 1,518  750  563  (716) (768) (955) 

McCormick-660 1.10 761  42 803  1,000  750  239  197  (53) 

McCormick Subtotal 3.21 2,227  52 2,279  1,750  1,313  (477) (529) (966) 

Total 5.02 3,484  52 3,537  3,693  2,769  208  156  (767) 

Notes: 
1) Source Analysis is based on active capacities indicated in Tables 6‐1 and 6‐2 and include emergency supplies from Bremerton under the 2017 scenario only.  Sources include supply from Wells 11, 12 and 13 

under all future scenarios.  Wells 11, 12 and 13 have been drilled and are undergoing testing.  Water rights applications for Wells 12 and 13 are pending. 
2) The planned connection of the City system and the McCormick system anticipated within the 10-year planning horizon will allow supply from the 390 Zone to be transferred to the McCormick Woods system and 

vice versa. 
3) The estimates put forth herein are not a guarantee of ERU’s to any development, property owner or specific area of the City. 
4) Well 8/9 was assumed to be capable of operating for 24 hours a day hours of pumping as the wells are redundant and can be alternated. 
5) Demands from Bremerton (McCormick North) on the 580 Zone were included only in the existing scenario.  The two systems are planned to be separated within the next 6-years. 

DRAFT

Page 86 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-16 BHC Consultants, LLC 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 
 
 

DRAFT

Page 87 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-17 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Figure 4-1 presents the projected MDD for both systems and the existing available 
instantaneous supply over the 20-year planning horizon.  As discussed previously, the City 
currently supplies a portion of Bremerton’s water service area through the McCormick Woods 
System.  The MDD for the McCormick Woods System only and for the McCormick Woods 
System and Bremerton combined are shown on Figure 4-1.  However, the Bremerton demands 
are believed to be applicable only during the near term as it is anticipated that Bremerton will 
serve this area directly within the 20-year planning horizon.   
 
As noted on Table 4-3 and Figure 4-1, the McCormick Woods System MDD are approaching 
instantaneous supply capacity.  Source deficiencies in the 580 Zone are due to development 
within McCormick Woods, McCormick West, Stetson Heights, and McCormick East.  While the 
current (November 2019) Bremerton intertie agreement with the McCormick Woods System is 
for 750 gpm in emergency situations, Bremerton is capable of supplying up to 1,800 gpm to the 
580 Zone.  Regardless, the City recognizes implementation of supplemental sources and 
separation of the two systems is a priority.  Maintaining an emergency supply connection 
between the Bremerton 580 Zone source and the Port Orchard 580 Zone is planned. 
 

 
Figure 4-1  McCormick Woods and City Systems MDD and Existing Supply 

 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
9

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
1

2
0
2
2

2
0
2
3

2
0
2
4

2
0
2
5

2
0
2
6

2
0
2
7

2
0
2
8

2
0
2
9

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
1

2
0
3
2

2
0
3
3

2
0
3
4

2
0
3
5

2
0
3
6

2
0
3
7

2
0
3
8

2
0
3
9

2
0
4
0

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

e
m

a
n

d
 (

g
p

m
)

Year

McCormick MDD

City MDD

Existing City
Capacity

Existing
McCormick
CapacityDRAFT

Page 88 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-18 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Figure 4-2 presents the projected MDD and the anticipated new sources of supply for both 
systems.  Bremerton customer demands currently served by Port Orchard are not shown on 
Figure 4-2, as these customers are anticipated to be served directly from Bremerton within the 
6-year planning horizon and before the McCormick Woods and City Systems are connected. 
 

 
Figure 4-2  Port Orchard MDD and Existing and Projected Supply 

 
Wells 8 and 9  are the only existing sources of supply that are anticipated to be maintained over 
the 20-year planning horizon; the average capacity of these two sources is shown at the bottom 
of the graph in gray.  The proposed additional sources are stacked on top of the existing 
sources to be maintained in Figure 4-2.  As identified on Figure 4-2, the existing sources of 
supply are sufficient to support the connected systems until 2022.  If all proposed source 
changes are approved and constructed by the City, a deficiency of supply is projected to occur 
in 2026 and a deficiency of approximately 550 gpm is anticipated at the end of the 20-year 
planning horizon.  If not all pending water rights are approved, the City will face a source of 
supply deficiency before 2026.  Additional supply may be obtained by procuring water rights for 
Wells 8 and 9 which allow for simultaneous pumping and by rehabilitating Well 8 it is capable of 
reaching the existing instantaneous water right of 500 gpm. 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
9

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
1

2
0
2
2

2
0
2
3

2
0
2
4

2
0
2
5

2
0
2
6

2
0
2
7

2
0
2
8

2
0
2
9

2
0
3
0

2
0
3
1

2
0
3
2

2
0
3
3

2
0
3
4

2
0
3
5

2
0
3
6

2
0
3
7

2
0
3
8

2
0
3
9

2
0
4
0

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

e
m

a
n

d
 (

g
p

m
)

Year

Well 12

Well 13

Well 11

Future Supply
- No  New
Sources

COPO MDD

Existing
System
Capacity

DRAFT

Page 89 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-19 BHC Consultants, LLC 

4.5 Water Right Evaluation 
The existing and pending water rights for the City are listed in Table 1-1.  The City’s primary 
water source is groundwater.  Groundwater sources are currently supplemented with supply 
from Bremerton, though plans are in place to terminate use of Bremerton water.  The location of 
each well is identified on Figure 1-2 and the depth provided in the Water Facilities Inventory 
Report Form in Appendix H.  The City has water rights certificates and permits for 13 wells, 7 of 
which are currently in service.  All wells excluding Well 4B are used for domestic water service.  
Well 4B provides irrigation water to the McCormick Land Co.  Total instantaneous authorized 
rights for the 13 wells total 3,513 gpm.  Primary water rights allow withdrawal of 3,610 acre-feet 
per year.  As discussed previously in this chapter, the City has pending water rights applications 
for proposed Wells 12 and 13.  
 
In 2017 the City produced approximately 800 acre-feet of water from the 4 domestic water wells 
currently in use.  This was less than a quarter of the City’s certificated annual water rights of 
3,528 acre-feet per year.  While the City System currently has sufficient instantaneous supply, 
the McCormick Woods System is using nearly all of the available supply.  Existing and 
forecasted water rights are summarized in Table 4-2.  Projected demands for each system and 
for the combined system are presented in Figures 4-1 and 4-2, respectively. 

4.6 Water System Reliability Analysis 
In accordance with DOH’s Water System Reliability Handbook, the three components required 
to summarize system reliability are source reliability, water right adequacy, and facility reliability.   

4.6.1 Source Reliability 

Future sources of supply (Well 11, 12, and 13) will tap into the deep sub-sea level aquifer and 
will resolve multiple public health and safety issues related to aging water system infrastructure 
by allowing the replacement of old wells and siting of new high-capacity, deep aquifer wells at 
the top of the system.  This will both extend the useful life of the City’s wells for more than a 
generation and provide system reliability and cost efficiencies.   

4.6.2 Water Right Adequacy 

Water right adequacy is discussed in Sections 4.4 and 4.5 of this Plan. 

4.6.3 Facility Reliability 

A summary of facility reliability is included in Chapter 3 of the Plan. 

4.6.4 Water Shortage Response Planning 

The City of Port Orchard’s Water Shortage Response is discussed in Section 6.9. 
 
  

DRAFT

Page 90 of 189



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2020 4-20 BHC Consultants, LLC 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK. 
 

DRAFT

Page 91 of 189



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

   Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7B Meeting Date: 
 
August 10, 2021 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Ratifying the  Prepared by: Mark Dorsey, P.E. 
 Mayor’s Execution of Contract No. 067-21,  Public Works Director 
 with Stellar J Corporation for the Pottery      Atty Routing No.: 366922.0009 – PW 
 Lift Station Emergency Repair Atty Review Date: July 23, 2021 

 
Summary: On June 22, 2021, the Port Orchard City Council adopted Resolution No. 044-21, declaring the 
existence of an emergency relating to the repairs of the Pottery Lift Station.  On June 23, 2021, the City 
of Port Orchard Public Works Department called RV Associates, Inc. and Active Construction, Inc. (ACI) 
seeking interest in the Project, and followed up with ACI again on June 28, 2021. On June 29, 2021, the 
City of Port Orchard Public Works Department called the Stellar J Corporation seeking interest in the 
Project, and on July 2, 2021 met with the Stellar J Corporation to discuss Project Scope.  On July 9, 2021, 
the City of Port Orchard was awarded $500K from the Washington State Public Works Board’s 
Emergency Funding Program for the Project. On July 20, 2021, the City of Port Orchard Public Works 
Department received a Proposal for the Pottery Lift Station Emergency Repairs from the Stellar J 
Corporation.  On July 22, 2021, the Mayor executed Contract No. C067-21 with the Stellar J Corporation 
and on July 26, 2021, the Stellar J Corporation executed the Contract and commenced with the Project.  
Earlier this evening, the Port Orchard City Council accepted the $500K from the Washington State Public 
Works Board’s Emergency Funding Program.   
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 056-21, ratifying the Mayor’s execution 
of Contract No. C067-21 with the Stellar J Corporation for the Pottery Lift Station Emergency Repairs 
Project in an amount of $256,150, and documenting the Emergency Services procurement procedures.    
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 7 – Utilities. 
 
Motion for Consideration: I move to adopt Resolution No.  056-21, ratifying the Mayor’s execution of 
Contract No. C067-21 with the Stellar J Corporation for the Pottery Lift Station Emergency Repairs 
Project in an amount of $256,150.    
 
Fiscal Impact: Funding provided via $500K award from the Washington State Public Works Board’s 
Emergency Funding Program. 
 
Attachments: Resolution No. 056-21 and Contract No. C067-21 with Stellar J Corporation Proposal 
(dated 7/20/2021). 

Page 92 of 189



RESOLUTION NO. 056-21 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE PORT ORCHARD CITY COUNCIL TO RATIFY THE MAYOR’S EXECUTION OF 
CONTRACT NO. C067-21 WITH THE STELLAR J CORPORATION FOR THE POTTERY 
LIFT STATION EMERGENCY REPAIRS.  

 
 WHEREAS, on June 22, 2021, the Port Orchard City Council adopted Resolution No. 044-
21, formally declaring the existence of an emergency relating to the repairs of the Pottery Lift 
Station; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on June 23, 2021, the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department called 
RV Associates, Inc. and Active Construction, Inc. (ACI) seeking interest in the Project, and 
followed up with ACI again on June 28, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 29, 2021, the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department called 
the Stellar J Corporation seeking interest in the Project, and on July 2, 2021 met with the Stellar 
J Corporation to discuss Project Scope; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on July 9, 2021, the City of Port Orchard was awarded $500K from the 
Washington State Public Works Board’s Emergency Funding Program for this Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 20, 2021, the City of Port Orchard Public Works Department received 
a Proposal for the Pottery Lift Station Emergency Repairs from the Stellar J Corporation; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on July 22, 2021, the Mayor executed Contract No. C067-21 with the Stellar J 
Corporation; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on August 10, 2021, the Port Orchard City Council accepted the $500K from 
the Washington State Public Works Board’s Emergency Funding Program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the State 
Auditor’s Office, wishes to document their Contractor selection process as described above for 
this Contract by Resolution; now, therefore,  
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

 
THAT:  The City Council approves of and ratifies the Mayor‘s execution of Contract No. 
C067-21 with the Stellar J Corporation for the Pottery Lift Station Emergency Repairs.  
 
 

Page 93 of 189



Resolution No. 056-21 
Page 2 of 2 

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
hereon. 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 

by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of August 2021. 
 
 

 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk  

Page 94 of 189



Page 95 of 189



Page 96 of 189



Page 97 of 189



Page 98 of 189



Page 99 of 189



Page 100 of 189



Page 101 of 189



Page 102 of 189



Page 103 of 189



Page 104 of 189



Page 105 of 189



Page 106 of 189



Page 107 of 189



Page 108 of 189



Page 109 of 189



Page 110 of 189



Page 111 of 189



Page 112 of 189



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7C Meeting Date: August 10, 2021 
 Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing an Prepared by: Debbie Lund 
 Additional One-Time Personal Holiday for  HR Manager 
 Employees Fully Vaccinated Against the     Atty Routing No.: N/A 
 COVID-19 Virus Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  The COVID-19 pandemic continues to impact the City of Port Orchard’s employees, citizens and 
businesses. Individuals can make a choice to slow the spread of the COVID-19 virus by getting the free 
COVID-19 vaccination. The operations of the City depend upon each employee’s ability to report to work 
and perform the functions of their jobs. Encouraging employees to get vaccinated ensures that the 
operations of the City can continue during this ongoing pandemic. Providing for an additional personal 
holiday to recognize and incentivize vaccination against the COVID is an option available to the City and in 
furtherance of the City’s best interests.  
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the City Council adopt the attached resolution authorizing up to 8 
hours of additional personal holiday leave for employees who are fully vaccinated against COVID-19. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt a Resolution, authorizing the Mayor to implement policies 
and agreements to provide for a one-time additional personal holiday for employees who are fully 
vaccinated against COVID-19.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
 
Alternatives: Do not approve the Resolution and provide alternative guidance. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution.  

Page 113 of 189



RESOLUTION NO.  ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
AUTHORIZING A ONE-TIME ADDITIONAL PERSONAL HOLIDAY FOR 
ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES WHO HAVE PROVEN THEIR FULLY VACCINATED 
STATUS AGAINST COVID-19.  

 
 WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic continues to impact the employees and citizens of the 
City of Port Orchard; and 
 
 WHEREAS, individuals have the ability to slow the spread of the pandemic by obtaining a 
free vaccination against the COVID-19 virus; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City encourages all employees to get vaccinated in an effort to protect 
themselves, their families and our citizens; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City operations and overall public health and safety will benefit from the City’s 
efforts to recognize and incentivize employee vaccinations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to recognize and incentivize vaccination against the Covid-19 
virus as part of its overall employee wellness policies; now, therefore; 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: The Mayor is authorized to award fully-vaccinated employees up to 8 additional 
hours of personal holiday time to be used by December 31, 2021.  As a condition to such 
personal holiday, employees must provide proof of their fully-vaccinated status, in 
accordance with those policies and procedures determined by the Mayor to be 
appropriate for this purpose. 
 
THAT: The Mayor is authorized to modify or create any applicable City policies to 
implement this additional leave time. 
 
THAT: The Mayor is authorized to sign any agreement as an addendum to a collective 
bargaining agreement to implement this additional leave time for employees who are 
represented by a union.  

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 

by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of August 2021. 
 

 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk  

Page 114 of 189



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7D Meeting Date: August 10, 2021 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Agreeing to  Prepared by: Nick Bond, AICP 

 Extend the Expiration of the Stetson   DCD Director 
 Heights Preliminary Plat by One Year     Atty Routing No.: Matter 11-Development 
  Atty Review Date: August 4, 2021 

 
Summary:  The Stetson Heights Preliminary plat was approved by the City of Port Orchard Hearing Examiner 
on September 1, 2016. Phase 1 of the preliminary plat was then approved for Final Plat by City Council 
decision on February 9, 2021. The remaining phases of the plat are currently under site development and 
have been cleared and some stormwater improvements have been installed. Utility extensions have also 
begun for the remaining phases of the plat but are not complete. The preliminary plat for phases 2-4 will 
expire on September 1, 2021 unless a one-year extension under Port Orchard Municipal Code 20.88.090(2) is 
granted by the City Council.  
 
Recommendation:  Adoption of a resolution, granting approval of a one-year extension of the expiration of 
the Stetson Heights Preliminary Plat. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Motion for consideration:  I move to adopt a resolution, as presented, granting approval of a one-year 
extension of the expiration of the Stetson Heights Preliminary Plat. 
 
Fiscal Impact: Revenue generated by construction activity, building permit fees, impact fees, sales tax, 
increased property valuation, utility tax.  Expenditures related to ongoing maintenance of public 
infrastructure and provision of services to new residents. 
 
Alternatives: Do not approve a resolution approving the extension of the expiration of the Stetson Heights 
Preliminary Plat. 
 
Attachments: Resolution, Applicant’s Request. 

Page 115 of 189



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, GRANTING AN 
EXTENSION OF THE STETSON HEIGHTS PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR ONE YEAR. 

 
 WHEREAS, on September 1, 2016, the City of Port Orchard Hearing Examiner approved 
the Preliminary Plat for the Stetson Heights subdivision, located west of the intersection of 
Glenwood Rd SW and SW Sedgwick Rd (the “Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Port Orchard approved Phase 1 of the Stetson 
Heights subdivision for Final Plat on February 9, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Phases 2-4 of the preliminary plat are under active stages of site 
development that will not be complete by September 1, 2021 when the preliminary plat will 
expire under RCW 58.17.140; and 
 
 WHEREAS, without a one-year extension as allowed under POMC 20.88.090(2), the 
preliminary plat for the unfinished portions of the site will expire or the applicant will need to 
provide bond estimates for all unfinished work that the City Council would need to agree to 
accept under Final Plat; and 
 
 WHEREAS, approval of a one-year extension of the preliminary plat expiration will result 
in an expiration date of September 1, 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 2, 2021, a request to extend the expiration of the Stetson Heights 
preliminary plat under POMC 20.88.090(2) was submitted by property owners SSHI, LLC dba 
D.R. Horton and SHOR, LLC; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City staff is in agreement that work is underway on the site and substantial 
completion will occur with a one-year extension; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Community Development Director recommends approval of the 
one-year extension of the Stetson Heights Preliminary Plat; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the developer is making significant efforts toward 
completing the improvements required to achieve final plat of the preliminary plat and 
approves a one-year extension of the Stetson Heights Preliminary Plat; now, therefore; 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 

 
THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth 
above are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this 
Resolution; and 
 
 

Page 116 of 189



  Resolution No. ______ 
  Page 2 of 2 

 
THAT:  The Port Orchard City Council finds that a one-year extension of the Stetson 
Heights Preliminary Plat authorized under POMC 20.88.090(2) is approved. 

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
hereon; and 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 

by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of August 2021. 
 

  
 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 117 of 189



SUBDIV 14-02 Stetson Heights
Page 118 of 189

jkrukoff
New Stamp



Page 119 of 189



 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7E Meeting Date: August 10, 2021 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Accepting the Prepared by: Brandy Rinearson, MMC 
 Lodging Tax Advisory Committee’s  City Clerk 
 Recommendation for Distribution of the      Atty Routing No.: N/A 
 Remaining 2021 Funds Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  On July 8, 2021, the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee met to discuss lodging tax funding 
applications received and to provide a recommendation to the Council. On July 13, 2021, the Council 
discussed the allocations and staff explained the reasoning as to why the committee awarded the funds 
as they did. Including, that there were two applicants that asked to have adjustments to their amounts 
submitted for traffic control plan and/or hiring of certified flaggers. This was due to the police 
department staffing levels not adequate to staff events for traffic control needs.   
 
During that discussion, council wanted all the applicants to have the opportunity to adjust their 
applications related to the new expense. Therefore, they remained the recommendation back to the 
committee. 
 
Staff re-opened the acceptance of the application for event organizers to provide additional 
documentation on the amounts for a traffic control plan and/or hiring of certified flaggers and for who 
didn’t have the opportunity submit, could. The City received one amended application and no new 
applications.  
 
The Committee reconvened and discussed the applications and has a recommendation for the Council.  
As a reminder, the Lodging Tax funds are to be used for tourism marketing and marketing and operations 
of festivals and events designed to attract tourists to the City. 
 
As applications for Tourism Marketing have already been allocated late last year, there is $47,500 
remaining. 
 
The Committee’s recommendation is as follows: 
 

Organization FY’s 2021 Funds Requested Committee Recommendation 
Fathoms O’ Fun Festival-Marketing and Operations of 
Events (Amended) 

$22,060 $22,060 

Port Orchard Bay Street Association-Marketing and 
Operations of Events 

$9,000 $9,000 
 

Saints Car Club-Marketing and Operations of Events 
(Amended) 

$3,500 $3,500 

Visit Kitsap, Passport to Port Orchard-Marketing and 
Operations of Events 

$9,500 $0.00 

Visit Kitsap, Ride the Tide Rendezvous-Marketing and 
Operations of Events 

$2,500 $0.00 

Total $46,060 $34,560 
Page 120 of 189



Business Item 7E 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends adoption of a resolution accepting the lodging tax 
recommendations, as presented. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: None. 
 
Motion for consideration:  I move to adopt a resolution, accepting the Lodging Tax Advisory 
Committee’s recommendation for 2021 funding allocations for Marketing and Operations of Events, as 
presented. 
 
Fiscal Impact: $100,000 has been budgeted in the 2021 expenditure portion of the 2021/2022 Biennial 
Budget. 
 
Alternatives: N/A 
 
Attachments:  Resolution and applications. 

 

Page 121 of 189



RESOLUTION NO.  _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
ACCEPTING THE LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE’S 
RECOMMENDATION FOR THE REMAINING 2021 FUNDS. 

 
 WHEREAS, on May 27, 2021, notice was published notifying the public that the City was 
accepting proposals for the Hotel/Motel Lodging Tax funding applications for 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, proposals were due to the City Clerk no later than June 28, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 8, 2021, the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee met to review the applications 
and provide their recommendations to City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 13, 2021, the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee’s recommendation was 
presented to the Council; however, the Council rejected the allocations and remanded it back to the 
committee; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 16, 2021, staff reopened the acceptance of applications for applicants to 
have the opportunity to re-submit new proposals to include the cost of providing a traffic control plan 
and/or certified flaggers for an event/festival designed to attract tourists. The closing date was July 
26, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 29, 2021, the Lodging Tax Committee reconvened to discuss the 
applications and to provide a recommendation to the Council; and now, therefore, 
 
  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY 
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: The City Council accepts the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee’s 2021 lodging 
tax recommendations as follows: 
 

Organization FY’s 2021 Funds Requested Committee Recommendation 
Fathoms O’ Fun Festival-Marketing and Operations of 
Events (Amended) 

$22,060 $22,060 

Port Orchard Bay Street Association-Marketing and 
Operations of Events 

$9,000 $9,000 
 

Saints Car Club-Marketing and Operations of Events 
(Amended) 

$3,500 $3,500 

Visit Kitsap, Passport to Port Orchard-Marketing and 
Operations of Events 

$9,500 $0.00 

Visit Kitsap, Ride the Tide Rendezvous-Marketing and 
Operations of Events 

$2,500 $0.00 

   
Total $46,060 $34,560 

 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 
by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of August 2021. 

 

Page 122 of 189



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
    
Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk  

Page 123 of 189



+:*
City of Port Orchard lodging Tax Applicatiogu(

(RCW 67.28.1816)

Application Deadline:For Budget Year:

2021 202t, 4:00 .m

Applicants may consist of convention and visitors' bureaus, destination marking organizations, nodprofits,
including main street organizatlons, lodging associates, or chambers of commerce, and additionally the cities or
towns themselves.

Please read carefully and include all information. Omitting requested information could result in having your

application denied. Keep your answers clear, concise, and to the point of the question. Do not include
presentation materials, as these materials are more approprlate to be used as part of your oral presentation. Do

not include brochures or information not related to your project or request.

Submit completed signed application to the City Clerk's office by the appllcatlon deadline listed at the top of this
application. Mailing address: City Clerk's Office, City of Port Orchard, Port Orchard, WA 98366. Email address:

citvcle rk@ciWof porto rcha rd. us.

NO LATE APPIICATIONS Wltt BE ACCEPTED. Even if postmarked earlier, applications will not be accepted if
received after the application deadline.

1. Applicantlnformation

Orsanization Name
FATHOMS O' FUN FESTIVAL, INC.

Street Address
8251 SE O'FarrellLane
City
Port Orchard
Phone
360-871-1805

Mailing Address (if different from street address)
PO Box 312

Name of Executive Director/President
Sharron E

zip
98366

Type of Organization: [f ono

Funding Requested for (choose onel:

Are you a flrst-time participant?

Agency Other

g and Operations of Events E Teurisrn Markettng

E*"

501(C)4

[flMarketin

[l'",

Available Funding:

s47,800

City
Port Orchard

State
WA

State
WA

7ip
98366

Fax

nla

2. Applicant Contact lnformation

Name

Sharron E King
Phone

360-871 -1 805

Position/fitle
PresidenUChair

Email Address

city of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect street, Port orchard, WA 98366 (3601876-4407

ki

Page 1 of 4

Page 124 of 189



3. Overall Event or Project Detail (please attach additional paperwork if needed)

T]tle Fathoms O'Fun Festival Marketing & Operations of Events

Amountoffundingrequested 5221060 Total overall Event or Project Amount $ 77,860.00

A. Describe your overall event or proiect.

please see our tentative event list...some events have been cancelled and Fall Follies Festival

is still pending approval as of this date.

B. Desffibe how your overall event or proJect will provide a community economic beneflt.

Our events held downtown; i.e.,vendor shows, the Fireworks Show,Festival by the Bay, the-

Grand parade, and the Seagull Splat Run are allfocused on bringing people to downtown Port

Orchard. We expect them to expiore Port Orchard, shop in the businesses, eat at restaurants,
E

C. Please descrlbe how you wlll measure the lmpact your overall event or proiect wlll have on tourism or

projected increase ln tourlsm. Please be speclflc and provlde examples.

Our events bring a variety of out of town guests to Port Orchard. Our Festival Float travels to

15-17 out of town parades and is seen bY thousands .in person and on TV. The Fireworks

Show alone draws thousands to the waterfront in Port Orchard and Bremerton. We obtain zip

codes where we can from Concerts and through run reg istrations, and hotel zips on event dates

4. Overall Event or Project Budget Summary

A. Describe, and be specific, on what you would spend the requested lodging tax funds on.

LTAC funding would help cover the cost of (1) major event specific marketing,. (2) Operations

General Expenses, (3) Float travel costs, (4) Quality musicians to perform at the ufreeu Concerts

by the Bay irom JunL-Rugust, (5) Fireworks show barge costs, (6) Flaggers for events

B. lncome Other Than Lodglng Tax lfrom sponsorships, grants, donation and admission fees)

lf you anticipate receiving portialjunding for this activity from dnother source, please list the source(s) opproximate

Lmount, and status of funding. lndicote the entry or odmission fee if one will be chorged.

SOURCE

Credit Union

Kitsap County

Kitsap Physical Therapy

Port Of Bremerton

Port Of Bremerton

Denette Chu/Edward Jones

Waterman Mitigation

Peninsula Credit Union

Kitsap Bank

WAVE

Country Financial

AMOUNT

s 3,500.00

$ 3,000.00

$ soo.oo

$ 6,500.00

s 2,000.00

s soo.oo

s so0.o0

S soo.oo

s 2,000.00

s 13,000.00

s 2,000.00

Confirmed or Projected?

Confirmed

Confirmed

Projected-Aug

Confirmed

Confirmed

Confirmed

Confirmed

Confirmed

Confirmed

Confirmed

Projected-Aug

s 34,000.00

Page 125 of 189



C. Other ExpenseS Of Ovgrall Evgnt or Project (ontycomptetebetowboxesthotateappltcabtetoyowoverolteventorproiectthotvouore

seeklng funds lor.l

28 ol*City Lodging Tax funds would represent what percentage of your overall budget?

Can you operate this project with reduced funding?@[re, flno lf yes, explain below:

We would eliminate our float travel, cut event marketing, and cancel band contracts due to lack of funding

Proposed CitY
IITACI Funds

other committed
Funds

Total

operations (postage, fuel,
Dermits, etc,)

s 1, 000
s 2,soo s 3,500

Event Marketing 5 1,soo s 2,500 $ 4,ooo

Tourism Marketing s Pr"u. granted rCsoo 53,boo

er s 19,560 $ 47,300 $66,860

TOTATCOSTS sbz,o6o s5s,8oo s7z,860

D. Other Financial lnformation

Does your overall event or proJect have provisions (or for becoming less d ependent on Lodging
admission,lMeoning does the overall event or proiect have the to increase revenue bY chorging

etc.l

Finding businesses who have a community spirit in their hearts to bring events to Port Orchard and advertise

their business via our events they sponsor.

lf not, what are your challenges of generating new revenues:

Finding businesses who have a community spirit in their hearts to bring events to Port orchard and advertise

their business via our events they sponsor.

5. Estimated Numbers of lncreased Tourism
*lf you received todglng toxlunds lost year, you must ottach last yeafs reporting*

Applicants applyin g for use of LTAC funds must provide estimates of how it will result in increases in the number of people

traveli for business or ona as ired RCW 67.28.1816

ologyl

Overall Attendance: Guestimate - TV audience 500,000

Attendees who traveled 50 miles or more to attend:

Total

Of total, attendees who traveled from

another state or country:

Attendees who staYed overnight:

Paid accommodations

U npaid accommodations:

Paid todging nights:

zip codes

zip codes

nla

nla

ActuallProjected

30 000

1,000

150

200

175

i i\ctr.ral rtt.ttttlters rvill be requireo to be reported to the City in 2022

130

City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (360) 876-4407

zip codes

Page 3 of 4

Page 126 of 189



The opplicant hereby certifies and confirms that it does not now nor will it during the performonce ol ony contract

resulting from this proposal unlawfutty discriminate against any employee, applicant for employment' client' customer' or

other person(s) by reoson of rdce, etinicity, color, religion, oge, gender, nationo! origin, or disability. Thot it will obide by

all relevont locol, stote, ani Tederol laws and regulotions. Thot it hos resd and understonds the information contained in

this application for funding ind is in compllonce with the provisions thereof, and; thot the individuol signing below has the

outhorlty to certify to theie provisions for the applicont orgonization, and declores thot he/she is on duthorized olficlal of

the applicant organization, is quthorized to moke this opplicotion, is duthorized to commft the organization in findncial

matters, will assure thot any funds received as o result of this appticotion ore used for the purposes set forth herein, and

verifles thot dl! the informotbn contained in this oppticotion is valid and true to the best of his/her knowledge.

Certified

Print or Type Name

Sharron E King

Date

July 26,2021

Title

PresidenUChair

re

City of Port orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (360) 8764407 Page 4 of 4

Page 127 of 189



FATHOMS O'FUN FESTIVAL INC.

2021 PROJECTED BUDGET - Reu 7l26l2L
REVENUE:

Vendor Fees

Wheels on the Waterfront Car Show Fees

Seagull Splat Run Registration Fees

Kitsap Credit Union

Kitsap Physical Therapy

Port Of Bremerton

Port Of Bremerton

Denette Chu/Edward Jones

Waterman Mitigation

Peninsula Credlt Union

Kitsap Bank

WAVE

Country Financial

Kiwanis Club

Other funding needed

Kltsap county LTAC Request

Tourism (granted)

Fireworks (requesting from 2020 award)

Sub Total

City of Port Orchard LTAC Request

Tourlsm (GRANTED for Discover Kltsapl

Marketlng & Operatlons ol Events:

Event Marketing

Operatlng Exp

Float (travel for 2021)

Concerts by the Bay

Fireworks-Barge

RCE Traffoc Control-Grand Parade

RCE Traffic Control - Seagull Splat Run

Sub Total

Total Proiected Revenue

EXPENSES:

Tourism Marketing

Event Marketing

Operations/General Expenses

Float Travel

Concerts by the Bay

Fireworks Barge Expense

lnsurance-Auto & Liability

Sani-Can Order-All Events

Wheels on the Waterfront (Awards & Slgnage)

Seagull Splat Run (shirts, signage, medals)

Seagull Splat Run-Port Orchard Police(2)

RCE Trafflc Control - Seagull Splat Run

RCE Traffic Control - Grand Parade

Grand Parade

Parade Shuttle Service

July 10th Fireworks Show

Festival by the Bay-New signs & Banner

Battle of the Bands

Easter Egg Drive-Thru

s

s

$

$

s

s

s

s

$

s

s
$

s

s

5

6,000.00

2,035.00

3,000.00

3,s00.00

500.00

5,500.00

2,000.00

500.00

500.00

500.00

2,000.00

13,000.00

2,000.00

100.00

2,t6s.00

Parade Sponsor-from 2020

Seagull Splat Run

Fireworks-funding from 2020

Concerts-funding from 2020

Concerts

Concerts

Concerts

Concerts

Flreworks

Fall Follies Festival Vendor Show

Easter Egg Hunt

Note: This budget does not
reflect the FOF Royolty
Scholorship Program

TotalSub $ 44,300.00

$ 8,ooo.oo

3s00

S 77,860.00

5,000

3,000

s3,s00

s1,s00

51,000

S1,soo

$5,000

ss,s00

s3,449

S3,111

s
s

$

s

s

s
s

s

s

s

s

$

s

5

$

5

s

s

s

3,500.00

4000.00
3,500.00

1,500.00

11,000.00

5,500,00

7,000.00

2,100,00

1,200.00

1,s00.00

600.00

3,111.00

3,449.00

5,600.00

900.00

22,500.00

1,s00.00

2,500.00

400.00

Total Expenses I 77,860.00

Page 128 of 189



FATHOMS O' FUN FESTIVAL GRAND PARADE .91412021"

Parade starts at 6 PM and ends approximately 7:30 PM

Floats can arrive as early as 12 noon at Bethany Lutheran

Based on Non-Union Wages

RCE Traffic Control Fees for Flaggers - Fees are Overtime for Saturdoy - $48/hour

RCE Trolfic control Fees for Tralfic control supervisors - Tees ore overtime for saturdoy - $82,50/Hr

Attfees are based on o "A-hour" Minimum

Street Locations: (Flaggers) - S S/hr
Tremont & Bethany Lutheran Church

Tremont & Port Orchard Blvd (top of hill)

Bay & Port Orchard Blvd. (Bottom of hill)

Bay & Kline St.

Bay & Sidney St.

Bay & Rockwell

Bay & Bethel (lntersection)

Traffic Control Supervisors - $82.50/hr
Tremont & Port Orchard Blvd (top of hill)

Bay & Port Orchard Blvd. (Bottom of hill)

Bay & Bethel (lntersection)

Extra Equipment Required:

Signage (6 signs)

Cones (15 approx)

Type lll Barricade with sign:

Bethel, Rockwell, Sidney, Prospect, Kline

Po Blvd (2)

$ 24o.oo

s 288.00

s 288.00

s 192.00

s 1e2.00

5 i 92.oo

S rgz.oo

1.2pm-5pm aPProx

2pm-7:30pm aPProx

2pm-7:30pm approx

5:30-7:30pm aPProx

5:30-7:30pm approx

5:30-7:30pm aPProx

5:30-7:30pm aPProx

b-totalSu

$ ggo.oo

$ 33o.oo

S ggo.oo

s 1,584.00

s ee0.00Sub-tota

s
s
s

630.00
18.75

266.00
$ 9x4.7s

Total Fee Cost S 3,488.75

( i'"
\Q/

Page 129 of 189



SEAGULSPTAT RUN EXTRA PROJECTED COSTS FOR CERTIFIED FTAGGERS

Run Starts at 0900 hours and ends approximately 11:00 a.m'

RCETraffic Control Feeslor Flaggers - Fees Double time for Sundoy - SU/hour
RCE Traflic Control Fees for Traffic Control Supervisors - Fees Double time for Sunday - $770/hour
All fees are bosed on a "4-hour" Mlnimum

Street Locations: (Flaggersl - $eS/nr
Pedestrian PathWay turning left onto Beach Drive

Tracy Avenue N

Arnold Ave E

Retsil Rd E

Olney turnaround point

Parking Lot @ Whiskey Gulch

Traffic Control Supervisors - 2 required - $110/hr
Pedestrian Pathway at Beach Drive

Olney & Beach Drive
Sub-total

Extra Equipment Required:

Signage (6 signs)

Cones (20 approx)
Type lll Barricade (2)- Beach & at Olney

Total Fee Cost

$

$

s
s
s
s

256.00
256.00
256.00

256.00
256.00
256.00

Sub-tota

5 440.00

$ 440.00

s 1,536.00

s 88o.oo

S oso.oo

s 2s.oo

s 40.00

s 69s.00

$ 3,u1.oo

g/;
Page 130 of 189



C€IACrr tFictli: FCil:Nn

i.i . PoRT ORCHARD, WA98366-8527

'i
t:

,.;.i CITYENDORSEMENTS:

ii poRT oRoHARD NoNPRoFlr BUSINESS - AcTlvE

,t
.'! REctsTERED TFTADE NAMES:

:. FATHOMS O' FUN FESTIVAL' INC.
. . FATHOMS O'FUN FESTIVAL

.:

:1.,

l:l
,' l

'I !

li!

s-:fiE oF Yr'ASHlNGToll
Expires: Feb28,2021

UBI: 601239098 001 000'l

FATHOMS OFUN FESTIVAL
FATHOMS O'FUN FESTIVAL INC.

S251 SEOFARRELLLN
PORT ORCHARD. WA 98366.8527

PORT ORCHARD NONPROFIT

EUSINESS.ACTIVE

]fuj.4".4t
@

t'.
i',

il!--:i'Jl{ T}llg r[gilo! ici{ Ycr:1ft !'Ii!LEI

l)i(rcloi DFD^rlolcnl oi R(v(nue

Page 131 of 189



.i
E:

JilITERI\INL REUSJUE €EatlxeE
DI$TFIGT. ilIFlEnTSiq
P, i;fl ;:FSll 1'AFEB :.'...1,i,f ;

qii'19.5J,ilrt$Ir,- - sl.l j,ffi fl i

neie', 

" 
dug'e'd #

r-n IJ{0r',$ : 
0 .FLI!,.I FESTI UAL

.'$/'0;TU[50N rld. TUENEE .
p0..qo-l{ 5iE
FORI OHCHAEO - H.S . ggTS$

I q ;!rh.e. ;r.g i.urii -=q.ven
rsht{jre.d to fjl*- s

EEF$BE9ENT flF ?l'jE' TfiEd;lijRy

Enpl.oyer. Sdsnti fduallen Nurlber.e
E 

' 
-i s4JZOB

ilLNs
t172e7844

Coni:ag'l Ferson':
. D, P|.ID0.4J\!JI\[S : :

$oniact T"=Jilt;;; Nunbers
i5l3l 24i:Sl9E

inter-naL flnrrenue Drde
Seciion 541{e .){{.1

Areounxins Period Ending:
Setlreni:er -E@

Fcrrn 996 lie{utrecl s

Yes
Addsndum Asnlies:

No

i f . yqr ds nof; exceed tj-.re srosS
i.i':s'Jy ettach the libe.: arayjded

receipts:'-tesii i
. etieiii *t=;

ynu,-.ennuel n,irrs.F lggeJnts pi:.e,norlaailv. ':.

annual acccdrit-t ngD

F":,?r flggl.icani; ' i

:

EE'qed on inFsr-l,r;etinn surg-lied. a;:d e,s.sgptjilg your aFcrEtions r,;ill be a;sie-teri jn l'our ecnijcatjnn fsr recoerri'.rion of. iiesntirln. Lre lev,.* r:teiiri,lln.l
ltEU are e'.*en$'-t frsrq F;dereJ t:n9gr.i6 lax unde.r section *E0l(a) of the inter-nEL:Eavenrre Gcde a-c an +rsanieation dessrilred i.a the reri-inn'Iio:r"t.i il;;."--

LJnl*--e "-sacificallv exceni;d" i/f,iu are liahle r"or ia;lrs under ti:e Federai.itl.sttj'anc* Cernlrjbutjons Ac'! f soeial .qeesrity iu""") for eech erlllorrr=* *o 
"t 

oil.votr BE)'r Sl06 o.r -t'J4rE during a calendan year^- 'And- unJess a;cepted--nou-.."-i.a.lso JiebJe frl^ i:ax under ilre. Federal Lhsmsloynen'il Tax nci: fCIs-- ea"i er,rntprree,Eg sho-": !'eu Er^Ir $LEO ar rror* dr-iring e eelenrlei- qg*ri,er ii. during ihe cument:sr c'r-e'ceciinq calendar vea'-- vrt! bad Fne or nlore er.rslo\reei gt uiv i-i,,,e -t.., eacl,oi' ?0 aaiendar rrrEs;,r or yo! naid urapes sf $l .FDg cr "o"i-rn-*;;'";l;;d;; 
"-'l

4uat't'er' If :rplJ i.rdyr any euesiions *boui eiidi-qe- emplovnen-i.- or oi.he;- Fedsru,ita-':ee- glcra:rs eddreaE i.hen i;o thts of flce" 
:

ff vnu.' *irlrJrcE€ ef -sugnsri. e-r your pp'ppeeE- sharaci-er..'or nethod oi,oner-qtisn ehan4e. t!=as'+ ie!.'us Jtnns Fa cl* can consln'er the if i*"{-of tt-.t*chnnoe 0n !nq. e.,ienEt.-i;i:!g.. rn ihe ^uue'oi;-il;;;;""ii.*"';;;;;";;I;u-.t'jCInal' docun=nt er hvJ.aso- nf eese.FFnd ll-q E Eopy of the arrrer-rded goou*;ii.li i "bvlar,Ls" f)Jasr" ybr.r sheurd inforra ur pf arl shanaa"'.:n vaur-;;;;;;-;';;;;";: .

In '-che':l'readjlg ef thir leiter r,;e heyE Jnrjjented wherher You i'tuct'f3.1e Forl:
S9CI; lTetir-n .nf .0rnanrzation.Exeng,* Fr-oli .fnccEe Tex. I f Yes l.i inclirated- vftti
er'* r6[!Ji,ped to ioil* Fors F.q0.crnlv ilo vlrur Gro$E rerejp-i:s ehch vtqF7. -eFFl
ns,rnelly moJ:F iha.'7 S?5 .nEtd, :" -Hnue.yer if -you necejye a Forr,r -q-qQ 

- 
nac.! aee..' j n .i.li:1m;r t nl FdFE; .rJfi yc'u ard n o1;.

box in ihi
u?F-ti44 oi

.!r
nrinri: e i
ID

i'?.:,i:.
I nIJfq . B
:. i'"'.i.. '

I --r--J C r..F.a

@

ih'e dnl t:'IEl! E

' un] eEs..;.ihere-..j 6
y..inarii*d caniio'-t.. ..'. .:.: |:.

Page 132 of 189



D[Js FHBRI.JF.iRY 4,3G3g -t'1oetA,r-E bl .bzn

EXE{NtsIT'C

lmfonmatlom

Attendees who stlyed overnight:
ln Paid accommodations:

ln UnPald accorn modations:

Name:

Actiuity Date:
Start Date:

Funds

Awarded:

Cost

Comments:

Frojected Actual {Estimated}

Overall attendance:

Projected parade viewersip numbers are from above actual" does not include W viriwershiP

Attendees who traveled:
50 miles or more

1,ooo

Out of State or Country:
150 136

Notes: Zip codes actually collected at concerts and by hotel for parade weekend and 4th of July

*Methodology {See description page}

Direct Count

End Datel

260

250

260

L25

Notes: Zip codes collected by hotel for our event nights

Paid lodging night:
130 Direct Count

Notes: Zip codes collected by hotel and paid lodging nights provided by for parade weekend and 4th of July

of Events&

lnc.Fathoms O' Fun Festiva

27,OOO

2:0,8L4

130

float has signate that stages it is from Port Orchard so the viewship, not only attendees actually watching,

vendor shows draw out of town vendors, as does the Seagull Splat Run'

also cannot collectively count the number of attendees on the waterfront who watch the fireworks show!

televised.

float.

Show.

all

our
are

see

Fireworks

also

parades
lnlet

w
Seafair

Sinclair

watching

and

the

those

views
Marysville

also

Daffodil,

Bremertonof
Olympia,

Citythea5

parades.16

Hotels,Bremerton
approximatelYto

downtownthe

Washingtonof
acount

state
into
the

takenotdo

throughout
stats

travel
July

float
of

FFO

4th

Page 133 of 189



',;:

.i

Mffi
PARAEE VOEWER PART'ICIPIqTIEN
(Stats directly from each festival organization) .-

TV count
Taconra

Sumner

Srting
Puyaflurp

Marysville
Porr Orchard
SE/\FAIR

PortTownsend
Olympia
China Town
McCleary
Forest Festival
Bremerton Armed
Whaling Days

Lake City
Leavenworth
Viking Fest
Lake City

25,000

20,000

L5,000

40,000

30,000
5,000

250,000

7,O00

35,000
25,000
3,000
5,000

40,000

5,000

25,000

15,000
5,000

L8,000
568,000

100,000

1000
L Mil

2000

T'otaI

it)(, A hrul fuU erL
,r)\- 2OA* 4*a/4

e
@

Page 134 of 189



Page 135 of 189



Page 136 of 189



Page 137 of 189



Page 138 of 189



Page 139 of 189



Page 140 of 189



Page 141 of 189



Page 142 of 189



Page 143 of 189



Page 144 of 189



a'r .!l
-t 

I ['ffs
lg (u;'l

For Budget Year:

202L
Application Deadline:

4:00 m.

Applicants may consist of convention and visitors' bureaus, destination marking organizations, nonprofits,
including main street organizations, lodging associates, or chambers of commerce, and additionally the cities or
towns themselves.

Please read carefully and include all information. Omitting requested information could result in having your
application denied. Keep your answers clear, concise, and to the point of the question. Do not include
presentation materials, as these materials are more appropriate to be used as part of your oral presentation. Do

not include brochures or information not related to your project or request.

Submit completed signed application to the City Clerk's office by the application deadline listed at the top of this
application. Mailing address: City Clerk's Office, City of Port Orchard, Port Orchard, WA 98366. Email address:

citvclerk@citvof portorcha rd. us.

NO LATE APPLICATIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED. Even if postmarked earlier, applications will not be accepted if
received after the application deadline.

L. Applicant lnformation

Organization Name

Saints Car Club
Street Address

5147 E Collins RD
Mailing Address (if different from street address)

City of Port Orchard Lodging Tax App
(RCW 67.28.1816)

City

Port Orchard
Phone

360-674-7107

Type of Organization: El Nonprofit

Funding Requested for (choose one): [l Marketing and Operations of Events

Are you a first-time participant? E Yes El No

7ip

Name of Executive Director/President
Bill Hubbell

E GovernmentAgency il Other-

I Teurism Marlceting

Available Funding:

State

WA
zip
98366

City State

Fax

2. Applicant Contact lnformation

Name

Keith Woyshnis
Phone

360-674-7107

Position/Title

Email Address

kkwS6@hotmail.com

City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (3601 876-4407 Page 1 of 4
Page 145 of 189



3. Overall Event or Project Detail (ptease attach additionat paperwork if

Title
The Cruz

Amount of funding requested s zSQo 
e Total Overall Event or Project Amount s9000,00

A. Describe your overall event or proiect.
A one day car show with various venders

B. Describe how your overall event or project will provide a community economic benefit.
By attracting various persons from various communities from all directions of Port Orchard and
other states and countrys

4. Overall Event or Project Budget Summary

C. Please describe how you will measure the impact your overall event or project will have on tourism or
proiected increase in tourism, Please be specific and provide examples. OUf infOfmatiOn COmeS ff'm

talking with participants and-visitors. They love the event & the city of Port Orchard. They enjoy
coming to visit and plan for future visits and will spread the word about our event and
our community.

A. Describe, and be specific, on what you would spend the requested lodging tax funds on.

Advertizing/Marketing for th r Cruz

Fl n ea tT' 6 r-4ra FF|c- co L'-/L' L

B. lncome Other Than Lodging Tax (from sponsorships, grants, donation and admission fees)
lf you anticipote receiving portial funding for this octivity from onother source, pleose list the source(s) opproximote
amount, ond status of funding. lndicote the entry or odmission fee if one will be chorged.

SOURCE AMOUNT Confirmed or Projected?
lf projected, what is the anticipated

receipt date?

Trophy sales
s 1800.00 30 days before Cruz

Legacy sponsors
s

3100.00 30 days before Cruz

Entry fees
s

6000.00 Day of Cruz

T-Shirt sales
s 3750.00 Day of Cruz

TOTAL: s

City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (3601 876-4407 Page2 of 4

Page 146 of 189



Proposed City
(LTAC) Funds

Other Committed
Funds

Total

Operations (postage, fuel,
oermits. etc.)

5
0

5
0

so

Event Marketing s zgoo.oo s 1865.00 s 4165.00
Tourism Marketing 5 5 s

Other Activities
Explain:

S s s

TOTAL COSTS 5* 2300.00 s 1865.00 5 4165.00

C. Othef EXpenSeS Of OVefall EVent Of PfOjeCt (ontycomptetebetowboxesthqtareappticobtetoyouroveratteventorproiectthatyouqre

seeking funds for.\

*City Lodging Tax funds would represent what percentage of your overall budget? 8.16

Can you operate this project with reduced funding? El Yes tr No lf yes, explain below:

lncrease entry fees,sponserships, etc to offset costs would require more out of pocket from citizens

D. Other Financial lnformation

Does your overall event or project have provisions (or plans) for becoming less dependent on Lodging Tax funding?
(Meoning does the overall event or project have the ability to increose revenue by chorging admission, increasing fees,
etc.l

lf not, what are your challenges of generating new revenues

5. Estimated Numbers of lncreased Tourism
*lf you received lodging tax funds last year, you must ottach last yeor's reporting*
Applicants applying for use of LTAC funds must provide estimates of how it will result in increases in the number of people

travelin for business or leasure on a t as ired RCW 67.28.1816

ogyl

Overall Attendance:

Attendees who traveled 50 miles or more to attend

Total:

Of total, attendees who traveled from
another state or count

Attendees who stayed overnightr

Paid accommodations:

Unpaid accommodations:

ActuallProjected

20,000

80

10

25

30

Paid Lodging nights:

15

l Actual numbers will be required to be reported to the City in2022

city of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port orchard, WA 98366 (360) 876-4407 Page 3 of 4
Page 147 of 189



The applicant hereby certifies ond confirms thot it does not now nor will it during the performonce of ony contract
resulting from this proposol unlawfully discriminote ogoinst ony employee, opplicont for employment, client, customer, or
other person(s) by reoson of roce, ethnicity, color, religion, age, gender, national origin, or disobitity. Thot it witt obide by
all relevqnt locol, stote, and federol lows ond regulotions. Thst it hos reod ond understonds the informotion contained in
this opplicotion for funding ond is in compliance with the provisions thereof, ond; thot the individuol signing below hos the
outhority to certify to these provisions for the opplicant orgonization, ond declores that he/she is on authorized official of
the opplicont organizotion, is quthorized to make this opplicotion, is authorized to commit the orgonization in financial
motters, will ossure that ony funds received os a result of this opplicotion ore used for the purposes set forth herein, ond
verifies thst sll the informotion contoined in this application is volid ond true to the best of his/her knowledge.

Certified By: Signature Date
e r')'r )

Print or Type Na

Bill Hubbell

Title

Cruz Director

Any excess funds would be donated to local charitys

City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (3601 e76-44O7 Page 4 of 4
Page 148 of 189



City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (360) 876-4407 Page 1 of 4 

City of Port Orchard Lodging Tax Application 
 

 (RCW 67.28.1816) 

For Budget Year: 
2021 

Available Funding: 
$47,800 

Application Deadline: 
06/28/2021, 2021, by 4:00 p.m. 

Applicants may consist of convention and visitors’ bureaus, destination marking organizations, nonprofits, 
including main street organizations, lodging associates, or chambers of commerce, and additionally the cities or 
towns themselves. 

Please read carefully and include all information. Omitting requested information could result in having your 
application denied. Keep your answers clear, concise, and to the point of the question. Do not include 
presentation materials, as these materials are more appropriate to be used as part of your oral presentation. Do 
not include brochures or information not related to your project or request. 

Submit completed signed application to the City Clerk’s office by the application deadline listed at the top of this 
application. Mailing address: City Clerk’s Office, City of Port Orchard, Port Orchard, WA 98366. Email address: 
cityclerk@cityofportorchard.us. 

NO LATE APPLICATIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED. Even if postmarked earlier, applications will not be accepted if 
received after the application deadline.  

1. Applicant Information

Organization Name 

Street Address Mailing Address (if different from street address) 

City State Zip City State Zip 

Phone Fax Name of Executive Director/President 

Type of Organization:   Nonprofit ________________  Government Agency  Other ___________________

Funding Requested for (choose one):       Marketing and Operations of Events  Tourism Marketing

  Are you a first-time participant?                Yes      No        

2. Applicant Contact Information

Name Position/Title 

Phone Email Address 

Visit Kitsap

9230 Bayshore Drive 

Silverdale WA 98383

x 501c6

X

X

Beth Javens Director

360-908-0088
beth.javens@visitkitsap.com

Page 149 of 189

mailto:cityclerk@cityofportorchard.us


City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (360) 876-4407 Page 2 of 4 

3. Overall Event or Project Detail (please attach additional paperwork if needed)

Title 

Amount of funding requested $ Total Overall Event or Project Amount       $ 

A. Describe your overall event or project.

B. Describe how your overall event or project will provide a community economic benefit.

C. Please describe how you will measure the impact your overall event or project will have on tourism or
projected increase in tourism. Please be specific and provide examples.

4. Overall Event or Project Budget Summary

A. Describe, and be specific, on what you would spend the requested lodging tax funds on.

B. Income Other Than Lodging Tax (from sponsorships, grants, donation and admission fees)
If you anticipate receiving partial funding for this activity from another source, please list the source(s) approximate
amount, and status of funding. Indicate the entry or admission fee if one will be charged.

SOURCE AMOUNT Confirmed or Projected? 
If projected, what is the anticipated 
receipt date? 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

    TOTAL: $ 

Passport to Port Orchard

9500 9500

 Visit Kitsap  would like to create a Port Orchard 
"city-pass" featuring all Port Orchard retail, 
museum and lodging, cultural related businesses 
and organizations also featuring events funded 
by LTAC. 

A passport to all PO businesses with promotion of VKP on radio social media and proprietary back-end web technology
will help bring attention to Bay Street and other businesses and events and foot traffic.

The proprietary software includes  opt-in capabilities and technology that 
enables VKP to provide reports and check-ins to local businesses. A restaurant 
might choose to offer a discount or game and VKP will aid in promotion and 
generate monthly reports for check-ins and earnings.

The LTAC funds enable us to create the Port Orchard passport and obtain the technology, utilize staff 
time to collaborate with PO businesses to create itineraries and generate reports to both businesses and 
LTAC. No guess work involved. The digital reports track user opt-ins, also check-ins and earnings.

1,000

1000

Washington Tourism Alliance Fall 2021

Page 150 of 189



City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (360) 876-4407 Page 3 of 4 

C. Other Expenses of Overall Event or Project (Only complete below boxes that are applicable to your overall event or project that you are
seeking funds for.)

Proposed City 
(LTAC) Funds 

Other Committed 
Funds 

Total 

Operations (postage, fuel, 
permits, etc.) 

$ $ $ 

Event Marketing $ $ $ 

Tourism Marketing $ $ $ 

Other Activities 
Explain: 

$ $ $ 

TOTAL COSTS $* $ $ 

*City Lodging Tax funds would represent what percentage of your overall budget?  _________________%

Can you operate this project with reduced funding?  Yes  No    If yes, explain below: 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

D. Other Financial Information
____________________________________________________________________ 
Does your overall event or project have provisions (or plans) for becoming less dependent on Lodging Tax funding? 
(Meaning does the overall event or project have the ability to increase revenue by charging admission, increasing fees, 
etc.) 

If not, what are your challenges of generating new revenues: 

5. Estimated Numbers of Increased Tourism
*If you received lodging tax funds last year, you must attach last year’s reporting*
Applicants applying for use of LTAC funds must provide estimates of how it will result in increases in the number of people
traveling for business or pleasure on a trip as required by RCW 67.28.1816:

Projected Actual1 Methodology1 
Overall Attendance: 

Attendees who traveled 50 miles or more to attend: 

Total: 

Of total, attendees who traveled from 
another state or country: 

Attendees who stayed overnight: 
Paid accommodations: 

Unpaid accommodations: 

Paid Lodging nights: 

1 Actual numbers will be required to be reported to the City in 2022. 

1000

9500itinerary creation, content

Start-up and  ongoing reporting

2



This funding is necessary for start-up  costs and ongoing  reporting

There is an opportunity for cost-sharing  in 2022 and beyond once  the program is built and proven however there 
are annual licensing fees.  If the program doesn't pay for itself in 2021or show a progress toward economic impact 
(financial return to businesses, orgs and events) it can be discontinued or rolled into VKP's program.

1000

350

75

25

900

If funding permits for 2022 we can provide 
geotracking

9500

for accuracy

Page 151 of 189



City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (360) 876-4407 Page 4 of 4 

The applicant hereby certifies and confirms that it does not now nor will it during the performance of any contract 
resulting from this proposal unlawfully discriminate against any employee, applicant for employment, client, customer, or 
other person(s) by reason of race, ethnicity, color, religion, age, gender, national origin, or disability. That it will abide by 
all relevant local, state, and federal laws and regulations. That it has read and understands the information contained in 
this application for funding and is in compliance with the provisions thereof, and; that the individual signing below has the 
authority to certify to these provisions for the applicant organization, and declares that he/she is an authorized official of 
the applicant organization, is authorized to make this application, is authorized to commit the organization in financial 
matters, will assure that any funds received as a result of this application are used for the purposes set forth herein, and 
verifies that all the information contained in this application is valid and true to the best of his/her knowledge. 

Certified By: Signature Date 

Print or Type Name  Title 
6-28-2021

Beth Javens Director

Page 152 of 189



City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (360) 876-4407 Page 1 of 4 

City of Port Orchard Lodging Tax Application 
 

 (RCW 67.28.1816) 

For Budget Year: 
2021 

Available Funding: 
$47,800 

Application Deadline: 
06/28/2021, 2021, by 4:00 p.m. 

Applicants may consist of convention and visitors’ bureaus, destination marking organizations, nonprofits, 
including main street organizations, lodging associates, or chambers of commerce, and additionally the cities or 
towns themselves. 

Please read carefully and include all information. Omitting requested information could result in having your 
application denied. Keep your answers clear, concise, and to the point of the question. Do not include 
presentation materials, as these materials are more appropriate to be used as part of your oral presentation. Do 
not include brochures or information not related to your project or request. 

Submit completed signed application to the City Clerk’s office by the application deadline listed at the top of this 
application. Mailing address: City Clerk’s Office, City of Port Orchard, Port Orchard, WA 98366. Email address: 
cityclerk@cityofportorchard.us. 

NO LATE APPLICATIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED. Even if postmarked earlier, applications will not be accepted if 
received after the application deadline.  

1. Applicant Information

Organization Name 

Street Address Mailing Address (if different from street address) 

City State Zip City State Zip 

Phone Fax Name of Executive Director/President 

Type of Organization:   Nonprofit ________________  Government Agency  Other ___________________

Funding Requested for (choose one):       Marketing and Operations of Events  Tourism Marketing

  Are you a first-time participant?                Yes      No        

2. Applicant Contact Information

Name Position/Title 

Phone Email Address 

Visit Kitsap

9230 Bayshore Drive

Silverdale
WA 98027

360-908-0088 Beth Javens

X 501c6

X

X

Beth Javens Director

beth.javens@visitkitsap.com360-908-0088

Page 153 of 189

mailto:cityclerk@cityofportorchard.us


City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (360) 876-4407 Page 2 of 4 

3. Overall Event or Project Detail (please attach additional paperwork if needed)

Title 

Amount of funding requested $ Total Overall Event or Project Amount       $ 

A. Describe your overall event or project.

B. Describe how your overall event or project will provide a community economic benefit.

C. Please describe how you will measure the impact your overall event or project will have on tourism or
projected increase in tourism. Please be specific and provide examples.

4. Overall Event or Project Budget Summary

A. Describe, and be specific, on what you would spend the requested lodging tax funds on.

B. Income Other Than Lodging Tax (from sponsorships, grants, donation and admission fees)
If you anticipate receiving partial funding for this activity from another source, please list the source(s) approximate
amount, and status of funding. Indicate the entry or admission fee if one will be charged.

SOURCE AMOUNT Confirmed or Projected? 
If projected, what is the anticipated 
receipt date? 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

    TOTAL: $ 

Ride the Tide Rendevous

$2500 5000

Ride the Tide annual rendezvous commences in Tracyton boat launch and ends after a paddle through the Port 
Washington Narrows on the beach at Port Orchard.  This year attendees approached 100 and professional still and 
drone photography was captured where permissible in Port Orchard at the Farmers Market. Visitors were provided with 
incentives to stay and purchase food from the Farmers Market or other items.  In addition some visit Bay Street 
businesses as they are given an extra hour and a half to explore after the paddle.

Ride the Tide provides regional publicity to Port Orchard showcasing access to the Kitsap Peninsula Water Trails. It  
provides  the local farmers market with visibility and economic impact to the market and other neighboring 
businesses after the paddle.  VKP had a tent at the 2021 event with nearly 500 VKP and KPWT maps and brochures 
taken by patrons. 

VKP promoted Ride the Tide on KNKX and KUOW as well as featuring it in print media with top of mind  
advertising in publications for 20,000 circulation in Washington (Yakima/Tri Cities), Oregon Welcome Centers.

The event concluded in June.  Registration for paddlers, promotion of KPWT, assistance with information on 
Port Orchard and the PO Farmers Market boot, maps  marketing, advertising and photography for the event 
with nearly 300,000 gross impressions on Public Radio

Washingotn Tourism Alliance 250 Fall 2021

Olympic Outdoor 350 Processed

600

Page 154 of 189



City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (360) 876-4407 Page 3 of 4 

C. Other Expenses of Overall Event or Project (Only complete below boxes that are applicable to your overall event or project that you are
seeking funds for.)

Proposed City 
(LTAC) Funds 

Other Committed 
Funds 

Total 

Operations (postage, fuel, 
permits, etc.) 

$ $ $ 

Event Marketing $ $ $ 

Tourism Marketing $ $ $ 

Other Activities 
Explain: 

$ $ $ 

TOTAL COSTS $* $ $ 

*City Lodging Tax funds would represent what percentage of your overall budget?  _________________%

Can you operate this project with reduced funding?  Yes  No    If yes, explain below: 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

D. Other Financial Information
____________________________________________________________________ 
Does your overall event or project have provisions (or plans) for becoming less dependent on Lodging Tax funding? 
(Meaning does the overall event or project have the ability to increase revenue by charging admission, increasing fees, 
etc.) 

If not, what are your challenges of generating new revenues: 

5. Estimated Numbers of Increased Tourism
*If you received lodging tax funds last year, you must attach last year’s reporting*
Applicants applying for use of LTAC funds must provide estimates of how it will result in increases in the number of people
traveling for business or pleasure on a trip as required by RCW 67.28.1816:

Projected Actual1 Methodology1 
Overall Attendance: 

Attendees who traveled 50 miles or more to attend: 

Total: 

Of total, attendees who traveled from 
another state or country: 

Attendees who stayed overnight: 
Paid accommodations: 

Unpaid accommodations: 

Paid Lodging nights: 

1 Actual numbers will be required to be reported to the City in 2022. 

2000

500 500

2000

25002500

Less than 1



We have  demonstrated  various sources  that have contributed to the event

100 70 Registration

50 50 Registration

0

3

97

2

Asked upon registratioon3

2 Asked upon registration

Page 155 of 189



City of Port Orchard, 216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 (360) 876-4407 Page 4 of 4 

The applicant hereby certifies and confirms that it does not now nor will it during the performance of any contract 
resulting from this proposal unlawfully discriminate against any employee, applicant for employment, client, customer, or 
other person(s) by reason of race, ethnicity, color, religion, age, gender, national origin, or disability. That it will abide by 
all relevant local, state, and federal laws and regulations. That it has read and understands the information contained in 
this application for funding and is in compliance with the provisions thereof, and; that the individual signing below has the 
authority to certify to these provisions for the applicant organization, and declares that he/she is an authorized official of 
the applicant organization, is authorized to make this application, is authorized to commit the organization in financial 
matters, will assure that any funds received as a result of this application are used for the purposes set forth herein, and 
verifies that all the information contained in this application is valid and true to the best of his/her knowledge. 

Certified By: Signature Date 

Print or Type Name  Title 
6-28-2021

Beth Javens Director

Page 156 of 189



 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7F Meeting Date: August 10, 2021 
Subject: Approval of a Road Closure for a Special Prepared by: Brandy Rinearson, MMC 

 Event – Cruisin’ Sunday  City Clerk 
        Atty Routing No: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary: Staff received a Special Event application from the Christian Life Center for an event on 
August 29, 2021.The application states the following: 
 

EVENT:           Cruisin’ Sunday  
TYPE:               Car, Truck, and Bike Show 
DATE:              Sunday, August 29, 2021 
TIME:              Setup starts Sunday, August 29, 2021 at 7:00 a.m., open to public at 8:00 a.m. 

until 4 p.m.  
LOCATION: Christian Life Center, 1780 Lincoln SE Avenue, Port Orchard 
CLOSURE(S):  Road closures: 1) Mitchell Road SE at Bethel Avenue and at the Saint Vincent 

DePaul store (a detour route via SE Beck Street. Jefferson Avenue SE and 
Hoover Avenue SE to Lund Avenue SE provided), 2) Lincoln Avenue SE at 
Bethel Avenue and Hoover Avenue SE and 3) Greendale Drive SE at Lincoln 
Avenue SE.   

 
Pursuant to Port Orchard Municipal Code 5.94.050(4), staff shall bring forward the special event 
application to the City council for approval when the event requires a street or highway closure, unless 
previously approved by city council by resolution.  
 
Staff has received and reviewed the application. Staff has determined that based on the nature and size 
of this event, it will cause impact to traffic flow, require additional planning, and require staffing from 
the Police Department. However, the applicant has agreed that should the Council approve the street 
closure they will work with public works and police to make sure the traffic control guidelines are 
adhered to, to the satisfaction of the Police Chief. 

   
Recommendation: Staff recommends authorizing the road closure. 

 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: I move to approve the road closures for the Cruisin Sunday event taking place 
on August 29, 2021, conditioned upon the applicant satisfying all the Police Chief’s safety concerns.  

 

Page 157 of 189



Business Item 7F 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Fiscal Impact: None. 
 

Alternatives: Deny the road closure. 
 

Attachments: Application and Public Works Traffic Control Map. 

Page 158 of 189



Sprcnl Evrrur Prnmr Appr-rcRnoru
(Ponr OncnlRo Murrrrqpnl Coor 5.94 nno 5.95)

STANDARD PRocEsstNG rer: $50.00
ADDtTtoNAL EXPEDITED ree (r.es rnm 90 eur rvlonc rHAN 30 DAys BErone wenr): $50.00

Event lnformation

Organization lnformation*

*Please note the organization intormation provlded may be shared for inquires made on event

Name of event:

Ca.nsr*l' St-lxtrrnv
Location of event:

d$au<nAr\t LtE€. fsag1p12 \-l€4oLrxr(,n lr.r <c,^ ArltS.
Descriotion of event:"z"4*tr 

fi..if,r'"a. cM-,-l-rzuc( { Brre _<tlcro 
(Uvls13 - trce -- rQ>oo -'

Dzrue) A Conlnnbr{\}J }Bv€r.tT.(gee AtrAc$ f\^Eh.[T oA

flves ffiioWill you be charging an entry fee?

lf yes, how much? S_ DNr.nror{
Anticipated number of visitors:

ScOo- ScOo
-Tll#r'r w:-rlor \T -T[r< bA.Y

Date(s) ofthe Event:

FUGDST .ZQ. ?O"-I
Time Open tri Public: Ct,,er) Ann
Time Closed to Public: ar: eO Flf)
Time Onen to Vendors {include setuo

and tealdo*n1' 8ffio ^ =F^o
Event web site CPt)\gtf\ eund6q r Corh z*r€ Ssgg;GA

Type of Event: n Festival I watk/nun fl parade n Vendor Fair n alock earty n otnen At(O SLlol)

Name of Organization

Cilar<n o^t l-( Frc 0.arrreA
Do you have an active City Business License? EYes €n\ff- What is your UBI number?

C-l'{t>€c}} -
L-am.l (Ru6ro ( e lon rt l+oosgss\

Point of Contact Name

\-1Bn Lrncor-N 6€ Ava
Street Addreds Mailing Address (if different from street address)

'W fMcr+rvza
State

WA A<*o City State Zip

Phone ga+-
%D-1tr>*4cJa(-

Alternate Phone Email

erulstn =llnc\ar, d a rn"til . c c.,nr-.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Page 3 of 10

Page 159 of 189



Public Heqlth

Food:

Will your event hSve any food service ar#ler€{esf DF"t

Will your event have iiroiessional catering? !v"t
Willyour event have food trucks? [v"t
Will your event have food booths or food vendors? !v"t

nNo lf yes, how many:

Erys 11ys5, how many:

XNo tf yes, how many:

Ehto tf yes, how many:

lf yes, you must contact the Kitsap Public Health Distrid as they may require a temporary food estoblishment permit.

Visit their website at hnps://kitsopoublicheofth,ora/FoodSofetv/food vendorc,pho or coll (360) 728-2235 fur information,,

Alcohol:

Will alcohol be served at the event? nVes ffwo
If yes, you must contoct the Washlngton Stote Liquor and Cannabis Board fur a special liquor license,

Visit their website at https://lcb,wa,aov/or call (360) 664-7600 for informotion,

Garbage and Recycling:

Describe your garbage and recycling plan

lt

h r..rren r,. rmt-ItZAf[ BAfi< TrtBrLff Uln rilTr{€ {=Acr \rry 6 ran *.,tDs,

Vr raul Ar-rAdlso VYI{AP.

Clean-up Plan:

Describe your cleanup plan and who will be responsible (Note: Runs/Walks can only use washable paint for marks on route

and must be removed by organization after event has completed):

Restrooms and Sanitation :

Describe your restroom and sanitation plan (i.e. number of facilities available including handicap accessible, Sani-cans, wash

stations, Port of Bremerton facilities):

fi\

-T[A€ %qAALE ]r6>tLsrs
S€(=; AtrTACT+fVIEN\T

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Page 4 of 10

Page 160 of 189



Public Safetv

Crowd Control:

Please indicate how public safety, traffic, and crowd control will be provided

A)l-s --WLgY xlrl-.t- sltffi>el)

e
S

Will you be requesting police officers for traffic and crowd control? .il v", I no

lf yes, how many police officers you anticipate will be needed for (a)traffic control and (b)oowd control:

FrzJfib I wtr.t- M o
-r?lAir 1s t unn

POMC 5.94.080 'City Assistance'states the chief of police, fire chief, and/or public works director may require any

reasonable and necessary traffic control, including requiring non-city staff to serve as certified flagger(s), use of downtown
parking lots, police protection and/or emergency medical services to be provide at the special event at the organizer's

expense.

Resolution 040-18 states Community events or private activities, which have not been previously exempted from
reimbursement under prior City ordinance or resolution, and which require enhanced police security shall pay a flat rate of

5100 per hour to the City for each commissioned officer and police reserve. The use of commissioned officers and police

reserves shall be at the sole discretion of the Chief of Police.

Parking lmpacts:

Have parking impacts been coordinated with neighbors (residential/business)? fr V"r D ruo n ruot Applicable

lf yes, how will parking be provided for participants and visitors (including handicapped parking)?

Amplified Sound:

Willyou have Amplified Sound? [v"r E ruo n Not Applicable

If yes, please note that noise levels generoted shqll not be in excess of allowable levels, consistent with POMC 9,24.050,
For more information please contact the Port Orchard Police Department (360) 876-1700,

Tents:

Does your event include a tent or membrane structure? E[V"t
ffi

lf yes, what is the tent size:

[] no [] Not Applicable 
La<"e r€^ws,

the tent have sides? ! Yes E[ ruo fl ruot applicable

contact Community Development (360) 874-5533.Moy be required to obtain a permit per POMC

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Page 5 of 10

Page 161 of 189



Use of Citv Riqht-of-Wav and Pqrkino lmpqcts

Use of State Highway:

Will this event require closure of a State Highway Street (Bay Street/SRtr56ll ! Yes E ry".E:r ?'-sAEb +et pFrr/1€*€> @ ForL- l+oyD Ct6;a.€Ceaqres.t' Aeo! tltO Ttt€,
For State Highway Closures (Bay Street), the sponsoring organizotion must submit the application to the city at leas, tffirc*
calendor days before the event date. Upon city approvol of the event, the sponsoring organizdtlon shall seek permlssion

lrom the Washlngton Stdte Deportment otTransportotion (WSDOT) by completing on online application, Once permission

is granted from WSDOT, a copy of the Letter of Acknowledgment or an Agreement will need to be provided to the city,

WSDOTs online application is located ot' https://www.wsdot.wa.eov/contact/events/special-events

Use of City Right-of-Way: Port Orchard Municipal Code 5.94.020(7) states "Right-of-way (ROW)" means any road, public

parking lot, city street, highway, boulevard or place in the city open as a matter of right to public travel and shall include

arterials, neighborhood streets, alleys, bicycle paths and pedestrian ways; including streets or portions thereof which are

designated as portions of the state highway system."

Will this event require closure of any of the below closures? ! Yes E 
"o

lf yes, indicate what type of City right-of-way is requested to be closed and the location (select all that apply):

! city Parks:

lv.n Zee Park

f]eaut Powers Park

fl Parking Lots:

n Lot 1: between Orchard
and Frederick streets on
the north side of Bay

Street

!ro,2: between
Frederick Street and
Sidney Avenue, north of
Bay St.

!vccormick Village Park

!Centraleark

flot 3: five rows of
parking west of
Harrison Ave and east
of and parallel to the
library

niot 4: all parking eastHof 
Lot 3 and Harrison

Ave and west of the
Marina Park

Lot 5: all parking on City

Hall propefi in front of
the Police department

Lot 6: abutting the
landscaped area at the
SW corner ofthe Bay St

and Dekalb St

intersection

lnockwellRark

I r-ot 7: all parking spaced

located on the library
property which is limited to
library staff only

fl r-ot a: employee parking lot
east of City Hall adjacent to
Prospect Alley which is

between Kitsap Street and
Prospect Street,

Iettt
nu'u"

Turner Park

ns Park

n sidewalks:

[LStreet(s)
t requesting steet closure, please fill out the closure information below ond include a mop (lndicated on Page 7) of the

area impacted.

SPECIAT EVENT STREET CLOSURE(S):

Street to be closed and/or obstructed:

Between which streets/intersections:

Date(s) of closure/obstruction :

Time(s) of closure/obstruction :

rir\a -

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Page 6 of 10

Page 162 of 189



Site Map

A site map is required to be submitted which includes the following:

Vendors:

Beer Garden:

Signage:

Tents:

Public entrances and exits:

Road closures and detours:

Traffic patterns:

Fire Lanes:

Garbage/Recycling:

Barricades:

First Aid:

Parking:

Restrooms:

lf event is a run/walk, list start and stop locations and water/rest stations:

Yes f*"
f]*"
Xto
[*o

fh"
fln"
I"o
En'
flu'
It"
fh"
fn"
En"

E ruot applicable

ftotapplicable

/urtapplicable

LJ ttot applicable

n ruot applicable

n ruot applicable

n ruot applicable

E ruot applicable

n not applicable

I not applicable

fl trtot applicable

E ttot applicable

n ruot applicable

[ves Eruo E ruot applicable

f}",
fv.'
El",
,E]'*
EI'"'
lX'",

"Xlt".
Eil",
Eh"'
El'"'
EL",

d"'

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Page 7 of 10

Page 163 of 189



Did you indicate your event will have venOorsf $as [ruo

How many anticipated exhibitors/vendors will be at your event?

VEI-tUcrag urLLL oNLY e€ e>N

Event dnd Vendina

Signage:

Are you planning to put up temporary signsl E(es flwo 
-o{...t o.ra ?.zrtW,;/F:V 

-tarfrA0.r\JcE, Qr,nlc3
POMC 20,132,290'Temporary sign" (which may include special event sign) means any sign that is used temporarily and is

not permanently mounted, painted or otherwise affixed, excluding portable signs as defined by this chapter, including any
poster, banner, placard, stake sign or sign not placed in the ground with concrete or other means to provide permanent

support, stability and rot prevention. Temporary signs may only be made of nondurable materials includlng, but not limited
to, paper, corrugated board, flexible, bendable or foldable plastics, foamcore board, vinyl canvas or vinyl mesh products

of less than 2O-ounce fabric, vinyl canvas and vinyl mesh products without polymeric plasticizers and signs painted or
drawn with water soluble paints or chalks. Signs made of any other materials shall be considered permanent and are

subject to the permanent sign regulations of this chapter. Please contact the Community Development Department at
(350) 874-5533 if you have questions or if you need to apply for a sign permit.

Vending:

'u.J- T-.t6T k sgzJ-rrlbl
n{ -nt{- g-.1pNT-

Ttl€ eduul & tz"rnps/-
POMC 5.96, il your event has two ar more vendors engaged in public property vending, you dre required to hove d Mdster

Mutti-Vendor Event License (MMVEL). The MMVEL fee is $LS,OO per day or $200 per month. POMC 5.96.020(S)(a) states the

sponsor of the mdster event shall provide a list oI participating vendorc, their business names, their addresses and their Stote

Tax Revenue ldentification Numberc to the clty clerk within three working days afier the firct day of the operation.

o No public vending is allowed within twenty-five (25) feet of any municipal building, monument, or fountain, OR within
ten (10) feet of intersection sidewalks.

o Vending devices must be removed from vending sites daily between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.
r Vending devices and vending sites must always be clean and orderly. The vendor must furnish a suitable refuse

container and is responsible for the daily disposal of refuse deposited therein. Refuse containers must be removed
each day along with vending devices.

e Vendors may engage in public property vending only in the location specified in the public property license. The

location shall be deemed the vending site.
o Utility service connections are not permitted, except electrical when provided with written permission from the

adjacent property owner. Electrical lines are not allowed overhead or lying in the pedestrian portion of the sidewalk.
r No mechanical audio or noisemaking devices are allowed, and no hawking is allowed.
r A vinyl or canvas umbrella may be added to the vending device, but its open diameter may not exceed eight and one-

half feet. Any part of the umbrella must have a minimum of seven feet of vertical clearance to the area on which the
vending device stands.

r lndividual vendor advertising signs may be placed only upon the vending device. Temporary master event advertising
signs may be placed as approved by the city engineer; and

o No conduct shall be permitted which violates any other section of the Port Orchard Municipal Code.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Page 8 of 10

Page 164 of 189



lnsuronce

The sponsoring organization must provide an insurance certificate, with endorsements, at least 30 days prior to the event with
the City of Port Orchard shown as Additional Named lnsured with minimum coverage to be as follows:

$1,000,000 tiability; 91,000,000 Bodily tnjury

Special Event lnsurance for events held at city-owned facilities can be purchased at eventinsure.hubinternational.com/.

Release

I certifo that the event for which this permit is to be used will not be in violation of any City of Port Orchard ordinance.

By applying for this special event permit, the organization or entity obtaining such permit agrees to defend, indemnifli, and hold
harmless the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits, including
attorney fees and costs, arising out of or in conjunction with the activities or operations performed by the applicant or on the
applicant's behalf resulting from the issuance of this permit, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the
City.

The inlormotion on this lorm is considered a publlc record and is subject to public disclosure laws in Chapter 42.56 RCw.

l, as the President or Chair of my organization, agree to the terms and conditions listed above.

D
Signature ent/Chair of Organization Dateme

\-{,1=€,
AfJ
Gnrea-

FOR CITY CLERK'S OFFICE USE ONLY

Comments received by:

Date final review sent:

Date S50 Permit Fee Received:

Date S50 Expedited Fee Received (if applicable)

I police n rire I public works ! Finance ! community Development ! Kitsap Transit n clerHs office fl Health District

Date lnsurance Certificate(s) Received

Does event require a Master Multi-Vendor License: I Yes ! wo lf Yes: I SfS/Oay fee I S2OO/monthly fee

Number of days: Amount: Date fee paid:

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Page 9 of 10

Page 165 of 189



Special Event Permit Aoolication Checklist

Please use this list to ensure you have included all supporting documentation with your special event

application.

! tf your event coincides with another organizations event in the same location, please provide written approval

from the event organizer that indicates their approval of your event.

E Reviewed Special Event Tool Kit

n Special Event Fee (Check, Cash, Credit Card) (Page 1)

! Written approval from property owner if location is on non-City owned property (if applicable) (Page 2)

n Health Permits (if applicable) (PaSe a)

I Special Liquor License (if applicable) (Paee a)

n Upon event approval, use of State Highway Letter of Acknowledgment or an Agreement that is received

from the Department of Transportation if State Highway is requested to be closed (Page 6)

n Completed site map (Page 7)

! Master Multi-Vendor Event License fee (if applicable) (PaSe S)

D Contact Department of Community Development for tent permit (if applicable) (Page 8)

n Contact Department of Community Development for sign permit (if applicable) (PaSe 8)

! Special Event Application/Release is completed and signed by the President or Chair of organization (Page 9)

E lnsurance Certificate, with endorsement, provided at least 30 days prior to event date (Page 9)

Tips for q successful event

* Contact the local media (Kitsap Sun, Port Orchard lndependent, etc.).

* Post information on your social media site.

* Contact the Port Orchard Chamber of Commerce.

'1. Attend a City Council meeting to speak during citizen comments letting council and public know of your event

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Page 10 of 10

Page 166 of 189



VIRGIL BROWN
LEAD PASTOR

May 27,2021
City Staff & Council Committee
CiW of Port Orchard
216 Prospect Street,
Poft Orchard, WA 98366

Dear City Staff & Council Committee,

For the last 7 years, we have been working with the City Traffic
Depaftment to assist us in road closures for our "Annual Cruisin'
Sunday Car, Truck & Bike Show (Cruise for Food Drive)". This free
community event is set for Sunday, August 29,202L for Port Orchard
and the surrounding Kitsap Peninsula. For the last 7 years, City Traffic
Depaftment has been providing us with alternate traffic signs for the
road closure using the attached Kitsap County map. Since being part
of the Port Orchard City Limits, the Port Orchard City has provided us
with great seruice and assistance for our free community event. Now
with 2021 upon us, we are coming forth to present our request to the
City Council for approval and assistance in providing traffic signs for
the road closure. Please see the Kitsap County map attachment for
the list of signs required.

This past year our Free Community Event was a great day! A lot of
volunteers, hard work, community support, great weather, and great
sponsors like yourself made last year's event the best ever! The atmosphere
was filled with fun, live Rock-N-Roll music and 4O2 beautiful show vehicles.
The aroma of BBQ hamburgers and Hot Dogs filled the air. Over 5000
people took paft in enjoying donated Silver City Brewery Root Beer with ice
cream, Dickey's BBQ Ribs, Coke products, Monster Drinks, door prizes,
vendors, big inflatable toys, slot car racetrack, Dunk Tank and rides for kids
to enjoy. The Fathoms of Fun Royal Court (Queen and Princes) and the City
Mayor took time out of their schedule to be part of this community event. It
was a great time for families and friends and the South Kitsap Helpline
Community Food Bank for people in need of a helping hand.

Because this event attracts so many people, for the last four years the
Port Orchard Police Department has done an outstanding job in
providing us assistance on event day to ease traffic flow in various
areas. Our hope is that the Port Orchard Police Department will
continue to provide us with traffic control and security as needed. We
have planned to contact the Port Orchard Police Chief to get any input
he may have since our last event.

CHRISTIAN
LIFECENTER

CHRISTIAN
LIFECENTER

l78O Lincoln Ave SE

Port Orchard, WA 98366
(360)876-ss95

www.clcpo.org

a
m
n
m

.,lir

a

a

l-
o
|-n

O
n
o

=

Page 167 of 189



Road closure of Mitchell Road from Bethel to the Lincoln Avenue
intersection as well as closing Lincoln Avenue SE from Mitchell Road SE to the
Northeast corner of the church's propefi has been closed for about B hours
during last 20 events. We would like you to consider the possibility of closing
these same roads for our 24th Annual free community event. The closed sections
of Mitchell and Lincoln would be used for additional car show parking, (See
Enclosure 1 provided by the *OLD" Traffic Investigator, Dusty, Wiley for previous
events on road closures)

Northwest

ley s1 ss

(}lggg lvlapQuast.com, lnc.; S1998 Navbatbn Teohnobqbe
Southeast

These are some factors behind our proposal for the closing of these streets:

1. We are expecting over 365 show cars, which will take up most of the
church's lower and upper parking spaces, and parts of Mitchell and
Lincoln Ave. In addition, our large tents, musical performance stage,
and planned activities, will take up the rest of the church's property.

2. The safety of children and families as they pafticipate with the large
activity items (giant slides, obstacle courses, etc) coming and going
from the EPO school field (also used as a parking lot for families and
church parking).

3. The anticipated amount of people in attendance and the space to park
their personal automobiles.

(!
gt
eE
E

&

ROAD
CLOSURE
/DETOUR
SIGNS

CAR SHOW
PARKINGAND
AREA SETUP
(Church, Lincoln,
and on Mitchell)

EPO OPENFIELD &
SCHOOL: GIANT
INFLATABLE TOYS
OBSTACLE COURSE/
SLIDE AND CHT]RCW
VISTOR PARKING AREA.

Christian
Life
Center

SCHEDIJLE TIME FOR
ROAD CLOSURE WILL
BE UqO AM THrS
YEAR.

I
g
0r

=o
al"
g

f,

A

ROAD
CLOSURE/DE
TOUR
SIGNS

$9 LUnd.AVE

Page 168 of 189



If it would be helpful, we would be glad to meet with you at a mutually
convenient time to discuss the traffic proposal for "Cruisin'Sunday". I may be
reached on my cell phone @ 360-710-4076, cruisinsunday@gmail.com, or a
message may be left for me at the Church at 876-5595.

Thank you for your consideration of our request. I look fonnrard to hearing from
you and working with you on this matter.

Sincerely,

ch Center
Larry M. Rubio
Event Coordinator
Christian Life Center (Cruisin' Sunday)
1780 SE. Lincoln Ave.
Poft Orchard, Wa. 98366

(360) 876-5s95 (Church)
(360) 710-4076
E-Mail Address: cruisinsunday@gmai l.com.
Website: cruisinsunday.com

Page 169 of 189



SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT APPLICATION COVER PAGE:

df"o;'*'; *
24rH ANNUAL cRursrN'suNDAy cAR, TRUcK, & BrKE sHow (cRUtsE-FoR-FooD-fi'VtS-/lf^^
cHRrsTrAN L|FE CENTER PORT ORCHARD WA. AUGUST 29rH, 202t. 

l;;;w,w
PAGES & ENCLOSURES

1. SPECIAL EVENT PERMIY APPLICATION

2. LETTER TO THE CITY STAFF & COUNCIL COMMITTEE FOR REQUEST OF ROAD CLOSURE

FOR THE EVENT.

3. ENCLOSURE 1: ROAD CLOSURE MAP

4. ENCLOSURE 2: EVENT OVERALL LAYOUT

5. ENCLOSURE 3: FOOD SERVING LARGE TENT AREA

6. ENCLOSURE 4: KID'S LAYOUT AREA

7, ENCLOSURE 5: SLOTCARTRACK LARGETENTAREA
8. ENCLOSURE 6: STAGE LARGE TENT COVERING WITH PROJECTED VENDOR SMALL

CANOPIES.

9. ENCLOSURE 7: VENDOR TENTS 10'X L0' (COSTCO TENT SYTLE) REQUIRED SETUP FOR

EACH CANOPY FOR ENCLOSURE 6.

L0. ENCLOSURE 8: CERTIFICATE OF FLAME RESISTANCE FROM ANNA'S PARTY RENTALS

FOR THE LARGE TENTS ON ENCLOSURES 3, 4, & 5.

1L. ENCLOSURE 9: YELLOWJACKETCABLE PROTECTORS FOR EVENTS

L2. ENCLOSURE 10: EVENT POSTERS/NEWSPAPER AD FROM 20L9
13. ENCLOUSRE 1L: NATIONAL EVENT PROS (NEP OR CLOWNS UNLIMTED) INFLATABLE

TNSURANCE (EXAMPTEI

L4. ENCLOSURE 12: CHRISTIAN LIFE CENTER'S EXTENDED INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR THE

EVENT (EXAMPTEI

NOTES:

NO VENDORS WILL BE SELLING OR COOKING UNDER THEIR CANOPIES. VENDORS

CANOPIES ARE FOR INFORMATION ABOUT THEIR PRODUCTS.

THERE WILL NO VENDORS OR LARGE TENTS ON CITY,S PROPERTY. ALL

cANOPtES/VENDORS AND LARGE TENTS WrLL BE ON PRIVATE PROPERTY

cHURCH',OR NEP',S/CLOWNS UNL|M|TED TNSURANCE COVERAGE W|LL BE PRESENTED

TO THE CITY CLERK'S OFFICE AT LEAST 45 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EVENT.

L.

2.

3

Page 170 of 189



ilPr0
{ln0

4
stSlnst

Jcllermr Ave Bt

E

.h

$

g

qste

o
{
U
Fl

lpI
F
o

ln
trt

Garc

tt{
ue 3toAvr

{I.TD

''i

ii;
.J
,J

.{
n

H

u
nt

F t/,

T F;
P of;'

IF
I

n

I thle

lleoUnc La

Aro SE

U &b a
I

{P)

tr
6'

k
R
F

g
t-r
fr
tr
P.

!
o
tr
tr
o

o
d

SE

T

14
frl

o
F

l-.{
I

-l
,},
I

$f

Prt,
qr
.S)I

s
u
cl''

.E
o
I
(+

o
ry
o
F.F

0l

o
F{

'.}-j

o
F{

r+
p
!k

q
cI

Alc
&
t\

F>

ul
F
I
{>b
b

@

V
fl
t
3/
+P

=
(+'

0
tr
a
5

@oD
*o{ f
J bbPsg
?F TZ-,48

I..{

grrJ3

.l

/ a
""- 

'

mP
)otg-o_os^(', or (,Eoo-ai2
JA

o

d
Page 171 of 189



Restroom & Wash Stations
will be placed throughout

the

\ EPO School 8
Dist. Office

North

I

ei"nt rnrr*5lf,tl?"". Racins GHEF
Carnival Booths, Fire Dept. Display etc.

I
I
I
I
I

at--

C\I

oL
J
U'o
oq

I.IJWater

"lCE

o
-c()

=

FIXAUTO

Show Car

rur6
rtsgr

lShuttle Service

, 
Provided

Road Closed for
incoming Traffic

will be
@ 7AM

t
Opens @ 1

E
E,
6
!

EIH
EI
FIi

!.I lfs
{s./

ll

Fix Auto Parkino LoV

- 

'!ruw var ralKrlg
as directed by

|J parking attendant

lf
t

n
\

l--+'t-<.llD-
f

Show Gar Parking on Lincoln Ave

-i-

directedIAs by Parking attendant

uest & Church Parking
On the field outside

the kids area
and at EPO School

a
a

Show Car Entrance
to the Lot
Car Parking Only

le
t

I

'Lincol Lrncoln Ai>
a

6ou$
- rl-

a
Ro'J[e a

a-
a

5nrr"n"" )- n AVg 
-rr->-Ea _ - Cta-t

lr
-

a

- - -- Shuttle Route

Show Car Parking Only

+

North

Christian Life Center

West

August 29,2021

South

a
I

Food Serving Tent
Hamburgers/Hot Dogs

& Chips
Opens @ 12:30

BBQArea

Car Parking Only @\o5

=otr
.9
(E

F

E
E.
6
l-

o
dl

t'?lt=l

incoming traffic
will be posted

@ 7AM

a
t
I
t

Except for Show Vehicles) 
a

Show Car

aParking 
Only

I
It

Show Car
Parking Only

ra r'- a

I --1
t

I
\I I

,

f

o
oUO a
ob=to);
-c (I)ts
@80

(d
(L

t
I
I
I
I
I
t
I
I

East
,

I

I
,

Condiment tents 
'

Foot traffic
.-.- .-

\ <i- - - - - - - - - - - <i - o - -
Shuttle Route

&
16-r rEl-r rEl-r rE!-r rEt-r 16-r
ISJ ryJ ryJ ryJ ryJ WJ

,
tta

a--o

$a
-

tar "nffilff";"#"'
ff I * Fire bept. AccessrJ

- 

r. Hoaocrosuresrgn
il I not to ride the shuttle

T I
t

-F
I

will be posted at 7:00 AM at the Bethel Rd "Y. Only church access will be allowed for passenger drop off that prefer
from EPO.

2. After church service, all drivers & passengers will have to take the shuttle service back to their vehicles. lt will be too congested to
allow any private vehicles back onto the church grounds.
3. Church members can avoid this traffic congestion by taking Lund Ave. to Hoover St. Once on Hoover, proceed down Hoover to the
"Stop' (School Bus Depot) and turn left. Now proceed on the road until you see EPO School to your right and the open field across from
EPO School. You are at the event parking area. Shuttles will be available to bring you down to church.

Road Closed for
incoming Traffic

will be posted
7AM

Shuftle Traffic Stops
@ 12:00 and is redirected

T-shirt Booth

Area
Beer

Krispy Kreme Booth &
Donation

io
E
o
-c()
=

oJ
b

o)c

Music
Award

Ceremony

III

South
@

/

@
-

Page 172 of 189



1350 SO FOODISERVING TENT. THE TENT IS OPEN ON ALL SIDES. THE WILL BE SECURED BY 55 GALLON DRUMS FILLED WITH WATER.

(r)
I.JJ

E:)
U'o
J
Oz
tu

45'
TENT FOOD LINE ENTRANCE

30'

SND

Church and
access door to

HANO WASH r

I

cl
G)

*,Y.

trash cans!'

10x10
CANOPIES i Cmms Table

P6t Fod seNie

o*,o*rlrt r"=l*=o
ON ICE

FOOD LINE EXIT

t

r

trash cans

f

t

t
J}cr

e
PEBMANENT

ELECTBICAL 5OA PLUG
WIL MOUNTEO

(110220U 6

cr

E i F o
AREABBQ tcf

t
si

s(T*K ,","oo"

$'-t ot 
,r""n""ntrr 4,.1 {L'

WS* r"osrlEF*E=ryD-.

t POP &
BOfiLE

WATEB AREADqtd|bttaadqi

ttra allfth gMrs

*
TT

F

CONSTRUCNON
FPFTOVED

ELECNrcAL SPIDS
EOXES ABE PROVIDED

BY ANNAS PARWS.
HEAVY DUTY

ETTfldAAUIS
ALSO PROUDM BY
NMISPffiilS.

rtovffi
MmtnoEHrdrm

WMTreRE} oo

a)
ulJ
dl
i<
Ao

rlwffi
ffim*Y

o

zl
E
u

a

Ie
o

t t

d
F

F

I

s

s

s

+

9DE
FECdVING

t

s
t

tr

$s$
SPIOER

i

ROAD MATS

ELECTRICAL

ELECN|oAL CABLE RUN

FOOO SEflING
SDE

EGCmlcft
FROTECTION
ROAD MATS

l@SRW
SDE

EECNrcAL
CABLE FUN

FOOO SBVttG
90E

ELECTRICAL
CABLE RUN

ELECTFICAL
CAALE RUN

@DSEFVTre
SIDE

APPROWD
ELrc]FICAL

SPIDEB BOXES

S*'
$

CONSTRUCTION
APPROWD
ELECNCAL

a srDE

I

CffiLE RUNS ARE
PROECTED BY

CHrcKffi GUARD DOG
d8E PFOIECTOnS

betro8{rl h&!l&ibdod
14.F

I

a

I

Page 173 of 189



U

Proposed Kid's Area Setup

r

The Area will need to be roped off

Ponabb Resl R@m I
Washlng Slatlon

r

6

Podablo Fegt B@m &

Washlng Statlon
F

p
b It It

r
?

Trash Cans

Entry/Exit Point

Fks Dspadreni
Booth

Own TBnt

PA BsIh

Entry/Exit Point

tr

??

c

1. Hand Cleaner should be available at each
booth.
2. First Aid Kit & Fire Exinguisher should placed
at the PA Booth.

rcE

FIF Departunt ot dlsplay

Klds Actlon Ewnt

i
E
a
g

Q rnis wirl be posted at each booth

ENCLOSURE 4Page 174 of 189



SETUP IN KID'S AREA

SLOT CAR TRACK RACING TENT 4OO SQ FT'

20'

ENTRANCE

OPEN ON THREE SIDES
(But Roped otf)

GENERATOR WILL BE
PLACED IN AREATHAT ISNT

ACCESSIBLE BY THE PUBLIC,
NEAR VEHICLES OR FOOD
AREAS (OPEN FIELDAREA)

Exit

20'

JE
I

GAS 5K GENERATOR FOR 11OV POWEF

CABLE RUN

1OO'AWAY

ENCLOSURE (5)
Page 175 of 189



Mitchell (o
o
L

=oo
Ec
tll

EECnICI
APPBOED

PERWEMOUSIDE
SAKS PANEL

11W

WLE RUN

M)TE: CoFAiOE$ IIAVE l{OT BE FIIIAI.ZED YET FOR THE EaEIT.
ALL CAI|oPIES ARE LOCATED OI{ CHURCH PROPERTY.

o'

6

"uo"wsmf

20'

F@l

ll

8'Table

0**#
Dickey's Van

Free Food
MGry

Monster Truck
Area

wd"s

tr
o
9.::

(D

CHECXER GUABO M SBE
PFO]UOBMRFBC&

PSKING LOTSffi

TENTS ARE OPEN ON ALL FOUR SIDES Ui.|LESS OTHERWSE INDICATED.

CRUISIN'SUNDAY
COMMUNITY EVENT

BASIC LAYOUT

1 wooden or Costco
8',

o

0
$-;f-

"$:fd

Stred Entrance Wey

a

Eo.
2

cnairc

f3 #4 #6 *7

,i !

Sre

1t
{9'

.EdE
co
3E
8R

:\ ??

,4
r!

dI

..rP
.tr'

4 wooden
8'Tables & 2
Black Chairslt

i,

t Point
Tires Area

db
Pdnd4

&h
AffihdE wo

Canopies Courtyard

Canopies

sFE ffiCdp XdG I t

Vtt dHp[m
Kg

North Auditorium

All Canopbs are 10'Xl0'
unless otherwige noted

8'\ /ooden Tables =43

MH
TS

ABGFUN

ElffE[
PBOrcNON

CLC Main Entrance

MNNtrId AFrcVED Affi rc& SPIEB
rcE ARE PMUOED BYANMS Pffi.
HAWWEKMOALMISAS

PMVDED BYNM€ PARre.

STAGE TENT FOR LIVE
MUSIC &AWARD CEREMONY

(4@ SO Fr. AREA)

EM ABE OPEN ON M rcG SIDS

aPmov@
E6nC&

SPIEF mxs

I
I

E

o

Page 1

Page 176 of 189



Top view of Canopies
(Looking downward)

FT
o
f
at)o
c)c

LU

llred

Typical Setup

One Cos@ table per canopy
Unless noted differently on Enclosure 6.

First and La$ Canopies wiil get tv\bTabtes.

Note All Canopies shall be Wire Note these vendors will not be selling
products or cookir€ food on vendor row.

They are only information booths
in these locations.

NOTE: All canopies shall be sandbagged. 48 sandbass needed

The lirst and last canopies of each row shall be the main anchors. These
canopies shall have 4 bags (one on each corner post). The rest ol the

canopies that are in between shall be bag as shown below.

we will provide 10'x10'costco canopies and secure as needed for each vendor

Io

8'Table

#1

All Canopies
will have one carppy wall
banier in between each

8'Table

canopy

I'Table

Iog
io

La$

--.q

Page 177 of 189



Est- I 890

lvtrl

5.llt

LEGEND:

,bi.--
ll

-
T
I
I
lr-l

Water Barier

Event Volunteer

Road Cl6ed Ahead Sign

Lo€l TEffic OnlySign

Tum Lane Closure

Event AGas

8d*ile€...-
Paul Sodely '.% + DetourRoute

,l,rtE6rf.eag-

= 
- -.!riin 5r5E a

4rt
c H..l,-
er:e
i:s
{.;r5-
8e
5: !r
Ia.

g,
t

2
a'. 

-.5..- -a.>
s

,n

rtet+4sg _ _ 
:::trrtcrfth_6fp*:

li:rqgh*xr€- I

I

;l
tiiiI;
6l
EJ
T:

iJ
tf,"il

l1roguaun4

a
2a.

!h.
%-

-: _ pbn4*:tn 
ft, I

I

I

I

I

I

i

t

t-**.r-rO.d'.r r--'- r€chcr8d5€__ -l N+
Traffic Control Map

Cruisin'Sunday S€le:

Date: August 2,2021

Drawn By:

NTS

Christian Wlliams, PE

Page 178 of 189



City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Work Study Session Meeting of July 20, 2021 
          
 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Putaansuu called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Roll call was taken by the City Clerk as follows: 
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Ashby Present  
Councilmember Chang Absent 

 Councilmember Clauson Present  
Councilmember Cucciardi Absent 
Councilmember Diener Present  
Councilmember Lucarelli Present  
Councilmember Rosapepe Present 

 Mayor Putaansuu  Present  
  
Staff present: Public Works Director Dorsey, Police Chief Brown, Finance Director Crocker, and 
Deputy City Clerk Floyd. 
 
Staff present via remote access: Community Development Director Bond, Utilities Manager J. Brown, 
and City Attorney Archer. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Putaansuu led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mayor Putaansuu noted he would like to ask if any member of the public would like to comment on 
the business item. 
 
There were no comments. 
 
BUSINESS ITEM 
 
1. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing Temporary Amendment of City of Port Orchard 

Procurement Policies Pertaining to Change Order Authority for Contract No. 036-21 with ACI 
for the Sidney Avenue Sewer Repair Construction Project 

 
MOTION: By Councilmember Clauson, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to adopt Resolution 
No. 048-21, temporarily amending Section 7 of the City’s Procurement Policy to 1) remove the 10% 

Page 179 of 189



Minutes of July 20, 2021 
 Page 2 of 3  

 
cap and 2) increase the delegated authority to $85K for the Department Director and $135K for the 
Mayor on Change Orders for the Sidney Avenue Sewer Repair Construction Project. 
 
The motion carried.  
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1. Presentation: Beyond Net Zero Carbon 
 
Matthew Mauer and Melissa Troy with Puget Sound Energy (PSE) provided a presentation on their 
commitment to carbon emissions reduction and COVID-19 assistance programs, which included 
background and current information on PSE, clean energy goals, climate change, 2045 goals, 
pathways to Beyond Net Zero Carbon, holistic roadmap to Beyond Net Zero Carbon by 2045, 
equitable, sustainable clean energy, customers and bill assistance, qualifications of bill assistance, 
and how to apply for assistance. 
 
Council Direction: No direction was given to staff. 
 
2. Water & Sewer Capital Facility Charges Exceptions 
 
Finance Director Crocker and Utilities Manager J. Brown provided a presentation, which included 
continued discussion on water and sewer capital facility charges, current and proposed capital facility 
charges, proposal of calculating the water and sewer ERU’s, scenarios, reservoir storage 
components, fire suppression storage, high to low consumption, and change and mixed use. 
 
Additional discussion was held on inflation increases, accessory uses and accessory uses policies, and 
in lieu of assessment and front footage charges. 
 
Council Direction: No direction was given to staff. 
 
3. American Rescue Plan Act  
 
Mayor Putaansuu spoke to the American Rescue Plan Act or ARPA. The City of Port Orchard will 
receive $2.8 million dollars in ARPA funds which will come in two equal installments, one this year, 
and one next year. We received the first installment a couple weeks ago. Capital funds must be spent 
by 2026 and program funds must be spent by 2024. 
 
He spoke to economic harm, local fiscal recovery, business recovery, water and sewer infrastructure, 
utility accounts, cyber security needs, unallowed uses, reporting requirements, utility ratepayer 
protection, best options for Port Orchard, recommendations, future funding, Kitsap County funds, 
and funding categories. 
 
Council Direction: No direction was given to staff. 
 

Page 180 of 189



Minutes of July 20, 2021 
 Page 3 of 3  

 
4. Law Enforcement Legislative Updates 

 
Police Chief Brown provided a presentation, which included changes to tactics, vehicle pursuits, use 
of force, behavioral health and welfare checks, runaways, status offenders, and possession of 
narcotics.  
 
Additional discussion was held regarding included sharing county-wide information, city liability, 
training, de-escalation tools, and clarification on the required updates. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Councilmember Rosapepe spoke to how busy downtown Port Orchard was noting it was great to see 
everyone out. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:21 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 
 
          
Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk   Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
 
 

Page 181 of 189



 

       
  

RESOLUTION NO. 057-21 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD’S ANNUAL 
SPRING CLEAN-UP PROGRAM. 
  
WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard has historically contracted with various solid waste 

haulers to handle the solid waste generated within the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard has hosted annually, a Spring and Fall Clean-Up 

Event to pick-up extra solid waste from city residents with existing, non-commercial solid waste 
accounts since the early 1990’s and has consistently provided this service for its residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, this vital service helps keep the city cleaner and helps to facilitate the City’s 

residents in the disposal of excess solid waste; and  
 
WHEREAS, this service is valued by our residents and it serves the City’s public health, 

safety and welfare for the City to continue to provide this service on an annual Spring Clean-Up 
Program basis; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to better define how this service is provided and administered, the 
adoption of policies and procedures is recommended; Now, Therefore,  
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

 
THAT:  The City Council hereby adopts the “City of Port Orchard Policy and Procedures 
for Spring Clean-Up Program” in the form attached to this Resolution as “Exhibit A” as 
the policies and procedures which govern this activity.  

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
hereon. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 

attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 14th day of September 2021.   
 
 
 
 

Page 182 of 189



Resolution No. 057-21 
Page 2 of 25 

 
 
 

 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 183 of 189



 

 
 

1 
 
 

 
CITY OF PORT ORCHARD  

POLICY AND PROCEDURES  
FOR  

SPRING CLEAN-UP PROGRAM 
 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines, standards and procedures for the City 
of Port Orchard’s Spring/Fall Clean-up Events (the “Program”). The City, in coordination 
with its contractor solid waste service provider Waste Management, sets an annual Clean-
Up week in the spring.  During this week, City residents are provided an efficient means—
through curb-side pick-up of additional solid waste items and white goods (i.e., appliances) 
by City Staff and Waste Management, in addition to the regular refuse pick-up by Waste 
Management. Providing solid waste services is a fundamental governmental service and 
this Program is imperative to provide this needed public health and welfare service to 
residents.  This policy and procedures document is intended to govern the implementation 
of this Program.  
 
Background  
 
The City of Port Orchard has hosted a clean-up event since the early 1990s, consistently 
providing this vital service for its residents.  For this program, the City has coordinated 
with its solid waste providers, beginning with Brem-Air and now with Waste Management. 
The current contract with Waste Management states, in pertinent part:  
 

6.1 General 
 
The Contractor shall provide two (2) city cleanup weeks annually (Spring and Fall), 
upon 90 days’ notice from the City. At each City cleanup, Contractor will pick up 
additional household refuse from each single-family residence at the curb (limit 2 
cubic yards) and from multi-family premises. The City will provide equipment and 
manpower to pick up Bulky Material. Additional tonnage picked up by the Contractor 
and the City during these weeks will be paid for by the Contractor (maximum of 
$3,000.00 per event). 

 
As the City has grown in size, the service area for the Program and associated costs have 

Page 184 of 189



 

 
 

2 
 
 

increased.   
 
Program Parameters  
 
- Date/Timing.  

o The Program involves a Spring event (typically in the month of April).  
o Each event takes place over the course of five (5) consecutive weekdays, from 

approximately 7am to 6pm.  
o The Program involves the retrieval of refuse from individual, qualified 

residential customers on the same regularly scheduled garbage collection date 
for that particular customer.  

o The event occurs during a week that is off-recycle (meaning not on a week 
when Waste Management recycling service is occurring).  

o Eligible refuse must be placed on the street curb the evening before the 
qualified residential customer’s regular garbage day during the event’s 
window. 

- Qualified Residential Customers.  
o The Program’s service area and route are dictated by Waste Management’s 

Residential Garbage Service Route.  Properties that are served by this Program 
are, therefore, those individual account holders who have a current Residential 
Garbage Account with Waste Management.  
 Per Port Orchard Municipal Code (“POMC”) 6.04.010, the City requires 

in pertinent part: “the maintenance of the public health, safety, 
sanitation and aesthetics requires that all generators of solid waste in 
the city of Port Orchard accept, arrange for, and pay for solid waste 
collection and disposal services established by the city.” 

 Waste Management offers two types of accounts: commercial and 
residential. Those eligible for Residential Garbage Accounts include: 
single family residential properties and multi-family dwelling units 
(duplexes, triplexes, etc.) where there is wagon service capabilities (not 
dumpster service, which are offered through a commercial account).  

- Eligible Refuse.  
o Waste Management will collect an additional two (2) cubic yards of household 

trash per Eligible Residential Customer without an additional charge (in 
addition to the regular waste management wagon) during the Program.   

o General Household Items. City Staff will collect from qualified residential 
accounts the following items on the street curb adjacent to the regular garbage 
cans for pick-up, so long as the items – collectively – do not exceed a volume 
of four (4) feet by four (4) feet, without the payment of any associated fee to 
the City:  

Page 185 of 189



 

 
 

3 
 
 

 Baby Crib (dismantled) / Highchair / Playpen / Stroller 
 Barbecue (no propane tank) 
 Baseboard Heater 
 Bicycle 
 Coffee or End Table 
 Computer Monitors / CPU 
 Countertop 
 Dresser 
 Electric Fan 
 Electric Space Heater (small) 
 File Cabinet 
 Furniture (made of wood, fiberboard, plastic, etc.) 
 Garbage Disposal 
 Lawn Table 
 Lawn Chair 
 Lawn Mower (oil and gas must be drained) 
 Masonite 
 Medicine Cabinet 
 Rugs (small, no rolls of carpeting) 
 Stereo 
 Swimming pool (plastic, folded into a bundle) 
 Swing set (disassembled and bundle) 
 Home Gym Equipment (Treadmill, Bowflex, etc) 
 TVs 30” or less will be picked up. Anything over 30” will not be picked 

up. 
 Vacuum Cleaner 
 VCR or DVD players 
 Wheelchair (collapsible) 
 Yard Toys 
 Fencing, chain link/wire (rolled & secured) 

o Specialty Items. Qualified residential accounts may also place the following 
items on the street curb adjacent to the regular garbage cans for pick-up, 
provided the account holder pays a fee to offset the City’s costs to haul and 
dispose of these large items as follows to the City Clerk no later than one (1) 
week prior to the start date of the event, receives a tag from the City Clerk and 
places the tag on the item:  
 Air Conditioner…………………………………....  $20 
 Bathtub (fiberglass/no cast iron)…………... $15 
 Chair (upholstered)………………………….....   $12 
 Copier/Printer (small home type)………....  $10 

Page 186 of 189



 

 
 

4 
 
 

 Couch/Love Seat (each piece)………….…..   $15 
 Dishwasher………………………………….……...   $20 
 Dryer…………………………………………………..   $20 
 Freezer (Household- No Commercial)…..   $20 
 Gas Heater………………………………………….   $20 
 Mattress or Box Spring………………………….  $12 
 Microwave……………………………………………  $12 
 Range/Stove……………………………………….   $20 
 Refrigerator (large-No Commercial)   $20 
 Refrigerator (small)/Wine Cooler………....  $20 
 Sinks (no cast iron)………………………….…….  $10 
 Sleeper Couch………………………………………   $30 
 Toilet…………………………………………………....  $15 
 Washer………………………………………………..   $20 
 Water heater…………………………….…………   $20 
 Water Softener System………………….…...   $20 
 Wheel Chair (non-collapsible)……………....  $15 

- Ineligible Refuse.  
o All items not listed above are ineligible for pick-up as part of the program and 

will be left on the curb with a “We’re Sorry” tag that identifies the reason for 
rejection, including but not limited to the following: 
 Hazardous Waste 
 Construction/Demolition Debris 
 Roofing Materials 
 Carpets 
 Vinyl 
 Tile 
 Cabinets 
 Oil or Paint Cans 
 Batteries 
 Waste management cans 
 Pool Tables 
 Furnaces 
 Tires 
 Car Parts 
 Boats 
 Fluorescent Lights 
 Motorcycles 
 Wood Burning Stoves/Fireplaces 
 Satellite Dish (large) 

Page 187 of 189



 

 
 

5 
 
 

 Wood (firewood or construction) 
 Plate Glass, Glass window or Glass Shower doors 

o Items in excess of the size parameters described above are ineligible for pick-
up from the program.  

o Loose debris is ineligible for pick-up; all items must be boxed, bound or 
contained (but any containers utilized will not be returned).  

o Items that require a fee but the fee is not pre-paid are ineligible for pick-up.  
 

Responsibilities of Public Works 
 
- The Public Works Department is tasked with the execution of the Program.  This role 

involves the following:  
o During the event:  

 Typically, all staff report for the events and provide pick-up service for 
the duration of the Program.  

 The Program utilizes two (2) dump trucks, a backhoe and 2-4 pick-up 
trucks for the pick-up service.  

 Staff will retrieve the refuse and load it into the City’s vehicles.  
 Staff will transport the refuse to the Kitsap County Transfer Station, 

managed by Waste Management, or an appropriate recycling facility.  
o In advance of the events, staff will: 

 Update fees and obtain Council approval, as appropriate;  
 Prepare the route map (utilizing the Waste Management residential 

service map);  
 Prepare advertising materials for the event and advertise for the public;  
 Prepare the “We’re Sorry” tag for rejected items, and prepare a log for 

tracking rejected items for code enforcement;  
 Obtain from the Clerk’s Office the log of pre-paid items.  

o After the events, staff will:  
 Staff will maintain records of deposited loads/items, and route any 

received invoices from the County to the Finance Department.  
 
Responsibilities of City Clerk 
 
- The City Clerk is tasked with support of this Program. This role involves:  

o Coordination of the pre-payment of fees for Specialty Items. The Clerk shall 
develop an application short form for the use by members of the public who 
seek the collection of a Specialty Item.  

o The Clerk may accept applications and the associated fees during the regular 
business hours for City Hall, provided applications must be received and 

Page 188 of 189



 

 
 

6 
 
 

processed at least one (1) week prior to the date of the event. 
o The Clerk will issue a “sticker” to those applicants who submit an application 

for a valid Specialty Item and the associated fee.  
o The Clerk will route the payment to the Finance Department.   
o The Clerk will prepare a list of pre-paid items and associated property 

addresses and send to the Public Works Department in advance of the event’s 
start date.  

 
Responsibilities of Finance Department 
 
- The Finance Department is tasked with support of this Program. This role involves:  

o Collection and deposit of fees collected by the Clerk for Specialty Items, 
consistent with the fee schedule set out in this Policy (as may be amended by 
the City Council).  
 Funding shall be held in the General Fund to offset the operational costs 

of the Program, including but not limited to staff time and use of City 
equipment.   

o Payment of any invoice received from Kitsap County Solid Waste for loads 
taken to the Kitsap County Transfer Station as part of this Program in excess of 
$3,000 (per the contract with Waste Management, referenced above).  

 
Responsibilities of Code Enforcement 
 
- The City’s Code Enforcement Officials are tasked with support of this Program. This 

role involves:  
o Following the event, Ineligible Refuse abandoned in the right of way or on 

private property may be prosecuted as a nuisance, consistent with POMC 9.30.  
o Code Enforcement will respond to complaints of abandoned refuse and may 

take action consistent with the POMC and the City’s applicable procedures.  
 
Relevant Materials 
 
- Attachment 1: Clean-up Brochure 
- Attachment 2: “We’re Sorry” Tag 
- Attachment 3: Waste Management Franchise Agreement (excerpt) 
 

 

 

Approved by the City Council on (INSERT DATE) 
 

Page 189 of 189


	4C 01 Bair ILOA SR
	Agenda Staff Report

	4C 02 RES Bair Utility Extension and Agreement
	WHEREAS, May 12, 2021, Mr. Charles Bair requested water service from the City of Port Orchard to his property located at 731 Bethel for water to a new coffee stand located on Kitsap County Tax Parcel Nos. 4031-001-012-0009, 4031-001-010-0001, and 403...

	4C 03 Bair - Agreement in Lieu of Assessment
	4D 01 Shawn Road ILOA SR
	Agenda Staff Report

	4D 02 RES Kitsap Dev and Investment LLC Utility Extension and Agreement
	WHEREAS, on July 19, 2021, Mr. James Wolfard on behalf of Kitsap Development & Investment, LLC requested water service from the City to property located at 2700 Shawn Road for water to serve a new single-family residence located on Kitsap County Tax ...

	4D 03 Shawn Road - Agreement in Lieu of Assessment
	4E 01 20210727 minutes
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	4. CONSENT AGENDA
	8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)
	14. ADJOURNMENT


	5A 01 2020 Crime in Washington [POPD]
	2020 Crime in Washington
	Crime Reporting
	Classifications of Crimes – Group A Offenses
	Group A Offenses
	Statewide Crime Profile – Crime up 7.1%
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	               Port Orchard – Trend - Group A Crimes
	              State Profile   |   Port Orchard Profile
	Slide Number 11
	                 Port Orchard – “Crime Rate” Per Thousand
	               Port Orchard– Case Clearance Rate
	Classifications of Crimes – Group B Offenses
	Slide Number 15
	                               Calls for Service
	                               Takeaways
	2020 Crime in Washington

	6A 01 SR Public Hearing Water Use Efficiency Goals
	Agenda Staff Report

	6A 02 WUE goal resolution 2021
	6A 03 Water Use Efficiency Program 2021
	GOAL #1: Reduce Residential Usage by 0.5% per year through 2030
	GOAL #2: Continue and Expand Educational Outreach with Customers

	6A 04 Chapter 4 - Water Resource Analysis-draft stamp
	Chapter 4 Water Resource Analysis
	4.1 Water Use Efficiency
	GOAL #1: Reduce Residential Usage by 5 gpd/ERU by 2026
	GOAL #2: Continue and Expand Educational Outreach with Customers

	4.2 Water Conservation Program
	4.2.1 Internal Conservation Measures
	4.2.2 Conservation Program Promotion
	4.2.3 Rate Setting to Encourage Conservation
	4.2.4 Encouraging Water Saving Devices
	4.2.5 Water Efficient Toilets and Appliances
	4.2.6 Water Reuse and Recycling

	4.3 Conservation Program Implementation and Monitoring
	4.4 Water Rights and Source of Supply Analysis
	4.4.1 Combining of City System and McCormick Woods Water System
	4.4.2 Water Rights
	Primary and Supplemental Water Rights
	4.4.2.1 City Water System Water Rights
	4.4.2.2 McCormick Water System Water Rights
	4.4.2.3 Aggregate Cap Condition in Permits G1-26119P, G1-26447, G1-26454P, and G1-26729P
	4.4.2.4 Interties

	4.4.3 Pending Water Right Change Applications and New Applications
	System Analysis
	Figure 4-1  McCormick Woods and City Systems MDD and Existing Supply
	Figure 4-2  Port Orchard MDD and Existing and Projected Supply



	4.5 Water Right Evaluation
	4.6 Water System Reliability Analysis
	4.6.1 Source Reliability
	4.6.2 Water Right Adequacy
	4.6.3 Facility Reliability
	4.6.4 Water Shortage Response Planning



	7A 01 SR Water Use Efficiency Goals
	Agenda Staff Report

	7A 02 WUE goal resolution 2021
	7A 03 Water Use Efficiency Program 2021
	GOAL #1: Reduce Residential Usage by 0.5% per year through 2030
	GOAL #2: Continue and Expand Educational Outreach with Customers

	7A 04 Chapter 4 - Water Resource Analysis-draft stamp
	Chapter 4 Water Resource Analysis
	4.1 Water Use Efficiency
	GOAL #1: Reduce Residential Usage by 5 gpd/ERU by 2026
	GOAL #2: Continue and Expand Educational Outreach with Customers

	4.2 Water Conservation Program
	4.2.1 Internal Conservation Measures
	4.2.2 Conservation Program Promotion
	4.2.3 Rate Setting to Encourage Conservation
	4.2.4 Encouraging Water Saving Devices
	4.2.5 Water Efficient Toilets and Appliances
	4.2.6 Water Reuse and Recycling

	4.3 Conservation Program Implementation and Monitoring
	4.4 Water Rights and Source of Supply Analysis
	4.4.1 Combining of City System and McCormick Woods Water System
	4.4.2 Water Rights
	Primary and Supplemental Water Rights
	4.4.2.1 City Water System Water Rights
	4.4.2.2 McCormick Water System Water Rights
	4.4.2.3 Aggregate Cap Condition in Permits G1-26119P, G1-26447, G1-26454P, and G1-26729P
	4.4.2.4 Interties

	4.4.3 Pending Water Right Change Applications and New Applications
	System Analysis
	Figure 4-1  McCormick Woods and City Systems MDD and Existing Supply
	Figure 4-2  Port Orchard MDD and Existing and Projected Supply



	4.5 Water Right Evaluation
	4.6 Water System Reliability Analysis
	4.6.1 Source Reliability
	4.6.2 Water Right Adequacy
	4.6.3 Facility Reliability
	4.6.4 Water Shortage Response Planning



	7B 01 SR Stellar J (C067-21)_Pottery LS
	Agenda Staff Report

	7B 02 Res 056-21 Stellar J_Pottery LS
	7B 03 C067-21_Pottery Lift Station_signed-stellar
	7C 01 Staff Report Vaccination Holiday
	Agenda Staff Report

	7C 02 Resolution Vaccination Personal Holiday
	7D 01 - SR BUS_Stetson Final Plat Extension
	Agenda Staff Report

	7D 02 - RES_Stetson Final Plat Extension
	7D 03 - ExtensionLtrRequestSSHI LLC_SUBDIV 14-02 Stetson Heights
	7E 01 SR LTAC
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	7E 02 Resolution Lodging Tax
	7E 03 2021 LT Request-Fathoms Revised
	7E 04 2021 LT Request-POBSA
	7E 05 2021 LT Request-Saints-Cruz Revised
	7E 06 2021 LT Request-VK Passport to PO
	7E 07 2021 LT Request-VK Ride the Tide
	7F 01 - SR Road Closure-Cruisin
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	7F 02 Special Event-Cruisin Sunday
	7F 03 Cruisin Traffic Control
	7G 01 20210720 minutes
	8A 01 RES_Spring Clean-Up Program
	8A 02 Spring Clean-up Program - Guiding Policy
	agenda.pdf
	...
	Mayor:
	Bek Ashby (Mayor Pro-Tempore)
	Finance Committee
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee Transportation Committee, Chair
	KRCC/KRCC PlanPol-alt /KRCC TransPol
	PSRC-alt/PSRC TransPOL-Alt/PRTPO
	Shawn Cucciardi
	Finance Committee
	E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Fred Chang
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee
	Land Use Committee
	Jay Rosapepe
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Land Use Committee, Chair
	Lodging Tax Advisory Committee, Chair
	KRCC-alt
	John Clauson
	Finance Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Kitsap Public Health District-alt
	Cindy Lucarelli
	Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Scott Diener
	Land Use Committee
	Transportation Committee
	Department Directors:
	Nicholas Bond, AICP
	Development Director
	Mark Dorsey, P.E.
	Director of Public Works/City Engineer
	Tim Drury
	Municipal Court Judge
	Noah Crocker, M.B.A.
	Finance Director
	Matt Brown
	Police Chief
	Brandy Rinearson, MMC, CPRO
	City Clerk
	Meeting Location:
	Contact us:

	agenda.pdf
	...
	Mayor:
	Bek Ashby (Mayor Pro-Tempore)
	Finance Committee
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee Transportation Committee, Chair
	KRCC/KRCC PlanPol-alt /KRCC TransPol
	PSRC-alt/PSRC TransPOL-Alt/PRTPO
	Shawn Cucciardi
	Finance Committee
	E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Fred Chang
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee
	Land Use Committee
	Jay Rosapepe
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Land Use Committee, Chair
	Lodging Tax Advisory Committee, Chair
	KRCC-alt
	John Clauson
	Finance Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Kitsap Public Health District-alt
	Cindy Lucarelli
	Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Scott Diener
	Land Use Committee
	Transportation Committee
	Department Directors:
	Nicholas Bond, AICP
	Development Director
	Mark Dorsey, P.E.
	Director of Public Works/City Engineer
	Tim Drury
	Municipal Court Judge
	Noah Crocker, M.B.A.
	Finance Director
	Matt Brown
	Police Chief
	Brandy Rinearson, MMC, CPRO
	City Clerk
	Meeting Location:
	Contact us:


	Button1: 


